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Corporate Profile
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HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson
Development”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998
(Stock code: 00754). Hopson Development is a major property group
that specializes in the development of medium to high-end large-scale
residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest
property developers in The People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs,
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand

customer services and facilities; and to
models.

recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Corporate and Listing Information
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)
ZHANG Yi (Deputy Chairman and Chief Financial Officer)
XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman)
(Resigned on 28th March 2013)
XUE Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 1st March 2012)
AU Wai Kin
LIAO Ruo Qing

CHU Kut Yung

ZHENG Shao Hui (Appointed on 28th March 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David  (Chairman)
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Nomination Committee

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)
CHU Kut Yung

LEE Tsung Hei, David

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives

AU Wai Kin
ZHANG YI

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
Minter Ellison

15th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou —  16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing —  3rd Floor, Zhujiang Development Centre
23 West Dawang Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai —  19th Floor, Block 3
No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin —  17th Floor, NingTai Plaza

No. 1 Xiaguang Road, Weijin South Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Close of Register
11th June 2013 to T4th June 2013 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

14th June 2013

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code

00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 11.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 9.875% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
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Corporate Structure
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Corporate Structure (continued)
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Financial Highl
MBEEE

ights

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENF —ETNF —E-TF —T——F —B-C-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
Revenues W3 10,774,624 11,225,246 14,379,253 8,007,537 9,926,605
Profit before taxation B % Al 4 7 3,861,762 8,791,918 8,843,109 2,197,184 4,248,851
Taxation I (1,912,812) (2,699,383) (2,550,097) (788,773) (1,360,748)
Profit for the year R F 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103
Non-controlling interests FEFE I 2 14,774 (292,962) (403,600) 21,620 94,687
Profit attributable to shareholders % 58 1k 4 7 1,963,724 5,799,573 5,889,412 1,430,031 2,982,790
Profit attributable to shareholders % 3R A8 05 B (Rt & 1E
(excluding the effect of revaluation FERHMIELEE M
and other non-recurring income) WA 1,742,495 2,274,409 3,042,695 1,349,484 1,130,610

Earnings per share FERAEF
— Basic —EAX HK133 cents #{ll  HK377 cents j&fll  HK343 cents 751l HK82 cents 71l HK172 cents 54l
— Diluted — HK133 cents /&l HK369 cents #fll  HK342 cents i1l HK82 cents 71l HK172 cents 4l
Dividends per share FRE S HK20.0 cents 1l HK9.2 cents 7l HK17.15 cents il — —
Net assets value per share BREEZFE HK$15.33 7T HK$19.15 7T HK$23.39 7T HK$25.38 7T HK$25.92 7T
Revenues Profit attributable to shareholders
Wz R SR AR
(HK$’000) (HK$'000)
THET TET
14,000,000 7,000,000
12,000,000 6,000,000
10,000,000 5,000,000
8,000,000 4,000,000
6,000,000 3,000,000
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2,000,000 1,000,000
0
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
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(excluding the effect of revaluation and
other non-recurring income)
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chu Mang Yee, Chairman
K&K FE

In 2012, the Group adhered to its prudent and solid operation approach
and achieved stable growth of results. Looking forward to 2013, the
Group will pursue further growth amidst stability and strive to deliver
continuous and stable investment rewards to our investors.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRRE (AH)

Given that the domestic economic growth has slowed down and the

austerity policies on real estate industry have entered into a deeper stage,

the Group, under the principle of its prudent general approach, leveraged

on its extensive experience in development and operation, mature
operational and management principle, well-established decisions
making and governance regime, to ensure that satisfactory business
growth was achieved. For the year ended 31st December 2012, turnover
of the Group for the year amounted to HK$9,927 million, net asset per
share grew 2.1% to HK$25.92.

1. Market Overview and Operating Environment

() National Market

1.

Overview of Economic Environment

In 2012, the domestic economic development
continued to slow down, the GDP for the year was
RMB51,932.2 billion, which grew 7.8% as compared
to that of the last year. Of which, the increase in value
of the tertiary industry was RMB23,162.6 billion, up 8.1%
year-on-year. Disposable income per capita of urban
households was RMB24,565, representing a growth of
12.6% from last year, while the proportion of urban
population reached 52.6%.

In 2012, the domestic economy was under a strong
declining pressure and its growth decelerated. China’s
Central Economic Work Conference 2013 stated that
the central government will continue “to regard
adjusting economic structure and changing economic
development pattern as key principles and to consider
enhancing the quality and efficiency of economic
growth as major tasks” with a view to achieving
persistent economic development. Driven by significant
measures such as expanding domestic demand,
promoting investment, optimizing structure and
accelerating the development of urbanization, domestic
impetuses for economic development have continued
to become stronger, while the continuity and stability
of economic development are enhanced by the specific
and effective coordination of the macro-economic
policies. The steady and positive growth of the macro-
economy has created favorable conditions for the
continuous development of the real estate industry.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Overview of Real Estate Market

In 2012, China entered into a deeper stage of austerity
policies on the real estate industry. In order to promote
the healthy, reasonable and sustainable development of
the PRC real estate industry as well as to further
strengthen the result of the austerity policies on the real
estate industry, the central government and relevant
government departments emphasized the adherence to
the macro-control measures on real estate market, and
continuously perfected and strengthened control
measures on various administration, credit and land
policies. The government has also continued to

|//

implement regional “purchase restriction” and “price
restriction” policies, further deepened reformation of
the property tax and adopted differentiated credit policy
on residential properties. Besides, it has strengthened
the risk management on the real estate industry and
tightened the management on use of land in the real
estate industry. The constantly improving macro-control
measures have had a far-reaching effect on the
development of the real estate industry, in particular,
the speculative and investment demand has been
effectively curbed, the contradiction between supply
and demand in the market as a whole has been further
alleviated. In the long run, this will be beneficial to the
standardized, healthy and sustainable development of
the real estate industry.

In 2012, under the macro-economic background of
“steady growth”, the real estate industry showed a
steady trend. National Housing Sensitive index
fluctuated with an upward trend and investment growth
expanded, while the cumulative decline in new
construction narrowed down continuously and sales
rebounded.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRRE (AH)

In 2012, the national investment in real estate
development was RMB7,180.4 billion, which rose
16.2% from last year; paid-in investment for the year of
real estate developers amounted to RMB9,653.8 billion
during the whole year, representing an increase of
12.7% from last year; area of commodity housing sold
during the whole year was 1,113.04 million sq.m.,
increased 1.8% comparing with last year; the new
construction area in housing in 2012 was 1,773.34
million sq.m., which represented a drop of 7.3%.

In view of macro-economic structure adjustments and
growth pattern changes, the Group considers that the
real estate industry, being the essential component of
the economy, will inevitably face a higher requirement
and its development will become more standardized
and efficient. The promotion of the new urbanization
and the continuous increase in income and purchasing
power of the citizens will lead to enormous demand for
the real estate market and offers promising prospect for
the industry.

Meanwhile, we should also be aware that the
development of the real estate industry is currently
experiencing an in-depth transformation. It is obvious
that China’s macro-economic austerity measures have
become a regular practice. The financing environment
and channels are changing and market presents both
opportunities and challenges. The industry showed an
obvious trend of consolidation and a further
concentration of the industry, as a result, industry
competition became more and more diversified and
multi-level. Development strategy, management model,
financing strategy as well as product innovation will
become significant factors affecting the development of
real estate enterprises in the future. The Group will run
in tandem with the development pattern of the industry,
accommodate to the life cycle of the industry and pay
close attention to the changes in industrial conditions.
We will spare no endeavor to constantly optimize our
development strategy, renovate our management
model, expand our financing channels, enrich our
product system and enhance the Group’s
competiveness consistently.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRHE (F)

(ii) Regional Markets

1.

Southern China

With Guangzhou as its core in southern China, the
Group expands the business to neighboring cities with
vast potential and strong economic strength such as
Zhongshan, Foshan and Huizhou. Southern China is
one of the core regions of the Group’s strategic
planning, where the Group actively carries out land
bank replenishment, residential property investment
and commercial property operation. In 2012, 32% of
the Group’s results was generated from southern China.

Guangzhou is a “national core city” and an “integrated
gateway city” that the State vigorously developed on a
strategic level.
economic center in southern China and the core city in
the Integration of Pearl River Delta. Guangzhou has
enormous development potential and is benefitted from
massive regional leading, radiant and driving

It is also the administrative and

impetuses. Since Guangzhou recorded a total GDP of
RMB1,000 billion in 2010, its economy has remained
on a steady growth track. The total GDP of Guangzhou
in 2012 reached RMB1,355.121 billion, which rose
10.5% from last year. Disposable income per capita
was RMB38,054, up 11.4% year-on-year. The steady
economic growth and the continuous increase in
disposable income per capita in Guangzhou have laid
a solid foundation for the stable and rapid development
of the real estate industry.

Hopson International City
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Huizhou, Foshan and Zhongshan are categorized as
core cities under the Group’s strategic planning for
southern China. With the in-depth implementation of “The
Outline of the Plan for the Reform and Development of
the Pearl River Delta (2008-2020)”, construction works
relating to the integration of Guangzhou and Foshan
(Guangzhou and Foshan) and in economic zones such
as Guangzhou-Foshan-Zhaoqing (Guangzhou, Foshan
and Zhaoqing), Shenzhen-Dongguan-Huizhou
(Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou) and Zhuhai-
Zhongshan-Jiangmen (Zhuhai, Zhongshan and
Jiangmen) have accelerated. Looking ahead, the
regional social and economic integration in the
southern China in terms of transportation, industry, city
as well as urban and rural areas will offer new
opportunities for the development of the real estate
industry. As the core cities of the integration and the
economic zone construction of Pearl Delta River
Region, Huizhou, Foshan and Zhongshan embrace
great opportunity for development and possess vast
development potential and strong transfer function. Our
investment plans in Huizhou, Foshan and Zhongshan
will serve as the strong pillars for the Group’ s overall
strategic planning in southern China.

In 2013, the Group will continue to consolidate and
strengthen its strategic position in southern China,
further explore the southern China market and
proactively replenish the land bank in southern China.
We will also carry out project investment and operation
as well as consolidate and enhance the Group’s
influence in the region.

Sheshan Dongziyuan

RIUREE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Northern China

The Group adheres to the strategic planning with its
core in Beijing and extending to Huanbohai Economic
Zone. We also persistently consolidated and
strengthened the Group’s business development in
major cities in northern China such as Beijing, Tianjin
and Dalian. As an important strategic hub of the Group,
northern China contributed 27% to the Group's results
in 2012.

As the national political, economic and cultural center,
Beijing vigorously developed strategic emerging
industries when developing its regional economy,
hence fully played a leading role in promoting
comprehensive technological innovation and
adjustment of industrial structure. In 2012, Beijing’s
economy achieved steady growth, the regional GDP of
the whole year was RMB1,780.1 billion, an increase of
7.7% from last year; the disposable income per capita
of urban households amounted to RMB36,469, up
10.8% from last year. As the austerity measures on the
real estate industry became a normal practice in 2012,
the Beijing market has shown signs of recovery. During
the year, the area of residential properties sold in
Beijing was 14.834 million sq.m., which increased
43.3% from last year. In line with the positive
development of the real estate market in Beijing, the
Group has also obtained remarkable result in this city.
Regal Park, with its excellent quality, has been well
recognized by the market since launching. It achieved
sales of RMB800 million on the day of opening;
projects like Hopson Dreams World and World Garden
also achieved outstanding sales performance in the
local market. No. 8 Royal Park continued to lead
Beijing’s high-end market with its incomparable quality
and excellent supporting facilities. It persistently
consolidates the market position of the Group’s high-
end products.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRRE (AH)

Tianjin is another important hub in northern China and
it strenuously promoted the collective development of
the dominant pillar industries with new urban planning
and policy. The Group closely monitored the market
condition, linked up Tianjin’s regional planning and
development trend, seized the opportunity of rapid
development in Binhai new region, and laid out its
long-term strategic planning. Belvedere Bay, one of the
projects located in that region, achieved good results in
2012, making significant contribution to the Group’s
results in northern China.

In 2012, the Group continued to explore northern
China with Beijing and Tianjin as its cores. After the
commercial projects in Beijing and Tianjin as well as
Ziyue Mansion in Taiyuan are progressively launched,
our business development in northern China will be
further expanded, and their contributions to the
Group's results will increase further.

Eastern China

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone is regarded as an
important hub in eastern China while Shanghai is the
Group’s core city which extends to the second-tier
cities such as Hangzhou and Ningbo, and to the third-
tier cities with vast development potential, namely
Kunshan, Cixi and Taicang. Such strategy creates a
reasonable business layout, where the first-tier cities in
eastern China play complementary roles with the
second- and third-tier cities. In 2012, with the
introduction of high quality projects in the region, the
Group’s business proportion and market share in the
region have both increased, rendering it an important
stronghold for the Group’s future business growth,
contributing 41% of the Group’s result for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRHE (F)

Shanghai, an international economic and financial
center, is on the path of becoming an international
metropolitan and a world city. This will not only
improve its overall competitiveness, but also increase
its radiating and driving forces to the cities around the
Yangtze River Delta. In 2012, Shanghai achieved
steady economic development, regional GDP of the
whole year reached RMB2,010.133 billion, which rose
7.5% from last year. Disposable income per capita was
RMB40,188, up 10.9% year-on-year.

In 2012, under the influence of continuous austerity
measures, the sales volume of Shanghai real estate
market still maintained an upward trend. The city’s area
of new commodity housing sold was 18.9846 million
sg.m., up 7.2% comparing with last year; the sales area
in the secondary market was 14.4677 million sg.m.,
representing an increase of 3.4% comparing with last
year. In 2012, performance of the Group’s projects in
Shanghai remains satisfying, high quality projects such
as Shanghai Dongjiao Villa and Sheshan Dongziyuan
have established a leading position for the Group in
Shanghai, while units of an ameliorative project,
namely Hopson Yuting, were all sold out. Hopson
Times Garden, which attracted much attention, was
very well received by the market once it was open for
sale, contributing more than RMB300 million of sales
on the launching day and further strengthening the
Group's strategic position in Shanghai.

In 2012, the Group spared no effort to extend its
strategic business coverage in eastern China. As the
projects in the second- and third-tier cities such as
Ningbo, Kunshan and Taicang progressively mature,
their contribution to the sales performance of the Group
will become more significant.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Prospects of the PRC Real Estate Sector

Looking ahead to 2013, the domestic economy will continue to
focus on seeking progress amidst stability and carrying out reform
and transformation, while perking up the quality and efficiency of
economic growth will be the focal points. Driven by long-standing
mechanism such as domestic demand expansion and urbanization
construction, the macro economy will sustain its steady growth. In
2013, the real estate industry will continue to encounter control
measures which have developed into normal practices. Under such
circumstance, restraining investment and speculative demand will
become a long-term target, while reasonable consumption demand
arising from residential needs and improvement of living condition
will be encouraged. The China’s Central Economic Work
Conference 2013 stated that we will embark on a new path of
urbanization, where the focus of urbanization will shift from “rapid
advance” to “quality concern”, which will also impose higher
requirements for the development of real estate industry.

It is expected that in 2013, China will continue to implement
proactive financial policy and solid currency policy; the control
measures on the real estate industry will not change in the short
term. Rational consumption demand will be the main pillar of real
estate market and real estate speculation will be curbed by
repressive measures continuously. The control measures have
accelerated the maturity of the real estate industry. In the future,
emerging business sectors such as real estate financing, pension
real estate and industrial real estate will develop progressively, and
their associated value with traditional residential and commercial
properties will continuously emerge, resulting in the further
expansion and emergence of value chains in the real estate
industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Prospects of the Group

Since 2012, the pattern of economic growth has continued to
change. While constantly promoting the reform of the economic
system, the government has also strived to ensure the “balance,
coordination and sustainability” of the national economic
development. In 2013, it is expected that the government will not
waver in control of the real estate industry. Various measures will
be deepened which will ultimately perfect the control system of the
real estate market. Nevertheless, considering the continuous
increase in consumption power of the general public and the
further deepening of urbanization on the basis of the “Twelfth Five-
Year Plan”, the Group holds a prudently optimistic view towards
the real estate market.

The Group will continue to perfect its monitoring system,
strengthen its risk awareness and optimize its internal management,
so as to respond to the changes and challenges of the internal and
the external markets. Besides, the Group will consider raising
investment return as its highest goal, further balance its business
structure, improve its product quality in order to meet market
demand so as to achieve continuous and steady growth of the
Group's results.

Perfecting the Control System and Strengthening the
Systematic Construction

The Group keeps perfecting its control system and optimizing its
management structure in a scientific and highly efficient manner.
We also endeavore to raise internal management standard in order
to deal with the complicated market changes in China and
overseas. Meanwhile, the Group’s informatization and systematic
project constructions were strengthened and work procedures and
business flows were shortened through perfecting the management
structure system, which eventually improve our executive
capability and ability to deal with changes.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRRE (AH)

Integrating the Investment Structure to Ensure
Continuous Growth

Considering the current control policies mainly target at the
residential market, and in order to adapt to the market changes, the
Group will ensure the continued increase in sales volume of
residential property and at the same time enlarge the investments
in commercial property, industrial property and tourism property.
Couples with financial investments, the Group will guarantee the
maximization of return rate per unit of area through strong and
solid profitability. This diversified operating approach will on one
hand spread the risk exposure of the Group, and on the other hand
will facilitate the Group to balance its investment structure and
maximize its revenue. This approach will not only optimize the
Group’s investment structure, but also ultimately guarantee the
Group's financial security, which in turn provides strong guarantee
for the Group’s long-term and stable operational development.

Raising Risk Awareness and Grasping the Market
Change

Facing the complicated international economic environment, and
the potential market fluctuation which might be brought by future
economic system reform, the Group will strive to raise its risk
awareness and enhance its ability to withstand risk. At the same
time, in view of the unshakable stance of the government in control
policies and the continuous improvement of the control system of
the real estate industry, the Group will take advantage of our own
strength and comprehend the austerity measures scientifically, so
as to grasp the pattern of the market precisely and respond to
market changes proactively.

Prudent Land Bank and Consolidating Strategic
Strengths

As the real estate market in the first-tier cities has gradually thawed,
the Group’s numerous high quality yet low cost land bank in these
first-tier cities has increasingly become the competitive strengths of
the Group. The Company will adhere to its prudent but agile tactics
in land bank, balance its business layout, implement diversified
strategy of land development, and appropriately increase land bank
in a timely manner. The Group will also consolidate its brand value
in the first-tier cities, ensure high quality land bank was acquired in
Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and Huanbohai Area and
increase land bank with promising potential the in second- and
third-tier cities.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ERHE (E)

Balancing Business Structure and Promoting Products’
Quality

Currently, the domestic real estate industry encountered an in-
depth structural adjustment, fierce peers competition and highly
concentrated resources. As such, the Group will, as always persist
in ensuring the survival, competitiveness and development of the
enterprise with high quality products, raise the level of product
management, improve the monitoring system of products and
reinforce brand building. Meanwhile, the Group will devote itself
whole-heartedly in balancing the business structure in two ways:
On one hand, we will balance the proportion of sales properties
and investment properties and make sure that the Group’s daily
capital operation will not be affected and stable cash-flow and
return of revenue will be delivered to the Group; on the other
hand, we will balance the regional strategic development, which is
to secure the foothold in the first-tier cities while accommodating
to the increasingly deepening trend of urbanization to enlarge the
investment in the second- and third-tier cities through scientific
assessment.

Acknowledgement

The Group will persist in implementing its existing development
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Deputy Chairman’s Report
BEFEHE

Zhang Yi, Deputy Chairman
RE - AIEE

2012 is a year when the austerity measures on the real estate industry
continued to develop into normal practices and progress to an in-depth
stage. The Group actively adapts to market changes and strengthens
internal corporate management, through which high quality and
diversified services were provided to the customers and outstanding
investment rewards were delivered to shareholders and investors.

“E-CHEEEHEREREBRQEERL RACEREN—F - K
SEEEBEYME2EL  AHERASE %fi AEFRERHETEEE
mEZ TR - ARREREEFRHEEERARED -
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Deputy Chairman’s Report (continued)

Bl ERE®RE ()

In 2012, China’s macro-control measures on the real estate industry have
been effective. The control system became increasingly comprehensive
and the practices of the real estate market were progressively
standardized, while the protection for the real estate market was basically
stable. During the period of adjustment, the Group will further emphasize
on enhancing the quality of products and adding value to products. At
the same time, the Group will stay firm in implementing the development
strategy of commercial property, commit itself to speed up informational
construction and carry out corporate strategic transformation in a stable
manner.

In the past year, the Group, led by the Board, achieved stable
development in the face of a market environment governed by the state’s
“unswerving stance on austerity policies”. During the reporting period,
the turnover of the Group was HK$9,927 million, the overall profit
attributable to equity holder of the Company was HK$2,983 million. It is
estimated that in 2013, the demand structure of the real estate market
will face a trend of transformation, with mid-to-high-end residential
properties, which can satisfy both the needs of improving living
environment and investment at the same time, witnessing accelerating
growth. As such, the Group will continue to launch high-end quality
residential properties which can satisfy the demand for improving living
environment, design diversified multi-function products, enrich the house
types and provide comprehensive facilities in order to further satisfy the
housing demand of all types of home buyers.

1. 2012 Results Overview

2012 major operating results figures:
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Deputy Chairman’s Report (continued)
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Business Review

Turnover

During the reporting period, although the control policy remained
strict and became more comprehensive, the results of the Group
was outstanding, the GFA delivered during the year was 512,783
sg.m, while turnover was HK$9,927 million.

According to the long term operating strategy and the product
market positioning of the Group, the key to win over market and
customers was to increase the performance-price ratio of the
products and enhance brand development. Under the backdrop of
the in-depth adjustment in the real estate market structure, putting
emphasis on product quality has not only become the competitive
advantage of the Group among the peers, but also generated
satisfactory recognized selling price for the Group. During the
reporting period, the average selling price of recognized sales of
the Group was RMB13,489 per sq.m.

Facing the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-
changing market condition, the Group had made reasonable plan
for its strategic development. We have implemented scientific
management and arrangement with respect to residential properties
driven by regular demand, residential properties for improving
living environment and high-end deluxe residential properties.
Through launching high-end deluxe residential properties which
can satisfy the demand for improving living environment, designing
diversified multi-function products, enriching house types and
providing comprehensive facilities, the housing demand of all types
of home buyers was further satisfied. The development of
investment property will become an important part of the Group's
future development strategy. In the coming vyears, investment
property will contribute a considerable amount of cash flow for the
Group, which in turn will promote the coordinated development of
properties for sale and for investment. The Group will operate its
projects with a strategic market point of view. Through our hard
work and solid project operations, we will expand our market
share, upgrade our brand value and gain recognition from the
market and society.
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Business Review (Continued)

Turnover (Continued)

Thanks to the rapid and continuous growth of the enterprise, the
adjustment in the product structure, and the implementation of
marketing strategies to improve service quality, during the reporting
period, the Group achieved a more balanced business plan with
geographically diversified distribution and a more reasonable
product portfolio. A satisfactory average selling price of contracted
sales and a substantial amount of unrecognized contracted sales
were recorded. We expect that the ideal contracted selling price
and the gradual recognition of deferred revenue will deliver the
Group outstanding results, which will be reflected in the upcoming
financial reports.

Turnover by geographical locations:

Deputy Chairman’s Report (continued)
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Region ith & BEBT A% ABEETT LE 51 (%)
Southern China T 5 [& 15 3,193 32 2,761 34
Northern China b & 45 2,639 27 3,283 41
Eastern China (& 0 4,095 41 1,964 25
Total ait 9,927 100 8,008 100

During the reporting period, the Group’s focus in the three Core
Economic Zones and the strategy of balanced distribution proved
to be successful. Southern China, northern China and eastern
China contributed HK$3,193 million, HK$2,639 million and
HK$4,095 million to the Group’s revenue respectively.

Turnover by business segments:
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2012 2011
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HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ mllllon Ratio (%)
Business Segment E 3 il BEET  EHI(%) BEETT Lt Bl (%)
Property development YR 8,852 89 7,170 90
Property investment MEKRE 253 3 148 2
Property management W EEIR 584 6 490 6
Hotel operations B E & B 238 2 200 2
Total = 9,927 100 8,008 100
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2. Business Review (Continued)

2. ¥¥EE®

Turnover (Continued) EEWA @)

During the reporting period, the Group’s strategy to optimize WMEBHA AEEEBELRALE HES
income structure and balance various sources of income had BWARBRERES —FEHR ——=
proven to be successful. In 2012, income from property FYEBRIRABSSS2EBT MEE
development was HK$8,852 million, income from property BUW A AS84EBIL  MEREWANEH
management was HK$584 million, income from property EEEWAD R A253EB T NR238EE
investment and income from hotel operations were HK$253 IT, ©

million and HK$238 million respectively.

Turnover by major projects:

BRIBHEBEDZEXERA:

2012 2011
—E--F —E——%

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region ith & BEERT H(%) BEATT L B (%)
Hopson Town CRa= el 1,584 16 934 12
Ningbo Hopson International City R A E BB 1,351 14 — —
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore KEEET LTS 567 6 62 1
Dreams World A 525 5 34 1
Yijing Huayuan Ehee=¥7) 455 5 117 1
Hopson International New City B BB FT 431 4 233 3
Hopson Yuting Garden B TR 420 4 5 —
Beijing Regal Court IERRIF R 365 4 15 —
Kylin Zone PR At 345 3 1,863 23
Hopson Dongjiao Villa BHERIBHIE 250 3 — —
Others Hib 3,634 36 4,745 59
Total &5t 9,927 100 8,008 100

International Garden

BEREKEE
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2. Business Review (Continued)

Turnover (Continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

2. ¥KMOEE»
EEIWAE

BREITBHRBEDZANHEE:

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——%

HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

Project Name HEE® BEET  HI(%) BB L 1 (%)
No. 8 Royal Park BHEBERKIR 1,956 14 1,612 13
Regal Park BHEBTITER 1,569 11 — —
Huizhou Regal Bay BN RE 1,482 10 1,179 10
Regal Riviera BN R 1,328 9 183 2
Hopson Regal International ERaa b=zl 1,259 9 547 5
Dreams World L 590 4 1,297 11
Hopson Times Garden B AR R 581 4 — —
Hopson Yuting Garden B EMTEER 531 4 255 2
Nanhai Junjing Bay MEERE 521 4 346 3
Hopson World Garden G RITE 506 4 — —
Others Hb 4,038 27 6,551 54
Total = 14,361 100 11,970 100
SEAREBARLE ¢« ZE—ZFFH

27



Deputy Chairman’s Report (continued)

BlERE®RE (&)

2. Business Review (Continued) 2. ¥KMOEE®
Project Completion Volume ITREIE
Completed area in 2012: —TE-_FRNTIEE:
2012 2011
=F-=F =T %
Area Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
Region ith & mHE  EAl(%) H & LE 51 (%)
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(75 3K) (FAHXK)
Southern China E 1 [ 1 219,163 29 283,340 46
Northern China b & 45 142,764 19 231,373 38
Eastern China (& 4 390,964 52 96,856 16
Total A% 752,891 100 611,569 100
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¥XKEOEE e

2. Business Review (Continued) 2.

Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Property development completed area (projected):

ITREIE#H)

MERE T TEREGE) :

2016

2013 2014 2015 and after

Completed ~ Completed  Completed  Completed

Area Area Area Area

ZE-RF

—E-ZF —F-@mNF —T-hF KA &

Project Name BHEEB EIEE EIEE EIEE ELIEE
(sq.m.) (sgq.m.) (sq.m.) (sgq.m.)

(F73K) (F73K) (F73K) (F73K)

Beijing Regal Court ERKITHR — — — 248,843
No.8 Royal Park ABEEEKSR 122,047 107,352 161,592 230,571
Beijing Desheng Building IR EBERE 53,542 — — —
Dreams World 1 SR AY 132,666 139,390 — 155,995
Yuhe Project £ IE B — 5,000 5,000 —
Hopson World Garden & At RIEE 160,063 — — —
Regal Park EHEBLTR — 157,252 138,300 67,455
Regal Court HRT= — — 138,021 —
Beijing Miyun EREE — — — 12,327
Jingjin New Town ORI — 116,266 8,793 3,653,876
Hopson Belvedere Bay EEEFE — 126,039 117,310 —
Tianjin Hopson International Tower REGHEHBEKXRE — — 197,590 —
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion X2 & £ BIR A E — — — 158,939
Dongli Lake Project REHEE — — — 1,130,000
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore KEEEITILTR 45,881 194,038 161,490 —
Hopson Ziyue Mansion EHEERNF — 84,749 117,696 194,042
Seasky Villa K& 55,497 2,288 52,113 1,161,936
Hopson Town aEWF 2,742 — — —
Sheshan Dongziyuan SILRE 40,842 15,503 — —
Hopson Yuting Garden BEME — 42,070 — —
Hopson International Plaza BEBEERES — 345,944 — —
Hopson Sheshan Huating Garden EERILES — — 133,486 —
Hopson Times Garden R ID: Sk — — 94,322 —
Asset Seascape Residence EHEEEARE 121,802 — — 136,052
Shanghai Tea Factory Project EBRERIER — — — 34,246
Hopson Yiting BEEE — 157,334 24,429 366,312
Hopson International City A EBEM 175,555 — — —
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2. Business Review (Continued) 2. ¥KEFRE®
Project Completion Volume (Continued) IRRTIE®

MERME T I EEGER) : (8)

Property development completed area (projected): (Continued)

2016

2013 2014 2015 and after

Completed ~ Completed = Completed = Completed

Area Area Area Area

—T-RF

—E-=F —Z-—mMFE _—_T-IF A 1%

Project Name HEERB EIEE EIEE EIEE EIEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)

(F73K) (F73K) (F73K) (F73K)

The Town of Hangzhou Bay B AU B R T 74,553 167,406 311,024 2,125,297
Hopson Sea Block EENE — 38,647 — 156,504
Gallopade Park BRIEE — — 91,660 347,869
Pleasant View Garden R= 2R — — — 69,437
Huanan New City I T — 34,988 50,000 1,445,144
Gallopade Park-South Court k=Mt — 9,349 — 87,109
Regal Riviera ®Iws — 74,659 114,574 578,956
Regal Villa 7 5 U 57,262 22,743 — —
Junjing Bay EgE 102,718 — 298,927 97,425
Hopson Plaza SHES — 56,818 171,651 —
Hopson Xijing Banshan aHEERF¥L — 90,566 63,744 1,040,570
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project EIN LS IE R — — — 193,513
Hopson Regal International T RBEE 82,400 16,081 — —
Hushan Guoji Villa 8 LU BB — 24,030 — 1,241,380
Qianjin Road Project A BRIE R — — — 244,300
TIT Project (Industrial Park) TITIEEBEE (Ex£R) — 56,700 251,302 76,739
TIT Project (International Park) TITIEE (BHEE) — — — 788,425
Huizhou Golf Manor AERBRRER 116,240 329,848 99,080 1,343,741
Huizhou Regal Bay BMNTERE 160,945 75,484 146,063 —
Hopson International New City & A B BT 135,552 249,906 142,422 319,041
Wanxiangying Project ERzEHE — — — 1,383,667
Shidai City R A3 — 295,520 120,000 1,061,578
Binhai City B 39,359 57,979 143,710 1,755,187
Regal Court HRL 28,665 29,480 39,477 —
Zhongshan Dongkeng Project FILERSIEE — — 30,000 507,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project L IEE — — 29,280 451,321
Total A% 1,708,331 3,123,429 3,453,056 22,865,054
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Business Review (Continued)

Land Bank

The Group possesses adequate land banks in the first-tier cities,
such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin, with excellent
qualities while at lower costs. This is also one of the Group’s core
competitive strengths to sustain persistent growth. In order to satisfy
the requirement of a steady business development, the Group
acquired new lands pursuant to a prudent and ordered principle.
During the reporting period, in order to maintain a balanced
product portfolio and further enrich the product mix, the Group
acquired two land plots with development area of 822,671 sq.m.
in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou and Shanghai. Moreover,
the Group acquired one parcel of land with development area of
421,948 sgq.m. in the second-tier city, Huizhou, which has vast
development potential. As at 31st December 2012, the land bank
of the Group was 33.24 million sq.m., which is sufficient for the
rapid development of the Group in the future.

The following is the new land that the acquisitions have been
completed in 2012:

¥XKEOEE e

T it k4

EEAELR BB BN XRESE B
MEBARXENELE B ASRE N L i #
H EHRERARBEEROZLES
BEZ— RAREREBRTNEBEE
T SEKBEEREFNRAE L
o WEMAN BREBERTFEHLE—D
LEEMREE AKEEEMN - B85
— BT EHIERE L IHBEERE
822,671 F K WHEEREHKK &
W — BN R TR ER
HHE421,948F AR - BT —ZF+ =
R=4+—HB "&E#A L1 H#E3,324
SR BHAMEEBERRRRERFT

“E-CFERRBHELEBNT

Group’s Gross
Project Name Interest Location of Project Floor Area  Saleable Area
HEERMW AEMzES BHBEBHM BEEE THHEEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(SF 75 K) (75 XK)
Guangzhou TIT Project 65% No. 489 Xingang Zhong Road, 788,425 788,425
(International Park) Haizhu District, Guangzhou
BEMTITER (REE) M T/EIRE T T 3R 4895%
Shanghai Tea Factory Project 100% No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu 34,246 34,246
District, Shanghai
PERERER EEmIEHEE #3005
Huizhou Xieyuan Houzi Bay 100% A lot at Houzaiwan, Aotou District, 421,948 421,948
Huizhou
BB TR BN TRSE AR & b BR
Total 1,244,619 1,244,619

At
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2. Business Review (Continued)

Usage and Location

2. ¥¥EE®
AERBE

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEERE (BB HXK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing  Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
BN =M = RiE L =29 At
Residential F= 6.38 6.81 3.09 5.14 3.19 0.27 24.88
Shopping arcade 2 4 1.02 0.24 0.31 0.17 0.60 0.02 2.36
Office I NES 0.61 — 0.42 0.20 0.15 — 1.38
Car parks =85 1.35 0.97 0.50 0.25 0.73 0.03 3.83
Hotels B IE 0.15 0.21 0.23 0.15 0.05 — 0.79
Total @Et 9.51 8.23 4.55 5.91 4.72 0.32 33.24
Development Status and Location BEM B R M E
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER (BB LK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing  Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
BN =M = RE L BR At
Completed properties & & i ) 3 0.52 0.26 0.44 0.40 0.33 0.14 2.09
Properties under BERAYE 1.35 0.90 1.39 0.83 1.57 0.18 6.22
development
Properties to be FERYE 7.64 7.07 2.72 4.68 2.82 — 24.93
developed
Total BE 9.51 8.23 4.55 5.91 4.72 0.32 33.24
Development Status and Usage BEME R ZE
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
THEERR (BB FHXK)
Shopping
Residential arcade Office Car parks Hotels Total
x= BE PRE  FES HIE At
Completed properties BRI % 0.86 0.38 0.21 0.36 0.28 2.09
Properties under development 2 & F7 ¥ % 4.21 0.46 0.52 0.81 0.22 6.22
Properties to be developed HERWME 19.81 1.52 0.65 2.66 0.29 24.93
Total Mt 24.88 2.36 1.38 3.83 0.79 33.24
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2. Business Review (Continued) 2. ¥XKEEEm®
Usage and Location (Continued) AERMEE @)
Title Status and Location FrBE AR R E

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER(BEF LK)

Guangzhou  Huizhou Beijing Tianjin ~ Shanghai Ningbo Total
&M BN = RE L& ER #et
Land use rights EEG L 1.62 1.60 1.91 0.87 1.96 0.32 8.28
certificates and 1% A &
construction works BEIRE
planning permits HEIFT A&
obtained
Land use rights ERESLIH 4.94 5.25 215 1.90 1.60 — 15.84
certificates obtained ~ {# FI ;5 {2
but without AEGER
construction works TiEHE
planning permits B
Construction land use 2 EU/F & — — 0.25 — 0.05 — 0.30
planning permits P 143 &
obtained but without  FF ] B {8 &
land use rights G i
certificates & A&
Grant of major BERIEHRX 2.95 1.38 0.24 3.14 1.1 — 8.82
approvals and REEH T
certificates not yet
obtained
Total HRET 9.51 8.23 4.55 5.91 4.72 0.32 33.24
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Principal Operating Strategies and Arrangement
in 2013

Adapting to control measures as a normal practice
and achieving the Group’s target of operating results

According to the Resolution of the Central Economic Work
Conference 2012-2013, it is foreseeable that the direction and
intensity of the control measures for the industry will remain
unchanged. The control measures of property industry market will
be constantly improved and the control measures will become
more market-oriented and legalized. Under the background of the
PRC’s macro-control policies, the Group will take into account of
its own condition, act in line with the requirements of
development, and be innovative and pragmatic. The Group will
also unceasingly enhance its project management standard, and
realize full process and standardized management via its well-
developed business model. We will leverage on our corporate
advantages as well as our diversified and professional development
strategies, so as to acquire more competitive strengths for securing
the goal of improving our operation results. The projected
completion area is 1.71 million sq.m. in 2013 and it is expected
that the results of the Group in 2013 will improve substantially on
the basis of the foundation laid in 2012.

Integrating financial management with asset
management to elevate the corporate’s profitability

In 2013, the Group will continue to implement a model which
integrated financial management with asset management, and
construct a financial and financing management system that meets
internal and external needs. The asset management of an enterprise
shall be closely related to its financial management activities.
Through the organic integration of financial and asset management,
the management level will be enhanced and the asset values will
be maximized, hence the corporate’s profitability will be improved
effectively. In addition, in order to provide an effective financial
security and a strong support for the rapid growth of the enterprise,
we will carry out financing activities based on our operational
visions and concepts.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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Principal Operating Strategies and Arrangement
in 2013 (Continued)

Diversified product structure and innovative business
developments of the Group

For the future development, the Group will continue to devote in
integrating and optimizing its product structure and business
portfolio. The Group will introduce diversified products that meet
market demands, which combine ordinary residential products,
medium to high-end products and high-end products, to the market
in a timely manner in order to meet the demand of different target
customers to the largest extent and form a complete residential
property chain. While securing the sustainable development of the
residential property, the Group will further expand its business to
those investment properties which can provide continuous and
steady cash flow, such as commercial properties, industrial
properties and tourism properties. For the construction of the
industrial parks, the Group will endeavor to provide outsourcing
services for SMEs in the PRC. It is expected that the diversified
residential product sales and the growth of the investment
properties cash flow will become the main profit drivers of the
Company in the future. We will integrate and optimize the Group's
product structure, while at the same time perk up its product
quality unswervingly. Through optimizing our management
structure, refining our management system, ensuring the quality of
projects and adopting strict standard of project acceptance, the
Group will strive to provide high quality products and
comprehensive services to the market and consumers.

Implementing the strategy of developing talents and
corporate strength and establishing a platform for
talent development

Human resources are the most valuable treasure of an enterprise
and a pivotal element in the development of an enterprise. In the
future, we need to further enhance the Company’s efforts in
developing and managing human resources. The Group has always
attached the highest importance to talent development and insisted
on looking upon the issue of human resources in an overall
perspective. We regard human resources as a strategic pillar which
can support the long-term development of the Company. Under
the guidance of the corporate vision, operational strategies and
core values, human resources are closely linked to the corporate
structure and corporate culture, which in turn boosts the results of
the enterprise in the short term and facilitates the realization of the
corporate strategies in the long run.
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Principal Operating Strategies and Arrangement
in 2013 (Continued)

Ensure product quality and put emphasis on bringing
brand effect into full play

Despite the structural adjustment of the real estate industry and the
increasingly fierce competition in the industry, the Group remains
committed to guarantee product quality, increase the added value
of the products and provide a perfect living environment for the
property owners. For a long period in the future, demand for
improving living environment will continue to be the supporting
force of the residential property segment. The residential
requirements of home buyers have sublimed to a reflection of value
and social status. As a guarantee of quality, goodwill and value, a
brand can increase the purchasing confidence of the property
buyers, and become a strong guarantee for an enterprise to expand
its market. For an enterprise, a comprehensive property
management in the later stage would not merely create more
added value and business opportunities, but can also create
intangible wealth in the forms of good reputations and market
recognitions.

Enhancing the informational construction and
improving the information database of the enterprise

In this information era, the enterprise is undergoing a reformation
from the original informatization of internal management to
informatization of business management. The informatization of
the real estate industry will be transformed into a new model,
under which system construction will be the core impetus of
informational construction. Under this new model, various
functions such as management, operation, supervision and services
can be performed through informatization, hence providing
practical instruction and basis for corporate operation. The
Company will overcome the data barrier and integrate isolated data
through the establishment of the portal of the Group, database of
the enterprise and staff interactive platform, so as to beef up the
working efficiency of the enterprise, advocate a simple, scientific
and efficient decision-making process, as well as share the data
among different systems and create “synergy effect” and let the
Group to take a real step into the new age of information.
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Principal Operating Strategies and Arrangement
in 2013 (Continued)

Taking timely moves and securing strategic land banks

Through rigorous scientific assessments and taking timely moves,
the enterprise can grasp the land market changes accurately, and
closely combine the land bank strategies with the development
strategy of the Group. In order to seek for the best investment
timing, the Group will analysis the impacts that may be brought by
urban development to property market with a forward-looking
prospective and seize the initiative. In the first-tier cities, such as
Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta and Huanbohai area, the
Group insists on adopting a prudent and flexible strategy for
increasing its land bank with high qualities. Meanwhile, the Group
also unceasingly strives for a balance of business distribution
among the second- and third-tier cities and creates complementary
effect, in order to satisfy the project development needs of the
Group for the next 3-5 years.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to improving its corporate governance
and transparency and at the same time enhancing the shareholders’
interests. During the year, the management and the respective
committees continued to operate in accordance with the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set out
on pages 113 to 132 of the Annual report.
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Awards

During the year, quality asset value motivation remained to be the
theme of the Group, we were keen to boost the brand image and
value of Hopson Development for 20 years — “High-end Property
Leader, Quality Life Operator”. The “China Real Estate Top 10
Research Team” published the “2012 Research Report on China
Real Estate Brand Value”, the Company was re-elected top 3 in “2012
Top 10 China Real Estate Company in terms of Brand Value (all
categories)”. The brand of the Group was highly praised by the
market and the society. We received the following titles and
awards: Top 100 Contemporary Real Estate Enterprises in China —
“2012 The Best Corporate Citizen Award”; The Golden Brick
Award of China Real Estate — “2012 Corporate Social
Contributions Award”, “2012 Comprehensive Quality Real Estate
Award”; 2012 China’s Blue-chip Real Estate Corporations of China
— “The Most Responsible Blue-chip Real Estate Enterprise”;
Guandian Real Estate — “2012 The Most Influential Real Estate
Enterprise in China”; 2012 Financial Entities in China —“2012 The
Most Valuable Brand of Real Estate Enterprise”; “2012 PRC Real
Estate Enterprise Annual Overall Ranking — Annual Golden
Enterprise”; “2012 Influencing Power — The Most Influential
Property Enterprise”; 2012 Leading Developers — “2012 Top 10
Leading Developers in terms of Overall Strength”; “2012
Benchmarking Award — Responsible Developer”; “2012 Top 20
Guangdong Property Enterprises with High Credit”; “2012 Top 10
Benchmarking Brand of Real Estate Enterprise in Southern China”;
2012 CIHAF — “Best Operator of Quality Asset Motivation in
China”.

In 2012, the Group was so glad that various projects in the six
major regions were widely recognized and well received by the
markets and the community. The No. 8 Royal Park, a typical
project of the Hopson Development’s high-end property series,
was honored to award “Asian Townscape Award” from United
Nations Human Settlement Programme in 2012, being the only
awarded project in China, and it also won “2012 The Most
Valuable Urban Luxury Residential Property for Investment”.
Hopson The Regal Park received “2012 The Most Influential Project
Award”. Hopson Dragon Mansion won several awards including
The Golden Brick Award of China Real Estate — #2012 Classical
Living Environment Award”, “City Landmark Century Award”, “2012
The Best-selling Property in Southern China” and “2012
Benchmarking Luxury Residential Property in Southern China”.
Hopson International City was awarded “2012 City Development
Contribution Award”. Hopson Binhai City received the titles of “CIHAF
2012 Leading Developer of Ecological Urban Bay Properties in
China” and 2012 Real Estate Value Ranking — “The Most
Influential Ecological Urban Bay Property”. Hopson Prime View
International and Hopson Regal Bay were highly recognized by
receiving awards including “2012 Golden Real Estate in Huizhou
— Standard Luxury Residential Property”.
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6. Appreciation 6. R

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management AANELHEEBRELBETIMNHD
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the B R R o
Group.

Zhang Yi EFFEILE

Deputy Chairman of the Board R

Hong Kong, 28th March 2013 B8 —T—=F=A=+N\H




Property Profile
/E LM

Beijing 1t X

1o

Beijing Regal Court
ERIITHR

Citta Eterna

Hopson International Garden
BEERTER

No. 8 Royal Park

BEE RS

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project
ERRITXEIEREB

Beijing Desheng Building
EREBRE

Kylin Zone

TR B AL

Dreams World

e SR

Shanghai £

220%

23.

24.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Hopson Town
BERF

Hopson Golf Mansion
BERBBRAAE
Sheshan Dongziyuan
RIUREE

Hopson Lantern Villa
a4 RAEE
International Garden
B EERIER
Hopson Dongjiao Villa
B ERARIE

Hopson Yuting Garden
B EHER

Hopson International Plaza

BERRES

10.

11.

12.

13.

Yuhe Project

ESZIRENE!

Hopson World Garden
BEHRIEE

Regal Park
BHEBETITR

Regal Court

RRTHR

Beijing Miyun

ItRTE

Tianjin X}

14.

15.

16.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Jingjin New Town

TR

Hopson Belvedere Bay
BREERE

Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

RESEBBEKRE

Hopson Fortune Plaza
BAEMEES

Hopson Sheshan Huating Garden
BERBEE

Hopson Times Garden
BHERTE—R

Asset Seascape Residence
BEMEERAHE

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
EBRERAR

Hangzhou #i /N

35.

Hopson World Trade Centre
& EBE O

Kunshan E1L

36.

Hopson Yiting
BAmEE
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17. Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
REGEBBEASE

18. Dongli Lake Project
REMHEHE

Dalian X

19. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore

KNESETILFER

Taiyuan XJ&

20. Hopson Ziyue Mansion
BERUT

Qinhuangdao ££ &
21. Seasky Villa
RECH

=3

Ningbo £,
37. Hopson International City
& A BIRR

Cixi &%
38. The Town of Hangzhou Bay

B AN E B TR

Taicang K2
39. Hopson Sea Block
Bt



Guangzhou EM Ny

40. Gallopade Park 45.
SRR

41. Pleasant View Garden 46.
BRRZEE

42. Huanan New City 47.
FERHTI

43. Gallopade Park — South Court

SR m

Huan bohai Economic Zone

RS enm

Regal Riviera

HIFHR

Regal Palace

HRELD

Yijing Huayuan
IR

Guangzhou Zhujiang

International Tower

BRI B K=

Beijing ~ Qinhuangdao
Hb= ZE2E Daljan
© ()
Tiaqjin
Taiyuan xRz
AR
()

Yangtze River Delta economic zone

BI=AMNcrn

Taicang
Kunshan K&
Ll Shanghai
Hangzhou L&

il © )

Pearl River Delta Economic Zone

BI=AMenm

Guangzhou
=M Huizhou
© O =p
Zhongshan
Fil

Ningbo
© s

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

Yunshan Xijing

ZIESR

Regal Villa

T

Junjing Bay

BERE

Hopson Plaza

BEES

Hopson Xijing Banshan
SEESFI

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project
MG SRR R
Hopson Regal International
BAETRER

Hushan Guoji Villa

4 LI BRI

Qianjin Road Project
AIERR A B

TIT Project (Industrial Park)
TITIEE (EXE)

TIT Project (International Park)

TITIEE (RIEH)

Huizhou E /M

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

Huizhou Golf Manor
BERBRHEER
Huizhou Regal Bay
BN R

Hopson International New City
B A BIRRE
Wanxiangying Project
BBEEE

Shidai City

iEHAw?]

Binhai City

Zhongshan (L)

65.

66.

67.

Regal Court

TR

Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILRSTIEE

Zhongshan Rainbow Project

FILFAEIRE
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Dongsishitiao

R+

Chaowainan Street
N eas
oA E
Ritan Park E
BER
Beijing Youyi Shop
RAE®E

Jianguomenwaida St.

BEMIIRE

Guangqumenwaida St.

ERPSMKRE

Jingsong Road
LR

Tonghui River 38 %7

— -

<

N

o
AN @‘

g\‘\'

0

3
+
n
1 4
&
=2 Chaoyang Park
w0 I INE
_g N. Chaoyang Road
s BRI
E B
S Chaoyang Road
%D A5 B
Sl Chaoyang District
HEE
Jianguo Road
EEIR

Guangqu Road &R 8%
K

Nan Mofang Road 7 [E 5 B

1. Beijing Regal Court
ERHKTHR

2. Citta Eterna

3. Hopson International Garden
BEBRIE

4. No. 8 Royal Park
EHEBE TS

5. Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project

IERRTXEHRE

6. Beijing Desheng Building
tREBAE

7. Kylin Zone
B B AL

8. Dreams World
A

9. Yuhe Project
EAIER

10. Hopson World Garden
BEHERIE

11. Regal Park
EHEBITR

12. Regal Court
7 =

13. Beijing Miyun

I REE

Beijing Regal Court ¢ 1t HEKTFS

23, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
L REBEER A LHK235 (FEH100% )

FHK
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 99,510

= NS e Construction to be completed

e T —RNFERMNUE in 2016 and after 248,843

R—ZZE——F+=A Land bank as at

=t+—Bz A 31st December 2012 348,353
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e o

Citta Eterna » Z5=%E

107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
It REE BB L1075 (FEH100% E )

FHK
Sq.m.

BExT Construction completed 23,725

RZZE——F+=A8 Land bank as at

=t+t—BztiFER 31st December 2012 23,725

Hopson International Garden &4 B EE

31, Guangqumenwaida Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
bR EARS B RIS A 43157 (FEH 100% H25)

FHK

Sg.m.
BEL Construction completed 3,208
W-ZZE——F+=H Land bank as at
=t+— Bz tHFEE 31st December 2012 3,208
No. 8 Royal Park « §4BEH85H
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
L RES BB B 3% 85 (JH80% M)

Sg.m.
BExL Construction completed 28,963
1% P LA T B il 52 T Construction to be completed
T =4 in 2013 122,047
e —T—UF in 2014 107,352
e —T—FHF in 2015 161,592
e —TE—RNFEKLIE in 2016 and after 230,571
W-_ZT——F+_H Land bank as at
=t—RztmFE 31st December 2012 650,525

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project ¢ 1t AR5 X EIEH

West Side of the East Second Ring Road, Dongcheng District, Beijing (97 % owned)
ERRHER R E A (EH 7% EH)

F 5K

Sg.m.

ExT Construction Completed 141,343
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at

= Bzt 31st December 2012 141,343

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR
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Beijing Desheng Building ¢ Jt &R A E

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)

ERFEHERE IS KRE 115 (FEH100% #E )

73K

Sq.m.
R IA T B E 5T Construction to be completed
e —T—=1F in 2013 53,542
R-—ZF—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2012 53,542
Kylin Zone o f%t
Interchange of Wangjing Street and Futong West Street, Wangjing,

Beijing (100% owned)

TREREEARAFNERERER (FEH100%E )

Sg.m.
BT Construction Completed 50,603
R-—ZF—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—B2zLiEE 31st December 2012 50,603

Dreams World o 58 4f

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River South, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
b 338 M B 8 3 R KO S AR S S AR 1 SR AR R 500 K (BB 100% E 3%)

Tk
Sq.m.
BT Construction completed 45,259
#5 7 LA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
T =4 in 2013 132,666
e T4 in 2014 139,390
e — T —RNENIIE in 2016 and after 155,995
R—_E——F+—A Land bank as at
=t+t—HBzZztHFEE 31st December 2012 473,310
Yuhe Project  E5A1HH
Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
TRRBEETXREEANFE R (FEF100% E )
FHK
Sg.m.
1R A TR ETET Construction to be completed
e — T4 in 2014 5,000
T T4 in 2015 5,000
R-_TE——F+_A8 Land bank as at
=t+—Bz A 31st December 2012 10,000
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Hopson World Garden ¢ &4t R iEE

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)
b ZUE M & IR 5 S B A5 1 SR A R 500 K (HEH 100% # 23)

FHK
Sg.m.
BRATERTET Construction to be completed
o —T—=4&F in 2013 160,063
R-ZE——F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+— Bz tEE 31st December 2012 160,063

Regal Park « 4B IF =

Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
ERBEMEKIEEFHAN (FEH100% E2E)

Sq.m.
BRATEBTT Construction to be completed
e — TN in 2014 157,252
e —ET R4 in 2015 138,300
T —RFRMNUIE in 2016 and after 67,455
RZFE—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLHHEE 31st December 2012 363,007

Regal Court » B FE =

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
TRHBEAREE2I ST RAEZEEE (HEH100% E =)

Sq.m.
BRATEBET Construction to be completed
T —HF in 2015 138,021
R-—ZZT——F+_A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2012 138,021
Beijing Miyun ¢ 1t RHE
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County (100% owned)
BEGREERELFKERM FEF100% =)

K

Sg.m.
5 LA TR B il 52 T Construction to be completed
e —T—RNERIE in 2016 and after 12,327
R=_ZT—=—F+=-A8 Land bank as at
=+—BzLiEE 31st December 2012 12,327

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR
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Tianjin

vV

14. Jingjin New Town
TR

15. Hopson Belvedere Bay
AEERE

Baodi District .. .
=K R 16. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

A AR
RiZ 17. Tianjin Hopson International

Beijing

N

. Heping District Mansion
L AYE REBEBRASE
18. Dongli Lake Project
REMIEA

Nankai District
HHE /

Jingjin New Town ¢ ZUEF

No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)
AEEEERRFHEKTIERE K (FEH23%EH)

IR
E Sg.m.
m B = ' i f ExT Construction completed 237,213

wdl Y BRI TEETT Construction to be completed
J" ri s e —T—[F in 2014 116,266
— e T —AHF in 2015 8,793
! s T NERNE in 2016 and after 3,653,876

\“, b 1 . A_T——F+=A Land bank as at
: =t+t—B2ZLTtf#E 31st December 2012 4,016,148
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Hopson Belvedere Bay ® &4 E 5%

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (90% owned)
REBEBELHABEME - BEHRRBEROD (FEHI0%ER)

AR
Sq.m.
HE R LA TR B R 52 T Construction to be completed
e T —[UF in 2014 126,039
e —T—FHF in 2015 117,310
RZE——F+_A Land bank as at
=+t— Bzt E 31st December 2012 243,349

Tianjin Hopson International Tower ¢ XE2& £ BB AE

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)
RENFERLZAFEEZERO (LRZBHHE) (FEHI8.9%ER)

5K
Sg.m.
N Construction to be completed
e —_T—FHF in 2015 197,590
RN-—_T—=—F+=-A1 Land bank as at
=+—HzLiEE 31st December 2012 197,590

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion © X325 4£ER AR

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin (100% owned)
REFEHREFZRAEEKELILERO (EH100%#)

Sq.m.
BRATEBTT Construction to be completed
o T —RFRMNUIE in 2016 and after 158,939
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=+—BztiuEE 31st December 2012 158,939

Dongli Lake Project » RE#EE

East Chitu of Chitu Town, Dongli Avenue North, Dongli Lake West, Dongli District,
Tianjin (100% owned)
ARERBERTEFRINER  REREBENL  REBUE (EHF100%EH)

oK
Sg.m.
R TRETT Construction to be completed
o —E—NFRIE in 2016 and after 1,130,000
R-ZE——F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HBztifFEE 31st December 2012 1,130,000

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR
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Dalian

19. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
ARESETLTR

“Dalian City Centre

RET @

Lushunkou Station

I JIE O 3

S

KREHRIE O B8 1L 48 B 4k B8 808 9% (HE A 100% RE %)

Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore ¢ KBS TILFS

808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)

FHk
Sq.m.
BExEL Construction completed 33,356
A TR ETT Construction to be completed
e T =4 in 2013 45,881
e —E U in 2014 194,038
—E—FHA in 2015 161,490
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2012 434,765
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Taiyuan

AR

-gr' Provincial Government i
N El

= BT z

% Municipal Government @ &

2 ERE) R 2 20. Hopson Ziyue Mansion
X =g Ed ™

2 z EEERNM

= g &
E EJ i
© 7z 5 o

E g ]

121

4 o 5

o &=

# ®

% ., =1 Yingpan Street

- WS EmE
b
29 B
= 2

Changfeng Street & @

Shanxi University
e
Xuefu Street 2 fif fi7 RS

Hopson Ziyue Mansion ¢ &4 £ ¥

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

WA AR MNEEUATE - AR & RE L (FEHF100% EH)

AR
Sg.m.
R LA TR B il 52 T Construction to be completed
e T —[UF in 2014 84,749
e —T—FRF in 2015 117,696
o — T —RFEKIAIE in 2016 and after 194,042
W-ZZ——F+=H Land bank as at
=+—BztHFEE 31st December 2012 396,487
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Qinhuangdao

21. Seasky Villa

Mengjiang Town REOA
=

| o=

S

Seasky Villa ¢ X &

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of
Liaodong Bay (51% owned)

BEREALF HEMEIRE (FEH51%EH)

75K
Sg.m.
A TR B 5E T Construction to be completed
o~ T —= in 2013 55,497
o — TP in 2014 2,288
e —EZ—FF in 2015 52,113
e —T—RNFRNE in 2016 and after 1,161,936
R-_E——F+=_A1 Land bank as at
=t—HztiFEE 31st December 2012 1,271,834
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Shanghal

22. Hopson Town
BEBFH

23. Hopson Golf Mansion
BERBARAS

Shanghai Honggiao International Airport

24. Sheshan Dongziyuan

e T
p B RILREER
25. Hopson Lantern Villa
AHEIEE
26. International Garden
. A HEBRIE
3

Sheshan
]

27. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
BERRIE

28. Hopson Yuting Garden
B EMHER

29. Hopson International Plaza

BEBRES

30. Hopson Fortune Plaza

EHEES

31. Hopson Sheshan Huating Garden
BERUEZHE

B

32. Hopson Times Garden
& AT#— 5%

33. Asset Seascape Residence

7}- % /N

34. Shanghai Tea Factory Project
EBFRERER
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Hopson Town ¢ &4 3B

518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LBRITERER5185 (HEE100% HE )

Fok
Sq.m.
ExT Construction completed 35,052
AT BT T Construction to be completed
o —_ T —— in 2013 2,742
RZTE——F+_A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2012 37,794
Hopson Golf Mansion « &£ 5B X LAE
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
- EEBEHEEIHERE10955 (EH100% &%)
: F I3k
1. Sq.m.
"
a 23T Construction Completed 1,950
it
#e i RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
] =+—BztkE#  31st December 2012 1,950
Sheshan Dongziyuan ¢ RILFREE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
i R L BB SR e R T MM % 1189 5% (ME 5 100% fE 2)
IR
Sg.m.
ExTL Construction completed 44,736
NN o Construction to be completed
e T =4 in 2013 40,842
o — T U in 2014 15,503
WZZE——F+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2012 101,081
Hopson Lantern Villa ¢ 54 BEZE
199, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
LEEREMBHIMEREKE199F (FEH100% E )
75K
Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 3,319
R—_E—=—F+=A Land bank as at
= t—HBztifFEE 31st December 2012 3,319
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International Garden ¢ S4B iEE

1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)
LIS RTER R R #1290 5% (FEH94% i)

Sq.m.
BEET Construction completed 7,380
n= —F¥+=A Land bank as at
:+ Bz tifEE 31st December 2012 7,380
Hopson Dongjiao Villa « &4 R 2B522
7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
LB RFTEERAR6IIFTH (FEH100% =)

FHk

Sg.m.
2L Construction completed 38,225
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—Hz LB 31st December 2012 38,225

Hopson Yuting Garden o &4 E

99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LBEREHBRBERIIN (FEH100% &)

3K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 44,423
# R LA TR B Al 52 T Construction to be completed
T — P 4 in 2014 42,070
R-—ZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2012 86,493
Hopson International Plaza « &4 B ES
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LB HE292 5 (FEH100% i)
73K
Sg.m.
HERATRHETT Construction to be completed
—E—mF in 2014 345,944
R-_ZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=+—BzLIumEE 31st December 2012 345,944

SHEAREBARLE ¢« ZT—ZFFHK
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Hopson Fortune Plaza » 48 E &5

483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£ O & R AT EX 483 5% (EH 100% fE %)

K

Sq.m.

25T Construction completed 51,200
R-_ZE——F+_—A4 Land bank as at

=+—BZLiEE 31st December 2012 51,200

Hopson Sheshan Huating Garden o RILESHE

Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LBNTIEEEME2ESR (FEH100%EH)

K
Sg.m.
15 P LA T B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
—ET—hF in 2015 133,486
R-ZZT——%+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztFEE 31st December 2012 133,486

Hopson Times Garden o &4 A0 # — 5

Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Zhen, Sanlin Zhen, Pudong New District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBBERFTE=ME=MEEHA14-1 (FEF100% ER)

Sg.m.
5 5 LA TR B Rl 52 T Construction to be completed
T —FHE in 2015 94,322
W—_ZT——%+—-A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzIHHE 31st December 2012 94,322
Asset Seascape Residence ¢ S4£EBSNEE
Lot E25, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan New District,

Shanghai (100% owned)

L35 & 1L BE B BR AN 8 KB RT3 B E25 (A 100% HE )

Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 6,237
AR A TR T Construction to be completed
e-T = in 2013 121,802
e —T—RNERMNUE in 2016 and after 136,052
RZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t—BzZEIHEFE 31st December 2012 264,091
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Shanghai Tea Factory Project o L3ERERIER

No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LT HBEE T K1300% (FEH100% #iE)

7K
Sq.m.
R TRBTI Construction to be completed
e —T—RFRMNUIE in 2016 and after 34,246
WRZZE——F+=H Lank bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2012 34,246

EEAIREEERAR ¢« —T——FFRK
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Hangzhou

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012

\ o~
o @ ‘ \
5 2 e TR
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Hopson World Trade Centre o #i/ 4 4 B & F iy

No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
MMTEME X B 1L EE327 5% (HEHI5% )

5K

Sg.m.

BExEL Construction completed 87,456
R-_ZE——F+_A1 Land bank as at

=t+t—BzZztiFEE 31st December 2012 87,456




Kunshan

£ LU

36. Hopson Yiting
BEEE

Hopson Yiting ¢ §4EZE

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River Zhoushi Town, Kunshan City
(100% owned)
B2 L1 v /B i 68230 ) 8% w55 B3 4B 7 DA R (BB 100% fE3E)

75K
Sq.m.
B IA T B il 52 T Construction to be completed
e —T—MF in 2014 157,334
o T T in 2015 24,429
o — T —RFKIAI% in 2016 and after 366,312
R-_ZTE——F+_-A8 Land bank as at
=t—HBztifFEE 31st December 2012 548,075
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37. Hopson International City
&£

Hopson International City « &4 BB

No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
HREBHAECR 1R (FEH100%EH)

73K
Sg.m.
2L Construction completed 140,761
% B A T B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——4F in 2013 175,555
R=ZZT—=F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2012 316,316
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38. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
B RN B

Cixi City
BE™M

Hogy
o3 ey uays

21
Aemssa

fenmssaidxa il

The Town of Hangzhou Bay e & 4= 1 4 8 B B %7 45

3 8 Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (100% owned)
ZEMMEBH BRI (FEF100% E )
F ok
Sg.m.
2% T Construction completed 12,183
B A T B i 52 T Construction to be completed
e —EZ—=% in 2013 74,553
« —T—UEF in 2014 167,406
e —T R4 in 2015 311,024
o — T NERNE in 2016 and after 2,125,297
RZZTE—=—F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t—HZLTibFHE 31st December 2012 2,690,463

BEAIREEBRAR « ZE—ZFFRK
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Taicang

AW )

39. Hopson Sea Block
BEMHE

Liujiagang Town

BIRE A

Hopson Sea Block ¢ &4 43

No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)
AR BT 5885 (HEH 100% i)

K
Sg.m.
N S Construction to be completed
e T —F in 2014 38,647
e T —RNFERNE in 2016 and after 156,504
R-—_ZT——F+_-A Land bank as at
=t—BztifEE 31st December 2012 195,151
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58.

Gallopade Park
=

Pleasant View Garden

R 2 E

Huanan New City

2 7 T

Gallopade Park — South Court
b SR

Regal Riviera
HiLwm s

Regal Palace

R%;E

Yijing Huayuan
BERES

Guangzhou Zhujiang
International Tower

BMHIBRAE

Yunshan Xijing

ELES

Regal Villa
o= I

Junjing Bay
ERE

Hopson Plaza

BERES

Hopson Xijing Banshan
BERSFU

Guangzhou Jiufo
Machao Project

BM S EEE

Hopson Regal International

BETRER

Hushan Guoji Villa
# LU BB

Qianjin Road Project
AIE SRR B

TIT Project (Industrial Park)
TITHA (EXE)

TIT Project (International Park)
TITIER (RIER)

SHEAREBARLE ¢« ZT—ZFFHK
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Gallopade Park « 2R EE

No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95 % owned)
BN RSAE 1L KR E 1905 (EH95% =)

FHK
Sq.m.

2w Construction completed 2,445

1% B LA T B il 52 T Construction to be completed

«—T—F in 2015 91,660

o —T—RFKIAIE in 2016 and after 347,869

MN—ZT——%F+—-H8 Land bank as at

=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2012 441,974

Pleasant View Garden » 2= ZF

No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
B M ERE B M KER 10285 (HH 94.98% &)

FHK
Sg.m.
25 L Construction completed 20,625
1R A TR EE T Construction to be completed
e —E—NERLAE in 2016 and after 69,437
R-_TE——F+_A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiifEE 31st December 2012 90,062
Huanan New City * ZERHH
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BENEEEEREARE (EH100%#EH)
FHK
Sq.m.
2L Construction completed 92,008
NV N Construction to be completed
e T UL in 2014 34,988
e —T—FRHF in 2015 50,000
e — T NERE in 2016 and after 1,445,144
R=ZT—Z=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HBztiFEE 31st December 2012 1,622,140
Gallopade Park — South Court * B85t
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95 % owned)
B RSATE H 1L KR E 1905 (EH9I5% %)
FHK
Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 14,550
5 5 LA TR B Rl 52 T Construction to be completed
o~ T4 in2014 9,349
e —T—RFENIIE in 2016 and after 87,109
RZT—Z=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiEE 31st December 2012 111,008
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Regal Riviera ¢ FRIFE R

No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
BEMNEREEMNRBEREH1R (HEF99.5%ERE)

F K
Sq.m.
BT Construction completed 58,064
PR A TR T Construction to be completed
e —T— U4 in 2014 74,659
e —ET—FRHF in 2015 114,574
T NERLE in 2016 and after 578,956
RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=E+t—Hz LTS 31st December 2012 826,253

Regal Palace * #

RER

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JEE 0 5 2R & 5% e B N K2 (BE B 100% fE 23)

FHk
Sg.m.
ExTL Construction Completed 4,750
R=ZT—Z=—F+=A Land bank as at
=+—BzLEE 31st December 2012 4,750
Yijing Huayuan » B35
Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
EMNES®RERERR (EH100%E %)
Sq.m.
L Construction completed 25,914
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiifFEE 31st December 2012 25,914
Guangzhou Zhujiang International Tower ¢
BEMNECIEIR KE
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BEMNEFEERER114F 11655 (FEH100% £ %)
oK
Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 95,746
RN—_ZTE——F+=-A1 Land bank as at
=t+t—BzLTMH#E 31st December 2012 95,746

SHEAREBARLE ¢« ZT—ZFFHK

63



L

Yunshan Xijing ¢ ZILER

Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)

BMNBEBEMNKEL (FEH70% EH)

Tk
Sq.m.
ExT Construction completed 11,655
R-E——F+—-A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BzZzHEE 31st December 2012 11,655
Regal Villa o 1L
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BMNR T EREEE (FEHF100%E)
FHK
Sq.m.
Exl Construction completed 20,295
BRI TEETET Construction to be completed
o« — T =1 in 2013 57,262
e —T—PUL in 2014 22,743
RN-ZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HBztLtifFEE 31st December 2012 100,300
Junjing Bay « =&
Huanggqi Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
EMNFHLESERBEE N KE(HEE100%E=)
FHK
Sq.m.
EET Construction completed 59,742
BRI TEETET Construction to be completed
« —_ T —= in 2013 102,718
e —T—AF in 2015 298,927
T NEFERLE in 2016 and after 97,425
R_ZT—Z—F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiifEE 31st December 2012 558,812

Hopson Plaza « 4 &5

Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to the

governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou

(100% owned)

BEMNEBHRERENAEDNEESRIELZ BRERFHE) (FEH100%#EH)

FHK
Sq.m.
1% B LA T B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
e — T[4 in 2014 56,818
e —ET—FHF in 2015 171,651
R-_TBE——F+_—f8 Land bank as at
=+—BZtitEE 31st December 2012 228,469
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Hopson Xijing Banshan ¢ &4 & F¥ 1L

Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)
5 )N 16 8 & 30 55 $E AT A5 i K BB (B 95.5% M 28)

75K
Sg.m.
% 5 LA TR B il 52 T Construction to be completed
e T[4 in 2014 90,566
e —T R4 in 2015 63,744
e T —RNEFENLIE in 2016 and after 1,040,570
RZE——F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+— Bzt E 31st December 2012 1,194,880

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project « E/MN ML F#EE

Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)

EMNFHETEITEN (FEH55%EH)

750K
Sg.m.
= NS Construction to be completed
e — T —RNENIIE in 2016 and after 193,513
RZT—=—F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiifEE 31st December 2012 193,513

Hopson Regal International ¢ &4 % SER

No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BEMN B ERE & R 5188 5% (FEH 100% fEi5)

Sq.m.
5 5 LA TR B el 52 T Construction to be completed
o T —=4F in 2013 82,400
o T[4 in2014 16,081
RZTE——F+=A8 Land bank as at
=t —HZzLifEE 31st December 2012 98,481
Hushan Guoji Villa  5# L EIFR
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
1230 T T R SR E R E (EH 100% &)

FHK

Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 4,809
% 5 LA TR B el 52 T Construction to be completed
e —T—UF in 2014 24,030
e — T —RNERIIE in 2016 and after 1,241,380
WZZ——F+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BZLEE 31st December 2012 1,270,219

SHEAREBARLE ¢« ZT—ZFFHK
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Qianjin Road Project * AEIRIEHR

South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
& N 5 Bk B A 3% BAF (BEE 100% RE 25)

75K

Sq.m.
R IA T B E 5T Construction to be completed
« TE—XNERLAE in 2016 and after 244,300
R-_ZT——F+_A8 Land bank as at
=+—BZz iR 31st December 2012 244,300
TIT Project (Industrial Park) « TITIE B (E % EH)
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65 % owned)
BMERE RS NEXBN (FEF65%EsR)

Sqg.m.
HER LA TR B 52 T Construction to be completed
s —E U in 2014 56,700
e —T—FHF in 2015 251,302
o — T RFRKIAIE in 2016 and after 76,739
RZZE——F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BZ i E 31st December 2012 384,741

TIT Project (International Park) e TITIE B (Rl E E)

No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (65 % owned)
[N T 8 TR & B T BR 489 5% (JEH 65% i)

Sq.m.
BRATERBTET Construction to be completed
« — T RNERIE in 2016 and after 788,425
RZE——F+=A4 Land bank as at
=t+—HBzimFEE 31st December 2012 788,425

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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135 Government
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Huizhou

\ Maon New Zone

BrHE

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Huizhou Golf Manor
EERBRER

Huizhou Regal Bay
BEMwmRE

Hopson International New City

B L BRI

Wanxiangying Project
BREHEA

Shidai City
Ry X

. Binhai City

BB

Huizhou Golf Manor « §£5BXHE

No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
EMHKOBERMRE15 (FEHF100% E =)

FHk

Sg.m.

B 5L Construction completed 111,496
A TR ETT Construction to be completed

e —T—=4 in 2013 116,240

e —T—UF in 2014 329,848

e —T—FHF in 2015 99,080

T NERLE in 2016 and after 1,343,741

R=ZT—=F+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BztiR#EE 31st December 2012 2,000,405
EHEEREEERAT ¢« —E——FFH
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Huizhou Regal Bay ¢ =M% 53

No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
EMTTEEX S — %25 (FEH100% EiE)

AR
Sg.m.
ExT Construction completed 20,403
1 B LA T B il 52 T Construction to be completed
e T =% in 2013 160,945
o« —T P4 in 2014 75,484
e —T—HF in 2015 146,063
WR-ZZB——F+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BzZztHFEE 31st December 2012 402,895

Hopson International New City o & 4= Bl %73

The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)

EMNAOROLE=ZRRES (HEH100% E )

oK
Sg.m.
255 L Construction completed 47,597
% 2 AT B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
e T =% in 2013 135,552
o — T —[UF in 2014 249,906
e —_T—FHF in 2015 142,422
o —_T—RERIE in 2016 and after 319,041
R-E——F+—-HA Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2012 894,518

Wanxiangying Project « B & 15 H

Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
BT HHE AP AFEFEE100%#EE)

Sq.m.
HERIA TR T Construction to be completed
e —E—NFRIUE in 2016 and after 1,383,667
R-_TE——F+_A8 Land bank as at
=t—HBztifFEE 31st December 2012 1,383,667
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Shidai City » B4

Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)

K 55 G B KW B R i BR (B 100% #E 3%)

75K
Sg.m.
TR A TR T Construction to be completed
e — T U in 2014 295,520
o —ET—HF in 2015 120,000
s T NERLE in 2016 and after 1,061,578
R-ZEBE——F+=HA Land bank as at
=t+—Hz:HFE 31st December 2012 1,477,098

Binhai City * &3

The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)

AREEBREZEANEBRAEEAR (FEH100%#)

oK
Sg.m.
25 L Construction completed 77,042
R TRETT Construction to be completed
o — T —— in 2013 39,359
e —T—[UF in 2014 57,979
o —T—FF in 2015 143,710
e — T —RNEFEKLIE in 2016 and after 1,755,187
NR—_E——F+—_H~ Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiRFE 31st December 2012 2,073,277

EHEEREEERAT ¢« —E——FFRH
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65. Regal Court
ER )

66. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILRNIAR

67. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
I IAA

Regal Court » #FR%E

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
R L i K KE B 3 EE B R (R 100% RE a%)

F Ik
Sg.m.
B Construction completed 24,182
B AT B ) 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T —— in 2013 28,665
e — T —[yF in 2014 29,480
e —T—FF in 2015 39,477
R-E——F+—A8 Land bank as at
=t —BZLFEE 31st December 2012 121,804
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project ¢ FILRIEE

Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
Rl ERS (FEH 5% )

FHK
Sq.m.
BRATEBTLT Construction to be completed
T —FHEF in 2015 30,000
e —E—RFRMNUE in 2016 and after 507,257
R—ZE——F+=-H8 Land bank as at
=+—BziEE 31st December 2012 537,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project ¢ LU IEE
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
FLTABRIREE (EH9I5% )
FHK
Sg.m.
BRUA TR Construction to be completed
e T —FHF in 2015 29,280
o — T RFKIAIE in 2016 and after 451,321
RN-_TE—=—F+=-A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiifEE 31st December 2012 480,601

EHEEAREEERAT « —E——FFRH
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Investment Property Factsheet

REWMZ—ER

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December

RZE-—ZF+ZRA=+—HB SEKREMX

2012 are as follows: FHomT
Approximate
Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
BMEE
Location B SEF RS BRTAR BEERA
(sq.m.)
(75 3K)
Hopson Plaza A B K BE 100%  Commercial/office/ 220,545
Guangzhou Avenue South ERE retail and carparking
Haizhu District &M EEYS PN
Guangzhou isEo ZEREES
Guangdong Province EMKERE
Mainland China BHERES
Hopson International Plaza ENEIPN 75 100%  Commercial/office/ 313,161
292 Jiefang iz} retail and carparking
Yangpu District %8 & BE/MAE
Shanghai 29245 ZEREFEHES
Mainland China EHEEERES
Guangzhou Zhujiang SAICPN 123 100%  Commercial/office/ 97,873
International Tower ERE retail and carparking
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road 3 BE MRE/
Yuexiu District i TEREES
Guangzhou MERIT4E 11655
Guangdong Province &N KT
Mainland China BB AE
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre  H B K i 95%  Commercial/office/ 92,418
327, Tianmushan Road HiTE retail and carparking
Xihu District N [EEYE N4
Hangzhou Fispil TEREES
Zhejiang Province R B L3275
Mainland China MM E £ B E $ L
Beijing Desheng Building oK B 100% Office/ 59,394
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street i retail and carparking
Xicheng District ak = N
Beijing B PIIPRE 1157 ZEREES
Mainland China EREBRE
Hopson Fortune Plaza B K BE 100%  Commercial/office/ 53,614
483, Feihong Road 8 retail and carparking
Hongkou District A& [HEVE VN
Shanghai 7R 4T B 483 5% TEREES
Mainland China BEMERES
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Directors’ Profile

EEEHN

Executive Directors

HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 52, has been a Director since 1997. He is
the Chairman of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty years’ experience in trading,
construction, property investment and development. He is also a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, an Honoured Citizen of
Meizhou of Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of
Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of Corporate
Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda Properties
Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the father of Ms. Chu Kut
Yung, an Executive Director of the Company.

KB 52 B NMNAEFHEARREE - RAKXAA
TERAEBNER —CARA - REEEES ZEE Y
ERERBRITEHEEE _THEER -RAASZERRE
B EREWMNMAETRNERCEZRREA XA S
R-REERFEBEBRATDZH —ES REEFREB
BEIRPIEXVE MEBEXRARAZEERR - WIFAER
AIREZZEERB REERARABNTEERBRLLZ

g

N

%

o

ZHANG Yi, aged 50, joined Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited as an Assistant General Manager in January
2003 and was promoted as a Deputy General Manager of the
Bank in December 2003. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a Director
and an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in March 2005. He
was also a Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank and the Chairman
of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited, both
companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of ICBC (Asia). Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shanghai University of Finance &
Economics with a Master's Degree in Money & Banking and
qualified as a Senior Economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhang was the Deputy Governor of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited, Shanghai Municipal Branch. Mr. Zhang Yi
has been appointed as an Executive Director, Deputy Chairman
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 7th November
2011.

REE S50 R_ETE=F-AMAPEIERT(EMB
BARRYIPARLE  UR-ZZ=F+_" AR RZRT
BlIAKE - REANR TR F=-ARZERZRTESTE
BETBRAH THEEIREMNENBRARERRTES
ERIRDTMNREEBARAAEER - RELFENLEY
RAE BEERTERLBM YRESMEBEMER -
RIMAREEER  RAELASTEIFHRIT LETHTEIT
K- BZZ——F+—-ALBR RXELEEZEREARA
WITEF BIEFERMBHEE-
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Directors’ Profile (continued)

EESEHN (E)

XIANG Bin (resigned on 28th March 2013), aged 66, has been a
Director since 2001. He was the Deputy Chairman of the
Company and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Xiang is a Chinese Registered Superior Career Manager in the
PRC and a senior engineer. Mr. Xiang was a senior management
staff of a public listed company before joining the Group in
February 2001. He has over thirty-seven years’ of experience in
construction and administration management.

ER(R=—ZZE—=F=ZA=Z1+N\BBEME) 665 B _FTZT—
FHAARARREE - FALARABEELARAE THEAR
AZEE -BEAEHEETREELAGMBESCEMNS A TIZAM
B RN T —FAMBAEER  BHEAEAR—LTA
ANERERBAE MERBERTHEE T TEHRABEBEB=T
tFELER -

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012

AU Wai Kin, aged 56, has been an Executive Director since 1997.
Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is also a director of our
other member companies. Mr. Au graduated from Zhongshan
University in Guangzhou and has over twenty years’ of
experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real estate
investment and property development.

BEZ som B NMNEtFHERTEF -BEER N
NEFMEREE YAXREBEMKE QAR ZEE - KE
ERBEMPLARE -BAEEBFTEE HMMBRE  HER
BERMEZERTEER - TFER-



Directors’ Profile (continued)

EE=/n

(%ﬁ

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 48, has been an Executive Director since
21st January 2010. He is also a Vice President of the Group and
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liao
graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and
obtained a Master degree from the University of Western Sydney
of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He worked in
government department and engaged in real estate investment
and business management for over ten years and has extensive
experience in working with government departments, legal affairs
and investment development.

BEE 48 BT TF A+ - HEHENRTE
E RN RAEHBERENIARAETHBRARZES - 2
FEZERBMPILARENEENERENSBRLSZML -2
FER_EE_FNREAEE - WSEBFBPIER - K E
FHEREREEEET+HF BRTEENEERN
MPIRERER REMBITIENEIELR -

il

CHU Kut Yung, aged 25, studies in the Renmin University of
China, majoring in Finance with solid knowledge in finance
principles and comprehensive investment skills. She has been
appointed as the Executive Vice President of the Company since
March 2012 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2011. She was an intern of the Group in
2007 and 2008, and held the position as Assistant to President
from 2009 to 2011. She has worked in areas relating to financial
and human resource management of the Company, and thus
accumulated extensive and professional experience in such areas.
She is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Ms. Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company.

KER 5% RERPEARAZZRESEE A% E
MERERABNREZANREEBERE - R -_FT——F=
AREZERARRAEBEER R_T——F+ - AEZ
EE$“ﬁﬁﬁ%$ E-_ZZELFN_FTENFHEELE
lm*ﬁ RIFZENFE_T——FERERYE I
DEARR TM% ADTBETEIE BET —EWUE
EEMANERERBEEETERR - R/ EARAREE
EGNE - RRETR/ARAEFARRKEEZ LR -

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR

75



76

Directors’ Profile (continued)

EEEHN (F)

ZHENG Shao Hui, aged 48, has been the Executive Vice
President of the Group since 2012. He is an engineer. Mr. Zheng
served as the general manager of the Beijing regional office of
Guangdong Hanjiang Construction Installation Project Limited,
and then joined the Group as the Director of the Project
Management Department in 2011. He is also the managing
director of Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Company Limited
and Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Decoration Engineering
Co., Ltd. Mr. Zheng graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering. He has
over 20 years’ experience in real estate development and
management. Mr. Zheng has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 28th March 2013.
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Directors’ Profile (continued)

EEEHN (F)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIYFHTES

LEE Tsung Hei David, Chris, BBS, /P, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director.
David C Lee is the Chairman and Managing Director of DH Group Investment Ltd, DH
Capital (HK) Ltd, DS Capital Group Co Ltd, DS Transport Interchange Development Ltd
and Guangzhou DHC Investment Advisory Ltd. He is also the Chairman of the
Investment Committee of Cheever Real Estate Master Fund SPC, Chief Development
Officer of Hong Kong Shanghai Medical Development Ltd. He qualified as a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and was registered as an Authorized Person in 1977. He is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the Incorporated Society of
Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr.
Lee is a former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government
“Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former member of
the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former director of Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former Council member of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a former member of the Land and Building Advisory
Committee, and the Steering Committee on review of the Urban Renewal Strategy. He is
currently a Visiting Professor of the Guangzhou Urban Mass Transit Training Institute, a
member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of our Board since 1998.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee of the Company.
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Directors’ Profile (continued)

EESEHN (E)

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his professional
accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr.
Wong is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an ordinary member of
The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an
associate member of the Certified General Accountants of
Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in various renowned auditing
firms in Hong Kong with over 20 years of experience in handling
auditing, financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong is
currently appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of Audit Committee of several listed companies in
Hong Kong. He has also assumed the duty of financial controller
for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and Canada for
over ten years. Mr. Wong is presently practicing as a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is knowledgeable with
expertise in financial accounting, taxation, system development,
internal control and company management. Mr. Wong has been
a member of our Board since 1998. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee of the Company.
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TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr. Tan currently
serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm. Prior
to this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the Hong
Kong investment banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr. Tan
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from City University in the United States of America. He is
an Associate Member of the Canadian Certified General
Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in the banking
industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior
positions in several major and international financial institutions
including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a
wide breadth of experience in corporate and investment banking
as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the
Company.
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Senior Management'’s Profile
SREEEFN

ZHU Guoxing, aged 64, Vice President of the Group, President of Commercial Property Headquarters and General Manager of
Eastern China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a Master degree. He is a senior economist and a certified
accountant in the PRC. He was appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei District of Shanghai, Head of
Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head of Audit Bureau in Pudong New Area of Shanghai and the President of Shanghai
Lujiazui Holding Company since 1988. He is the Chairman of Building Association in Lujiazui of Shanghai, Vice Chairman of
Commercial Association in Pudong New Area of Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has substantial management experience in commercial
property industry and has in-depth knowledge in the operation and administration of office building, hotel, shopping mall and
hi-technology software park. He is familiar with the macro economy and capital market activities.
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LIU Jian, aged 45, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from the Chongqing Institute of Architectural Engineering
with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified first-class architect and a professor-level senior engineer in the PRC. He served as the
Vice-President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design, Deputy General Manager of Beijing Zhujiang Real
Estate Development Limited and Deputy General Manager of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development Limited
respectively since 1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2002. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real estate planning,
design and engineering management with extensive practical operations experience.

2R o5 AEERAR - FEEEEXNEERETRER 2T 24 - BR - REMEEM  HEASRT
B BN/ \NFEEEFTEMAZERTARNRERE R ERKIFHEREAR ARG REE RIEREa L1
FTEHERZBERAFBEKLE - — T2 _FNBREASEIEH REELERFLENEHERIIRS TEE

BEE BEREBFEEREE -

ZHANG Liming, aged 46, Assistant to President of the Group. She graduated from the Xinjiang University of Education and is an
economist. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked in Shenzhen Taxation Bureau and had been engaged in real estate
investment, operation and management for over ten years. She has substantial experience in government public relations and
investment and development.
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Senior Management’s Profile (continued)
SREERERN (&)

ZHU Jinli, aged 41, Assistant to President of the Group and Chairman of Guangzhou regional company. She is a postgraduate
student of EMBA School of Business Administration, Sun Yat-Sen University. Since 1995, she joined Guangdong Pearl River
Investment Holdings Co., Limited, Hopson Development Group Limited, Guangdong New South Group Limited and
Guangdong Zhuguang Group Limited respectively, served as the Project Manager, General Manager of Marketing Department,
General Manager and Assistant to President. Ms. Zhu Jinli has engaged in real estate operation and management for sixteen
years, with substantial management experience in real estate marketing, investment and operation. She also possesses extensive
relations with government and a vast social network.
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BAO Wenge, aged 37, Assistant to President of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Real Estate Operation Management
and joined the Group in 1999. Mr. Bao worked in the real estate industry for over ten years and had successfully carried out
several large-scale real estates projects. He is familiar with the operation of commercial, office building, residential, hotel and
property management. He has over ten years of experience in real estate operation and management, marketing and operation
management.
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Financial Review
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Turnover

@)

(ii)

Recognised Sales

Faced with the environment of a more in-depth austerity measures
in China’s real estate industry, the Group produced a turnover of
HK$9,927 million in 2012, up 24% comparing to HK$8,008
million of 2011. The overall GFA delivered by the Group in 2012
was 512,783 square metres (2011: 391,277 square metres), which
mainly included Hopson Town in Shanghai, Ningbo International
City and Hopson Regal Seashore in Dalian.

The overall average selling price in respect of delivered and
completed properties decreased by 11% to RMB13,489 per square
metre (2011: RMB15,175 per square metre). In Guangzhou, due to
the delivery of some commercial properties and high-end project
Yijing Huayuan, the recorded average selling price increased 37%.
However, under the influence of changes in delivered projects and
product mix, the selling prices of other regions dropped.

Contracted Sales

Though the macro-control of the real estate market was not
loosened in 2012, the accumulated regular demand started to stoke
the desire of flats purchasing. During the year, the Group recorded
a total of RMB11,644 million contracted sales (2011: RMB9,944
million), up 17%. The average contracted selling price increased
by 14% to RMB17,259 per square metre (2011: RMB15,110 per
square metre).

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin were
RMB4,640 million, representing 40% of the total contracted sales
of the Group in 2012. Eleven projects were on sale in Beijing and
Tianjin, of which No.8 Royal Park, Hopson Regal Park, Hopson
Dreams World and Hopson World Garden were the major sales
contributors.

Twenty property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB5,477 million in 2012, representing
47% of the total contracted sales of the Group. The major projects
in Guangdong were Regal Riviera, Hopson Regal International,
Nanhai Junjing Bay and Huizhou Regal Bay.
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Financial Review (continued)

Bt %% o B (42

There were twelve property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising Hopson Times Garden, Hopson Yuting Garden,
Sheshan Dongziyuan and Hopson Dongjiao Villa. Contracted sales
of Shanghai amounted to RMB1,527 million, representing 13% of
the total contracted sales of the Group.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and design
costs and capitalised interest. It was pushed up by the increase in
turnover and capitalised interest, which nudged cost of sales up by 31%
to HK$5,684 million (2011: HK$4,329 million) and, as a percentage of
turnover, increased 3% to 57% (2011: 54%).

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin dropped from 45.9% in 2011 to 42.7% in 2012 was
mainly attributable to the increase in the proportion of lower-priced
products in recognised sales for the year which resulted in a decrease in
the overall selling prices.

Gain on Disposal of Available-for-sale Financial Assets

During the year, the Group recorded a gain of HK$1,770 million on
disposal of its available-for-sale financial assets (i.e. shares of the BBMG).

Other Income/Gains, Net

Other income/gains amounted to HK$58.9 million in 2012 (2011:
HK$361.8 million) comprising (1) dividend income of HK$131.7 million
from investment in listed and unlisted securities; (2) grants amounting to
HK$3.8 million from government authorities in Mainland China; (3) fair
value gain of HK$2.1 million from listed investments; (4) net exchange
gain of HK$26.9 million; and (5) impairment loss on other assets of
HK$105.6 million.
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Financial Review (continued)
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Operating Costs

The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration increased 7% to HK$1,861 million (2011: HK$1,738
million). The increase was primarily attributable to (1) the Group'’s
greater marketing efforts in response to changes in the market and greater
outlay on selling and promotional activities as more new projects were
launched as compared to last year; (2) the higher remuneration costs and
the employment of additional staff for new projects; and (3) the
expansion of property management projects and the opening and full
operation of a Chinese restaurant and other operating expenses.

Finance Costs

Gross interest expenses before capitalisation in 2012 increased to
HK$3,128 million (2011: HK$2,374 million), up HK$754 million or
32%. The increase was primarily attributable to the increased bank and
financial institution borrowings and loan interest rate. The effective
interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was approximately 8.5%
per annum (2011: 7.9%).

Share of Loss of Jointly Controlled Entities

Share of loss of jointly controlled entities represented the Group’s share
of loss of HK$0.15 million from two jointly controlled entities located in
Beijing and Guangzhou.

Taxation

The effective tax rate was 32% in 2012, down 4% compared with last

year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the tax exemption on the
gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets.
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Financial Review (continued)
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$2,983 million for 2012 (2011:
HK$1,430 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$1.72. Excluding the
effect of the net of tax gain from investment property revaluation of
HK$161 million, gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets of
HK$1,770 million, the net of tax impairment loss on other assets of
HK$79 million, underlying profit was HK$1,131 million, down HK$218
million or 16% as compared with previous year. The overall decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in net exchange gain.

Segment Information

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(89%). In 2012, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Pearl River Delta, Yangtze River
Delta and Huanbohai Area. Eastern China (including Shanghai,
Hangzhou and Ningbo) contributed 41% to the total revenue of the
Group, followed by Southern China (including Guangzhou, Huizhou and
Zhongshan) (32%) and Northern China (including Beijing, Tianjin,
Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) (27%).

Financial Position

As at 31st December 2012, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$117,481 million and its total liabilities came to HK$72,486 million,
representing an increase of 7% and 10% respectively as compared to
previous year. The increase in total assets was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (1) the decrease in available-for-sale financial assets; (2)
the increase in development cost incurred in the construction and
completion of projects, and (3) increase in balance of bank deposits.
Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily attributable to
the combined effect of (1) the additional borrowings obtained, and (2)
increase in deferred income.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2012 was 1.97 (2011: 2.16).
Equity at 31st December 2012 increased 2% to HK$44,995 million from
31st December 2011, primarily due to the combined effect of (1)
increase in profit attributable to equity holders during the year; and (2)
decrease in assets revaluation reserve and currency translation
differences reserve. The net-asset-value (“NAV”) per share as at 31st
December 2012 was HK$25.92.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012

RRAREFEARBERF

—E-—FBRERSBAEWNENA2,9838H
EBT(CZE——F 1430888 7T) c BRE
RAMBI72BL - B EMEEFHHELR
HmFHEIAER L LEUREENBEE
WEH1,770BEB TR EMEERBEHEREIE
FHEOBEBSLZEER OB A3
BEET REFTME218EEBILH16% - &
R EBHRNER WS PTER -

7 BB E

MEBRDAAEBEZZOEB(89%) c X =
T-—F - AEEEKI=ZAMN RI=ANM
ERBSHE =ZBAROEBERENERFER
R-ZR(BELE MMREDEAEERZ
W za1% EREERDRIAER(BBEM-
B R W) (32%) REL(BREILER - K2
RE KERRES) (27%) °

B %5 AR R

RZZE——F+_-_A=+—HB A&£EE&
ERERBERESHABI7481EEBETK
72,486 BB AT DRIREF EFA7%N10% °
BEMELEN TEARAOAHLEEVBEE
WA QBB NREKTEE FTEE R KA
e RERITHERSRBEE NGO LR LR -
T BELBREBEA EZ2HAMEEE
SMEE  RQIEER A NS KR EETE -

KEBR -_ZE——F+_A=+—HZAR#Htt
RE1I7(ZFE——F:216)c _FE—_F +
A=t HZRERAR-_E——F+ A=+
— B EFH2%FE44995B BB L EEHRA)
FRARERBABMGSEN BN RQEBEESE
HREREBELEZERERONERZEM
BN ZTE——F+_A=+—8B EREE
FEA25.9287C °



Financial Review (continued)
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Liquidity and Financial Position

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling
cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to
finance the Group’s operations according to its cash flow projections and
to maintain sufficient cash to meet its business development
requirements.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 62% (2011: 60%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders” equity) was 69% (2011:
72%).

As at 31st December 2012, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$5,589 million (2011: HK$3,648 million), of
which approximately HK$139 million (2011: HK$168 million) was
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties.
97.84% of the cash and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi,
0.13% in Hong Kong dollars and 2.03% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$34,499 million as at 31st December 2012, representing an increase
of 14% or HK$4,148 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2011. Gearing ratio, measured by net bank and financial institution
borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank and financial
institution borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank
deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’ equity, was 69%, representing
a decrease of 3 percentage points from 72% as at 31st December 2011.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the combined effect of the
increase in shareholders’ equity and balance of bank deposits.

All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured
or covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in
Renminbi with fixed interest rates whereas the United States Dollar
denominated Senior Notes due 2016 were jointly and severally
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest rate, representing
approximately 88% and 6% respectively of the Group’s total borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and
substantially denominated in Renminbi.
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Financial Review (continued)

Bt %% o B (42

Liquidity and Financial Position (Continued)

RBEERBBERR @

The Group’s borrowing repayment profile as at 31st December 2012 was AEBER —_ZET——F+-_A=+—HZBEEE&
as follows: R B a0 T :
As at 31st December 2012 As at 31st December 2011
R-ZTB-——-F+=H=+—8 WZE——F+=ZA=+—8H
Bank and Bank and
financial Guaranteed financial Guaranteed
institution senior Other institution senior Other
(HK$ million) borrowings notes borrowings Total borrowings notes borrowings Total
RITR HRITR
B REE Hth MK (REBE HAh
(B&#T) BEE XEEB BEg @5 BEE £E2ER B8 85t
1 year — 4 15,521 — 2,418 17,939 (46%) 10,922 2,707 1,663 15,292 (41%)
1-2 years —FEWF 7,128 — — 7,128 (18%) 10,886 — — 10,886 (29%)
2-5 years MEERF 11,606 2,292 — 13,898 (35%) 5,384 2,290 — 7,674 (21%)
After 5 years AF% 244 — — 244 (1%) 3,159 — — 3,159 (9%)
Total @t 34,499 2,292 2,418 39,209 30,351 4,997 1,663 37,011
Less: Cash and B IRERRITER
bank deposits (5,589) (3,648)
Net borrowings EEEE 33,620 33,363

As at 31st December 2012, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$64,402 million (2011: HK$64,644 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$29,903 million (2011:
HK$34,293 million) were unutilised.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2012, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$26,012 million (2011: HK$22,308 million) were
pledged with banks and financial institutions for loan facilities used by
subsidiaries.

Financial Guarantees
As at 31st December 2012, the Group provided guarantees to banks for

mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$9,616 million (2011: HK$10,315 million).
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Financial Review (continued)

Bt %5 o B ()

Commitments Y
The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2012 were as follows: REBR-ZE—Z-ZF+A=T—HZE&E®N
T
As at As at
31st December 31st December
2012 2011
R-FE-—ZF R_ZE——%F
+=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEBTT
Capital commitments B EHE
Contracted but not provided for EETHEREE
— Acquisition of land and equity —KBETHAELLZ
interests in certain land-holding BB TR
entities P A HE 8,327 11,336
— Property construction costs — W EREMR 3,726 2,753
— Capital contribution to an associate ——HBERRZHE 264 264
— Capital contribution to a jointly ——HARZESER LA
controlled entity 2,365 —
14,682 14,353
Authorised but not contracted for EEBEERITN
— Acquisition of land and equity —KBETHAELHLZ
interests in certain land-holding BB TR
entities e 101 102
— Property construction costs — W EEER K 1,663 1,523
1,764 1,625
16,446 15,978
Property development commitments e 9T
Contracted but not provided for EETH B R
— Property construction costs — W EEER A 23,740 20,576
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRRETLN
— Property construction costs — W EREER K 74,779 73,910
98,519 94,486
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Financial Review (continued)

Bt %% o B (42

Commitments (Continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are as follows:

AIE @)

AEERZHARBAENERZ TAFEHEEH
EREMALELHERE RETAIFHLE
HARBRZZEENESERNT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2012 2011
R-E——F RZE——F
+t=A=+—H +Z—A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBET BEETT

Amounts payable THIERER 2 KA
— Within one year ——FR 33 35
— Within two to five year —MEELFA 39 68
— After five years —hFk’ 37 40
109 143

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash in hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

E%éiﬁﬁh

The directors (the “Directors”) of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

fHEAREEARAANTARANDER(E
ED)MAREARBREMB AR (BB A E
EDBE_T——F+_A=1+—RHLFEDN

(together the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company.
associates and jointly controlled entities are principally engaged in
investment holding, property development, property investment, property

management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributions to
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2012 by geographical

locations is as follows:

Its subsidiaries,

FHREREERMBGHRE -

ARB R —HEEERR

A BEARRAREHER

A ETEMEA
IERERER

B MEBRR VERE DEEEXRBB

EE -

rAEEBEE-_Z——F+_A=+—HLFE
BB s rEEBRESAHKEEMN T

BAoAran T

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

HRERA

3] 2 B’

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Guangzhou & N 2,280,021 131,713
Beijing = 2,327,634 738,089
Shanghai b=} 4,094,914 2,118,766
Tianjin Xz 310,912 (268,207)
Huizhou =N 913,124 (38,632)
Others Hib — 1,744,295
9,926,605 4,426,024

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2012 is as follows:

AEERHE_T-——F+_A=1t—RHILFE

WMEBD I E

BomWT

Turnover
=X
HK$’000
FAT

Sales of properties

Property management income
Income from hotel operations
Rental income

MEHE
MEEB WA
B 5B A
i N

8,852,257
583,615
237,551
253,182

9,926,605
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Report of the Directors (continued)

E%éiﬁi(ﬂg)

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 3% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
5% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s turnover while
the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 2% of the
Group'’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
40 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 137 of this annual
report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The
Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2012.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
26 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2012,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to

HK$122,903,000 (2011: HK$624,061,000).

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012

TEEERHEER

Bz Z——F+_-_A=+—BULHtHFE K
EERAAEABRPHAEBEERENI% M
rEERARAREFNAMGASERERELY

5% AN ARBEAREFPHEAEELEERY
0.7% @ MA KB FAMHER G A EBERE

BEAI2%

B BRERMFA0OMBRETHEATBRE
S MEEE RENBEAXRETARR(EE
EMAEAARRBIRABIB%) N AEE T A
RAEPEERRAREETREESEE -

RER DK
ARERE-F-—F+-A=+-ALFE

FEHBEREAFREVVVAFGAERRA -

AFEEYMERREARARE - BE
—F+-R=+— Eiifﬁ%xW@@,%
KREFAZ & o
[N

AR RIS 2 B A B B S SRR MY 26 -
it 8

AEBERARBANANFEZHEEHEHR
WA M 27

81 %

RZE——F+_A=+—H8 REBEERER
AERTE - NA R A5 R & A122,903,000
BIL(ZZE——1F : 624,061,000 70) °



Report of the Directors (continued)
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Donations

During the vyear, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$4,958,000 (2011: HK$17,956,000) to various charitable
organizations.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements, respectively.
Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2012 are set out in Note
23 to the financial statements.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

B

RAFE  AEBEMZEASREBENEAESE
A F£4,958,00078 7T (ZF —— 4 : 17,956,000
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 262 to 264.
Continuing Connected Transactions

On 30th April 2009,

Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”),
respective holding companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group

the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang
being the

(comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a
framework agreement (the “Previous Framework Agreement”) setting out,
among other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased
premises to be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of
services/leased premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group. The Previous Framework Agreement was expired on 31st
December 2011.
recurring transactions contemplated under the Previous Framework

Since the Group intends to continue most of the

Agreement and to enter into certain new recurring transactions with
Hanjiang Group in the three financial years ending 31st December 2014,
the Company entered into the new framework agreement (the “New
Framework Agreement”) with Hanjiang on 11th May 2012. At the special
general meeting of the Company held on 13th July 2012, the New
Framework Agreement, the transactions contemplated therein and the
annual cap of transaction amount of each of the transactions were
approved by the independent shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the
Company.

As Hanjiang is wholly owned by the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (the controlling Shareholder and Chairman of the board of Directors
(the “Board”)) (“Mr. Chu”) who is also an uncle of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (“Ms.
Chu”), an executive Director and daughter of Mr. Chu, it is a connected
person of the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the transactions between the
Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated under the Previous

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Framework Agreement and the New Framework Agreement constitute

continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing

Rules. Details of such continuing connected transactions are set out as

follows:

A. Transactions under the New Framework Agreement

(i)

(i)

Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction
works for certain property projects of the Group. The
construction fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out construction works for various
property projects of the Group in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) will be determined by the parties by reference
to the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for providing similar services and the stipulated
standards prescribed by Construction Committee of where
the particular property project is located. During the year
ended 31st December 2012, total construction fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$215,512,000 (2011: HK$571,916,000).

Construction supervision

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to supervise the
construction of certain property projects of the Group. The
amount of construction supervising fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group for supervising the construction
of certain property projects of the Group shall be determined
by the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates
charged by independent third parties for providing similar
services and the standards prescribed under Construction
Project Monitoring and Related Services Fees Standard.
During the year ended 31st December 2012, construction
supervision fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$8,561,000 (2011:
HK$6,827,000).

&E$Egﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz %%ﬁ$

RA)ZFFERE

LU

CRERERERHFR

A, FERHBBERIZXRS

(i)

(i)

ZEE

BE-_ZFT--NM&E+-_A=1+—HL
—EERE AEEATRERIEE
RASEETYMERBETRET
B-AEERBISEERAEES
TURPEARKME(HE] 2
MEBRBETREETIRMEN TE

THEBEZZEER BRSNS
2EBIFE=TRRERBRS T
WEBZzRTHEREREEWER
BFfEZ2RZB@MMEL
BEMEE - BE_T—_F+=

A=+—RHLEFE A£BERS
ENBISEZEEERABEY
215,512,000 t( =& — — & :
571,916,000 JT) °

BREEE

HE-_T-—-N&E+-_A=+—81t
:Mﬁ& AREFUEZEHETIEE
ERAEEETYMEBEZESET
B AEERBIEEEEAER
ETYWEEBZEETRENTE
IEEZE%WHE% 2B
EZARIRERERSATKRERZ
ﬁﬁﬁ%%%&%%IF%ﬁﬁﬁ
ARG WBIZEMAE ZIREM
FoBE-_T-——F+-A= +*
ALEFEE AEBEN EMNET
SEFEEEEBRHYA8,561,000%8
T(ZF——%:6,827,000& ) °

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR

93



94

Report of the Directors (continued)

E%éiﬁi(ﬂ. g)

(iii) Electrical power, low voltage system and intelligent

building installation works, budgeting and cost
control consultancy

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out electrical
power, low voltage system and intelligent building
installation works for certain property projects of the Group
and to provide consultancy service to the Group in relation
to budgeting for tenders and construction cost control. Low
voltage system and intelligent building installation works
include installation of walkie-talkie system, CCTV system,
music broadcast system, security system, car park automatic
management system, telephone system, mobile signal
coverage system, internet system and television antenna
system and procurement of the related facilities. Consultancy
service to be provided to the Group in relation to budgeting
for tenders and construction cost control include evaluation
and formulation of the base price for a particular project that
the Group intends to put up for public tender, preparation of
tender invitations and rendering assistance in the evaluation
of the bidders, formulation of the budget for particular
projects and formulation of cost control plans for construction
projects. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for carrying out electrical power installation
works for the property projects of the Group will be
determined by reference to the prevailing market rates
charged by independent third parties for providing similar
services and the standards prescribed by the relevant
governmental authorities of where the property is located. (The
amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
for carrying out low voltage system installation works for the
property projects of the Group will be determined by
reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for providing similar services and
the standards prescribed by the relevant governmental
authorities and for projects involving procurement, an
additional procurement fee calculated based on a specified
percentage of the price of the products as procurement fee
will be charged.) The amount of fees payable by the Group
to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out intelligent building
installation works for certain property projects of the Group
in the PRC will be determined by reference to the prevailing
market rates charged by independent third parties for
providing similar services and the standards prescribed by the
relevant governmental authorities of where the property is
located. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for compiling budgets for tenders and
construction cost control consultancy service to the Group
will be determined by reference to the standards prescribed
by the relevant government authorities. During the year
ended 31st December 2012, fees for electrical power, low
voltage system and intelligent building installation works,
budgeting and cost control consultancy services paid/payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$227,523,000 (2011: HK$144,552,000
(Note)).
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(iv) Office lease

(v)

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang
Group may lease certain premises located in Guangzhou to
the Group for use as office. The rent payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the
prevailing market rents charged by independent third parties
for the leasing of the same properties or properties of similar
grading in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st December
2012, rental paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$3,529,000 (2011:
HK$2,506,000).

Informatization related services

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to build the informatization
infrastructure for the Group, to provide maintenance services
to the Group for its servers, to supply and lease the related
products and facilities from the Hanjiang Group, to provide
consultancy services in respect of the informatization systems
of the Group, staff training and technical support for such
systems. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for building the informatization infrastructure
for the Group, provision of maintenance services to the
Group for its servers, provision of consultancy service in
respect of the informatization systems of the Group, staff
training and technical support for such systems and the
amount of purchase price/rents payable by the Group for its
purchase/lease of products and facilities for the Group’s
informatization system from the Hanjiang Group will be
determined by reference to the prevailing market rates
charged by independent third parties for providing similar
services/products. During the year ended 31st December
2012, informatization related services fees paid/payable by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,497,000 (2011: HK$nil).
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(vi)

(vii)

Consultancy service in respect of development
planning and sales agency service for commercial
property projects

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to provide it with the
services in connection with the consultancy service in respect
of development planning (including the overall project design
and development, positioning and usage) and sales agency
service of the commercial properties for the Group’s
commercial property projects. The amount of fees payable by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group for providing the
consultancy service in connection with development
planning and agency for the Group’s existing and future
commercial development projects will be determined by
reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for providing similar services.
During the year ended 31st December 2012, the fees for
consultancy service in respect of development planning and
sales agency service for commercial property projects paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$147,000 (2011: HK$ nil).

Management of vacant properties

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant
properties and to handle delivery of sold properties of the
Hanjiang Group located in Guangdong Province, Beijing and
Xi’an. The amount of management fees receivable by the
Group from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by the
parties by reference to the related cost of the Group; the
standard property management fees prescribed by the
Guangdong Provincial,
authorities; the property pricing guidelines given by the local
government and the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for offering similar services for
properties of similar grading in the vicinity. During the year

Beijing Municipal and Xi’an local

ended 31st December 2012, the management fees received/
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group for
provision of vacant property management service amounted
to approximately HK$9,127,000 (2011: HK$2,672,000).
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(viii) Construction design

(ix)

(x)

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to carry out construction
design works for certain property projects of the Hanjiang
Group. The amount of design fees receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties
by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by the
independent third parties for undertaking similar design
projects and the standards and guidelines prescribed by the
relevant local authority on fees chargeable for the provision
of similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st
December 2012, the service fees received/receivable by the
Group from Hanjiang Group for provision of construction
design service amounted to approximately HK$8,299,000
(2011: HK$12,852,000).

Installation and decoration

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Hanjiang
Group agrees to appoint the Group to carry out installation
and decoration works for certain property projects developed
by Hanjiang Group. The amount of installation and
decoration fees receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang
Group will be determined by the parties by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties
for undertaking similar installation and decoration work and
the standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local
authority on fees chargeable for the provision of similar
services (if any). During the year ended 31st December 2012,
no fees was received/receivable by the Group from the
Hanjiang Group for provision of installation and decoration
work (2011: HK$nil).

Shop lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2014, the Group
agrees to lease certain premises located in Guangzhou to the
Hanjiang Group for use as shops. The rent receivable by the
Group from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by
reference to the market rents for the leasing the same
properties or properties of similar grading to independent
third parties in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st
December 2012, the rent received/receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group was amounted to approximately
HK$1,758,000 (2011: HK$nil).

(viii) R T

(ix)

(x)

@i_z E¢+ H + H ik
%%EE@“¥%¥EEﬁﬁ%

ERF IR - AKEREETIEE
ZRFAER BHIANTZ2EBL

FE-RABBEUKREIER K
MR WREBRE@HM A
Mt R EUBR S (A ) 7] Y ER
ERMAECERRIES MEE -
HE-_ZT——-—F#+=ZA=+—H
EFE AEERREHEBERR
BEW ERBEIEBE2REER
4 /8,299,000 T (=& — — F:
12,852,000) °

S ETs

BE_FT-NF+-_A=+t—HBL
—EFEE BISEREZEAE
EARIEERENETYWEERAR
ETREREETIRR - AEERW
BIKELRERKEERSE &
mﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ*“_ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

TRERETIRAKRIZETH
%%%&ﬁ%mﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R (WE) AR 2 BERAREZ
BREREIEE BHE-_T——-F
T-A=+—BLFE XEEYL
BEY EEBEISE s ZERE
BEIRER(ZT——F :TET) -

1 A

HE-_Z— W&+ =-_A=+—8H1
—EAFEE - AEBERELEE TN
REMZYETRERISE  UHE§E
TEEAEmME - A& EEWET
SEHET B2EREE LB
o [& Bt AR AR R ok B fB AR B 2 W
TRYE=-F2z2mEBSHEMETE -
Bz -_ZT——-—F#+-_A=+—81
FEAEBD U TEWDET £
# & 4 A1,758,00008 T( =& —
—F =) -

SHEAREEARART « ZE——FFR

97



98

Report of the Directors (continued)

E%éiﬁi(ﬂg)

Transactions under the Previous Framework
Agreement

Construction Design

Under certain construction design contracts entered into between
the Group and the Hanjiang Group prior to 31st December 2011
pursuant to the previous framework agreement including the
Previous Framework Agreement, the Hanjiang Group agreed to
carry out construction design work for the property projects of the
Group. The amount of design fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design works for various
property projects of the Group were determined by the parties by
reference to, and shall not be higher than, the prevailing market
rates charged by independent third parties for similar design
projects and the standards or guidelines prescribed by the relevant
government authority on the fees chargeable for the provision of
similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st December
2012, design fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$4,076,000 (2011:
HK$3,320,000).

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors
and auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

(i) a.  the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s
length between the parties on normal commercial
terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the
Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties;

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

c. the above transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole;
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(if)

(iii)

(iv)

during the year ended 31st December 2012, construction
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$215,512,000 (2011: HK$571,916,000),
which have not exceeded the annual cap on construction
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 11th May 2012 and 20th June 2012 (the
“Announcements”);

during the year ended 31st December 2012, construction
supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$8,561,000 (2011:
HK$6,827,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap on
construction supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2012, fees for
electrical power, low voltage system and intelligent building
installation works, budgeting and cost control consultancy
services paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$227,523,000 (2011: HK$144,552,000
(Note)), which have not exceeded the annual cap on service
fees for electrical power, low voltage system and intelligent
building installation works, budgeting and cost control
consultancy services paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2012, rental paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices amounted
to approximately HK$3,529,000 (2011: HK$2,506,000),
which has not exceeded the annual cap on rental paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices in respect
of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

during the year ended 31st December 2012, informatization
related services fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$12,497,000 (2011: HKS$nil),
which has not exceeded the annual cap on informatization
related services fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2012, the fees for
consultancy services in respect of development planning and
sales agency service for commercial property projects paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$147,000 (2011: HK$nil),
annual cap on service fees for consultancy in respect of

which has not exceeded the

development planning and sales agency service for
commercial property projects paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2012, the management
fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group for vacant
property management amounted to approximately
HK$9,127,000 (2011: HK$2,672,000),
exceeded the annual cap on the management fees received/

which have not

receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;

during the year ended 31st December 2012, the construction
design fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$8,299,000 (2011:
HK$12,852,000) which have not exceeded the annual cap
on construction design fees received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcements;
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Note:

(x)  during the year ended 31st December 2012, no installation
and decoration fees was received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group (2011: HK$nil) which have not exceeded
the annual cap on installation and decoration fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements;

(xi) during the year ended 31st December 2012, the rental
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group for lease of
shops amounted to approximately HK$1,758,000 (2011:
HK$nil), which have not exceeded the annual cap of rental
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of
the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcements; and

(xii) during the year ended 31st December 2012, the design fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$4,076,000 (2011: HK$3,320,000) which
have not exceeded the annual cap on design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcements.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter

the Stock Exchange.

This figure for 2011 only related to the fees charged for provision of the services of
electrical power installation work, intelligent building installation work and budgeting

and cost control consultancy by the Hanjing Group.
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Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Company entered into
the following connected transactions:

Second Supplemental Agreement

On 3rd November 2010, the Company and Farrich Investments Limited
(“Farrich”) entered into the original share purchase agreement (the
“Original Share Purchase Agreement”) relating to the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Sun Excel Investments Limited (“Target Co”)
at the consideration of RMB6,605,066,000, to be satisfied partly in cash
and partly by way of the allotment and issue by the Company of
523,246,625 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital
of the Company to Farrich or its nominee(s). The Original Share Purchase
Agreement was subsequently amended and supplemented by the
supplemental agreement dated 13th December 2010 made between the
Company and Farrich to amend and supplement certain terms and
conditions of the Original Share Purchase Agreement (the “First
Supplemental Agreement”, the Original Share Purchase Agreement as
supplemented by the First Supplemental Agreement collectively referred
to as the “Share Purchase Agreement”).

The Share Purchase Agreement constituted a major and connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. It was approved by
the then independent Shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 22nd February 2011.

On 2nd November 2011, the Company and Farrich agreed to extend the
long stop date (the “Long Stop Date”) (the last day by which the
conditions precedent have to be satisfied or waived under the Share
Purchase Agreement) from 2nd November 2011 to 2nd November 2012
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Purchase Agreement.

On 26th October 2012, the Company and Farrich entered into the
supplemental agreement (the “Second Supplemental Agreement”) to
further extend the Long Stop Date to 2nd November 2013, and to
amend, supplement and clarify certain terms and conditions of the Share
Purchase Agreement relating to, among other things, the completion date
of the construction of the property development as set out in the Share
Purchase Agreement and the payment terms of the cash consideration (the
“Amendments”).
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Farrich is a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Mr.
Chu Yat Hong is a son of Mr. Chu, who is the ultimate controlling
Shareholder of the Company and an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Chu Yat Hong is also a brother of Ms.
Chu, an executive Director of the Company. Accordingly, Farrich is a
connected person of the Company and the entering into the Second
Supplemental Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the
Company and subject to independent Shareholder’s approval. The
Amendments as set out in the Second Supplemental Agreement was
approved by the independent Shareholders at the special general meeting
held on 3rd December 2012. Details of the Amendments were disclosed
in the announcement dated 26th October 2012 and the circular dated
16th November 2012 of the Company.

Disposal of Land

On 11th May 2012, Guangdong Huanan New City Real Estate Limited
(“Guangdong Huanan New City”), a cooperative joint venture
established in the PRC in which the Company has 100% equity interest,
and Mr. Chu entered into the agreement pursuant to which Guangdong
Huanan New City agreed to dispose to Mr. Chu of its land use rights in
respect of a parcel of vacant land located at Guan Tang Village, Yuan
Gang Village, Southern Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong,
PRC (Lot Number B2, Huanan New City, Southern Town) with a total site
area of 9,347.98 square metres (the “Guangdong Land”) at the
consideration of RMB29,258,305 (approximately HK$36,090,000). On
the same day, Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Development Limited
(“Tianjin Hopson”), a cooperative joint venture established in the PRC in
which the Company has 92.3% equity interest, and Mr. Chu entered into
the agreement pursuant to which Tianjin Hopson agreed to dispose to
Mr. Chu of its land use rights in respect of a parcel of vacant land located
at Numbers 610 and 611, West Side, Baobai Highway, Zhouliangzhuang
Town, Baodi District, Tianjin, PRC with a total site area of approximately
6,558.77 square metres (the “Tianjin Land”) at the consideration of
RMB2,500,000 (approximately HK$3,084,000).
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Since Mr. Chu, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive Director
and a controlling Shareholder of the Company, and the father of Ms.
Chu, an executive Director, is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, the disposal of the land use rights in respect of the
Guangdong Land and the Tianjin Land by the Group to Mr. Chu (the
“Disposal”) constituted connected transactions of the Company. Details
of the Disposal were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 11th May 2012.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2012 are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements. Certain of these related party transactions also
constituted non-exempt connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Yi (Deputy Chairman and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
(resigned on 28th March 2013)

Mr. Xue Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1st March 2012)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing

Ms. Chu Kut Yung

Mr. Zheng Shao Hui
(appointed on 28th March 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei,
David, Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zheng Shao Hui
will retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’ Confirmation
of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 40 to the accompanying financial statements,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entities or holding company was a party and in which any of
the Company’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

RZZE—=—FF+-_A=+—H ARQFEERK
THRBRHBEZEFRPEGN((EHKHEK
BlDEXVEE7R B8 I E ME AR A B
RETERARB K EEAAEEE(EXRE
FREBEEMEXVE) 2k HERDRE
FhMAEZ EaRAR (BEBEESRPE
BGH 2 ZERTERRBXRERE 2 BRI A
B) sk EH ARIRE F R B ERGI 3521
FUBREZERMR  SRELETETAEZES
EOTEFR IR ESR (EESTRID KA
GARNAI BRIz EEIOABEIN AT

() REDAZRBZHER

Number of shares of the Company

ARERGEE

Approximate
percentage of
Personal Family Corporate Other shares
Name of directors interests  interests interests  interests Total outstanding
HEBRITRG
EEpR BAEZ REER nEER HttiEzs &5t BMABED
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) KREKEE @) — — 1,101,003,809 — 1,101,003,809 63.42%
Mr. Zhang Yi RE & 90,000 — — — 90,000 0.01%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BUE R L (D) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.99%

Notes: Hrat -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,032,363,809 shares of the Company through
Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000
shares of the Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, a
company wholly- owned by Mr. Chu.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company
wholly-owned and controlled by him.

(ii) Interests in 11.75% senior notes due 2016 issued by
the Company

a. KEREEBBHZERBZRARNEEE
BERARMGEHEEZEESBERAAD A
# B AN A F)1,032,363,809 I% 1 68,640,000 f% I

,T/'\ o

b. BERLEEBREZEREBRENZAAE
A AR 34,500,000 B BE 15

(i) REQDABTZ-S— 37N
PN EEEEE 2ER

Name of directors Type of interests Principal amount of senior notes
EspR EmER BEARBEEXE
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David Personal Us$100,000
FEESLE fEA 100,0005 7T
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron Personal US$100,000
REEBLE fEA 100,000 7T

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2012, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had been granted any right to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any
such right.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2012, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BREXBEEEN R_T——F+_A=1+—
B ARAESE- ﬁﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ FEZBE
A ERRIEE ﬁ&%f%ﬂ%W%%Mﬁ
FENWMANEARARBERXAERBRAR

S EAEREREE (EERE %&%;MH%

XVER) Z B {7 ﬁ@k@iﬁ%@%ﬁ&ﬂf
ARk AR EMERIOAR (BREREE

%&%TMWZ%XEEW  REBIEREE Z
BaFRR)  IBAINAREZEFLBE K
BIFE352M T AFE 2B RMA- &@ﬁ%
THLMM&WAK 7 N Bt 32 B 2 AR (AT fELA -
Tk REISEMESIIKE

RERERERE - KA F S EAEA N B R A
BRI EMRH WEEEHRE ZEHM@
ST N\BEA T FREREBEEARNRB KM
HisABR RO ESMU T Eam - E
EFSTHARIBRESTAZEBE T N\ERN
TFREEREMEMNURBARAKN HE
BRESFHDITEREMZFERN -

FERR

B EXEFRITERAEHNKMGD - HE KRG X
BEHEEBIEGRABR | —HBEENEZI
RZE—ZF+ZHAH=+—HB EXRAR
BEFLREIENEBIETFEZE LML
B THEERARRROFEBREZESRKL
Hﬁifﬂﬂﬁl@xv*ﬁ%z&%a’h AMRARAE
EEREKE

Capacity and Number of Approximate percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interests issued shares of shares outstanding
R EHE B REEME ERITRHOEAE HERTROMOBE I
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,032,363,809 59.47%
MEBEXARAQA ERnfEEA

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31st December 2012, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.

B EXHEEEN REEMN BECAEM
ATRZE—ZF+ZA=+—HRARAZ
BHRBEBRG T BERIEES RBHEEG
EXVEBE2RFINDPAEMARBEE 2 e
R B BB ARIE B F KB EENE3361E
FTUGFEBEZECMAZERSIAE -
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Information on Share Option Scheme
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted on 4th
November 2002. The following table is a summary of the Scheme

disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules:

. Purpose of the Scheme

ZaTEIB A

. Participants of the Scheme

stz EE

. Total number of shares available

for issue under the Scheme and
percentage of issued share
capital as at 28th March 2013
RAR % 8 A] 1T A A B
ERZF-—=F#=ZA=1tN
HHEEBRTHRABD L

. Maximum entitlement of each

participant under the Scheme
REZtEGR2EETE
ReesmBREHA

. The period within which the

shares must be taken up under
an option

BITEBRERBRD 2 HIR

Report of the Directors (continued)
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BREFENES

ARBIZBREAES(TZAEH DR _FFT_F
T— A B R - RE LR B ZE S 808
ZFTERENT

As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards.

M2EERTHEREARGRENER LA ERB R EE -

Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director and independent
non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries.
ARARREFAMNBRAGAZERITBRAE - EE EF(BEFDNTESRET
EHRITESR)  FHHA BEEESHREBA -

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme (approximately 5.77% of issued share capital).

B IR AR 1B % 5T &) IR FUE AR R AL /& - 5 Bl 5100,200,000 B B 7 (18 B # 1T X
5.77%) °

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share options
already granted or to be granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital as at the date of grant. Any grant of
further options above the limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in
the rules of the Scheme.

BE2EEEEMNAEREEH(BRER LT - AABRAANCERAGER
ZBEET Mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘*ﬁ&Hﬁ?’éﬁZHxT\i'ﬁ’%l(@a‘%aﬁﬁﬁr'ﬁiﬂﬁE’J B
) NMEEARKRLAREETRAN1% - E—FRUEMNER LARBE B
Pt BETZAERANANTRZETHRE °

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the earlier
of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary thereof and the business day
preceding the tenth anniversary of the day on which the Scheme was adopted.
BERRERLEEEZREERFEFRABAFc L —AEXARERRZTER
TRAFZE—EAEXB (AKREERE) TFABIEEM -
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6. The minimum period for which ~ Completion of half year’s full-time services with the Company or a subsidiary.
an option must be held before it P42 &l sk — [ I B 2 B BT+ F 2 BARTS ©
can be exercised
ARITEMFEBREZ &
IR

7. The amount payable on Nil
application or acceptance of the &
option and the period within
which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such
purpose must be repaid
R EmBREZREN S
BIA RN RHBANKZH
RIEEFFERBERZ

HARR

8. The basis of determining the  The exercise price is determined by the Board and shall at least be the highest of:
exercise price TEEHEZGET THREXUTZESE
BETEEZEE

a.  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer of the relevant options;

RREHEEBREZEEARARNREXMEBEARER ZWHE

b.  the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the relevant optionS'
REEZRFEEFHEBREEONAEERBARRRMDNBRMEARERX
Z I WTIAE

c.  the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and with reference to the latest published audited
financial statements in the annual report or the latest published unaudited
accounts in the interim report (whichever is more recent) of the Group on the date
of offer of the relevant options; and
REEHERBREZR RRFEVEBRSENAELSEAKEROY
TERZEFBRARECY BRI IKOIP TN B 2P HREAREEZERE
(ABnRERE)FEEEREEFE &

d.  the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

ARBMADEIE

9. The remaining life of the Scheme  The Scheme was adopted on 4th November 2002 and has expired at 5:00 p.m. on 2nd
%At Bl MR SR HAMR November 2012.
ZAEAN—EE_F+ - AODARAAR T ——F+-A-BATFARBER
Jt o
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Employees

As at 31st December 2012, the Group, excluding its associates and
jointly controlled entities, employed a total of 9,023 (as at 31st
December 2011: 8,238) staff, the majority of which were employed in
Mainland China. Employees’ costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$765 million (2011: HK$620 million) for the year ended
31st December 2012.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance, market
practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract, motivate
and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive Directors and
senior management comprises salaries, bonuses, discretionary bonus and
other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out
in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance and
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the Company’s
Listed Securities

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes due 2012
with an aggregate principal amount of US$350,000,000 (the “2012
Notes”). In September 2012, the Company repurchased an aggregate
principal amount of US$5,000,000 of the 2012 Notes, represented
approximately 1.43% of the total principal amount of the 2012 Notes.
The Company fully repaid the remaining principal amount of the
outstanding 2012 Notes and accrued and unpaid interest up to the
maturity date on 9th November 2012.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2012.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 113 to 132 of the annual report.
Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the

Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AMBFEEREEST 2HFHNE SN BRKM
FF31 e

BB D BHERIE 16116 & L8 B 8k 169 55
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Event after the Balance Sheet Date

On 16th January 2013, the Company issued 9.875% senior notes due
2018 with an aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,327,000,000) (the “2018 Notes”). The 2018
Notes mature on 16th January 2018 and are repayable at the principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company may redeem some or all of
the 2018 Notes on or after 16th January 2016 at the redemption prices,
plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the relevant redemption date. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8th
January 2013, 10th January 2013 and 17th January 2013.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March 2013

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRERARE

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

On 1st April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Former
CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules was amended
and renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code”). The Company has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the New CG Code as the code of the Company in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Former CG Code with effect
from Tst April 2012. The Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Former CG Code during the period from 1st
January 2012 to 31st March 2012 and the New CG Code during the
period from 1st April 2012 to 31st December 2012, except for the code
provisions A.4.1, A.6.7 and E.1.2 as described below.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. None of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However, as all
the independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, in the
opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective of the Former CG Code
and the New CG Code.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Tan
Leng Cheng, Aaron did not attend the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th July 2012 due to other business commitment.
Besides, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David did not attend the special general
meeting of the Company held on 3rd December 2012 due to other
business commitment.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting for the year 2012 due to other
business commitment.

ARBBABIBKF2EEE R - EFEH
B BRZEEERBEBSARRZER
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Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31st December 2012.

Business Model and Strategy

Business Model

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market condition of the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties which are driven by regular demand,
residential properties which are for improving living environment and
high-end deluxe residential properties, and created a business
development model for maintaining profitability in high-end residential
properties, guaranteeing cash flow in mid-to-high-end residential
properties and residential properties which are driven by regular demand,
and generating stable and continuous cash flow through investing in
investment properties such as commercial properties (industrial real
estate). On the basis of the coordinated development of the properties for
sale and for investment, the Group will also further integrate resources,
develop investment business prudently and acquire more competitive
strengths through diversified and professional development strategies.

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
products and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to

“Prospects of the Group” under the section “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 19 to 21 of the report.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012

BFEESA

ARRBERM TR+ AEFESTR - F
REFETEFRXHZBRTTH - BARAE
AR 2REFCOHER REREBE_FT—=
FH+-_A=+—BLEFE-—BETRETRHR
A EER

EZ Y BN

1 B 4 0 R B S R T B L B T35 1
REEDAERARRBERENRTHES
FRERETEERE  USTHERD S
BiBY ARRE KIS ABERDS -

SEHHAFEE EERREXZLER &
mEmETETTREMEEMMGE - WK
—EEBRHEERANE hRHEELAFE
EERACRAREAERME(EXWE)FH
BEEMENRARERERSANEBERR
- EHEUYWENF AU EHABRRNE
B SETHE-FTEEER FEERRRKR
BEB USTBEX(HRHUK EERE

SMBEES -

B AREECEETERHEERTELUMERR
TREAIERBESRRABRREZNFBER
o

EREENKBEERIMA  F2H[TFEHRSE]
FEOREFNAEIEEZREIMHN -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

THEEER

B /A %: (Ilgg)

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
Directors’ Profile section on pages 73 to 78 which demonstrate a balance
of core competence having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of Shareholders at the
annual general meeting. The Board believes that the independent non-
executive Directors, with diversified backgrounds and industry skills,
shall offer experience, independent judgement advice on issues relating
to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the overall management
of the Company such that the interests of all Shareholders are considered
and safeguarded.

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and
make further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s
business at the Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against its
Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director of the Company, is the
daughter of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.
There was no such relationship as between Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company and Mr. Xue Hu, the Chief Executive Officer,
who has resigned as an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1st March 2012.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out

in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Five Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Option Shares
Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management. However, clear
directions are given to the management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the
Group.
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Board Meetings/General Meetings
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The Board met 10 times during year 2012 under review at which the
Directors considered and approved significant matters including, among

other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial
reports, change in Board members, disposal of shares, continuing
connection transactions, review of the Company’s corporate governance

practices as well as repurchase and issue of senior notes.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Exged RRXE

RIE-—FHBEFEAHBTIORELSS
ZEENSLERRMEBERER EFE
BRASBEZHBMREFREE EEWBHRS

EEgXBET HERD-

BHARRZEEEATRARBDBLETE

SRR -

EEFHREFTEZNRRAET

Number of Meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held

HEERRE
BB
Executive Directors HITESE
Chu Mang Yee NGRS 2/10
Zhang Yi ok 5% 8/10
Xiang Bin TH ¥H, 4/10
Au Wai Kin B (E 5/10
Xue Hu (Note) E%B%(Wﬁ) O/O
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 6/10
Chu Kut Yung EREEA 10/10
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David ZHEE 10/10
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver =oAE 10/10
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron RS 10/10

Note: Mr. Xue Hu resigned on 1st March 2012.

15 additional Board meetings were held during year 2012 for the

purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval of the

provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted

to the Company’s subsidiaries.
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Board Meetings/General Meetings (Continued)

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Exgeld RRXE@W
REFLFEFESZNBRET :
Number of Meetings

attended/Number of
meetings held

HESBERE
=E P8
Executive Directors HITESE
Chu Mang Yee K&K 14/15
Zhang Yi ok &% 15/15
Xiang Bin TH ¥H, 11/15
Au Wai Kin E S 13/15
Xue Hu B IR 0/0
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 14/15
Chu Kut Yung KiEB 15/15
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHITESE
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 0/15
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver H=AE 0/15
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREER 0/15

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) keeps

detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection by
all Directors.
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Board Meetings/General Meetings (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Company held three
general meetings. General meetings attended by the Directors were as

follows:

BEExgel REXS®

B ZT——F+-_A=+—HBHILEE &R
AIBRTTZABRRERRE -EFHERERAEH
BRAAT :

Number of Meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held

LEEBRE
EE DN
Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee K ik 0/3
Zhang Yi g 3/3
Xiang Bin T8 S 0/3
Au Wai Kin eSS 13
Xue Hu 35 0/0
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 3/3
Chu Kut Yung EREEA 1/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David FEE 2/3
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver =AE 3/3
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron RS 2/3
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Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the
Former CG Code and the New CG Code.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chairman is
responsible for managing and providing leadership to the Board in terms
of formulating overall strategies, business directions and policies of the
Company. The Chairman is also responsible for overseeing effective
functions of the Board, application of good corporate governance
practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to make full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the support of the
executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive complete and reliable information in a timely
manner.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company was Mr. Xue Hu, who
resigned from the Board on 1st March 2012. The roles of the Chairman
and the then Chief Executive Officer was segregated. The Company does
not currently have any officer with the title Chief Executive Officer. The
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by the
executive Directors and the senior management.

With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures that the
funding requirements of the business are met and closely monitors the
operating and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
action when necessary and advising the Board of any significant
developments and issues.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 1st April 2012 in
compliance with the New CG Code which currently comprises two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Ms. Chu Kut Yung;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. Lee
Tsung Hei, David, Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nomination and selection
of Directors. Proposed new Directors are selected based on skills and
experience that will enable them to make positive contributions to the
performance of the Board. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chu Mang Yee and has specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities and posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

J to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

e to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

J to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

e to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular chairman and chief executive.

During the year, the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting.
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Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted
on the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

J establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive
and senior management;

J recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors and
the chief executive) and senior management;

e review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

e determination of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

. make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

J review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct to Directors
and senior management;

J determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

J consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive

Directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendation to the Board.
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Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

In compliance with the New CG Code, the Board has adopted new terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee which have been posted
on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the determination of
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management to the Remuneration Committee.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during the year
to approve the remuneration of Directors. The meeting was attended by
all members of the Remuneration Committee.

No Director is involved in deciding his’/her own remuneration.

Details of remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$5,755,000 (2011: HK$5,500,000)
and HK$2,948,000 (2011: HK$2,280,000) was paid for non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of review and other
reporting services.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

e to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

J to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

e to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;

*  to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

e  to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is
allocated with adequate resources and is effective; and

e to review the external auditor’s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In compliance with the New CG Code, the Board has adopted new terms

of reference for the Audit Committee which have been posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

In year 2012, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to the
results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2011, the
Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and the external
auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended 30th
June 2012 as well as the external auditor’s remuneration. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2012, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. The meetings were attended by all members
of the Audit Committee.

Board Committees

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, two other Board Committees have been established
to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
was established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the
three independent non-executive Directors, and chaired by Mr. Lee
Tsung Hei, David. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
connected transactions and related party transactions to ensure that
they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and to
recommend to the Board corrective measures in such transactions

if needed.

During the year 2012, two meetings were held by the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee. The meetings
were attended by all members of the said committee.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November
2005 and comprises two executive Directors. Its primary function
is to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted under the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the
year 2012.

Company Secretary

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of Minter Ellison, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary
since September 1997. The primary contact person of the Company is
Mr. Au Wai Kin, an executive Director.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2012.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

J to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;
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Corporate Governance Function (Continued)

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the New CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Board has developed
and reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices, including
the revised terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee and the newly established terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee.

Accountability and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible
for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2012, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.
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Accountability and Internal Controls (Continued)

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’
interests. The Directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The
regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group
Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board.
The Internal Control Department is independent of all management
functions of the Group and has direct and independent access to the
Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if any,
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and
regulations have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it
to believe that the system of internal controls is inadequate. The Board is
satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the New CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Directors’ Training (Continued)

During the year, a training session was organised by the Company for
Directors to update the Directors on the “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” issued by Securities and Future Commission and the
new code provisions under the New CG Code. Each of the Directors had
noted and studied the above mentioned document.
provided the Company with their respective training record pursuant to
the New CG Code. During the year, all Directors have participate in
appropriate continuous professional development by ways of attending

Directors had

training or reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Corporate Communications and Investor Relations

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and

communications with its investors. Communication have been
maintained with the media, analysts and fund managers through
meetings. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the

Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
Shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address Shareholders’ queries. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the annual general
meetings. The 2012 annual general meeting circular was distributed to
all Shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior to the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The procedures for
conducting a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the
annual general meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Shareholder(s)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at general
meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong
(Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the
general meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an
annual general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the
Company, provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect
of the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner
and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board
for handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address:  Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor
Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central
Hong Kong
Tel No.: (852) 2537 3086
Fax No.: (852) 2537 2834
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Report of the Independent Auditor
B ZBE RS

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 135 to 261, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th March 2013
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Balance Sheets

BEERER

Asat 31st December2012 R-ZZE——#+_-_H=+—H

Consolidated Company
wa AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--—F =ZZT——% =ZEB-=-fF =Z—ZZT——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &t FET FAT FERT FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land costs =+ K AR 6 1,528,998 714,967 —
Prepayments for W B & b T8 A5 FRIE
acquisition of land 18 131,197 131,221 — —
Properties and equipment L EYNE L 7 3,435,475 3,264,839 — —
Investment properties SEYE 8 16,535,733 16,637,473 — —
Intangible assets BEEE 11 41,237 41,245 — —
Investments in subsidiaries RITB LR ZKRE 12 — — 15,246,513 18,365,896
Investments in associates REtE NRl 2 K& 13 154,659 151,685 — —
Investments in jointly R 3 (A 22 ]
controlled entities BERZEE 14 4,027,439 1,753,004 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEERKEEE 16 2,684,836 5,203,335 — —
Deferred tax assets RERIBEEE 24 299,334 220,240 — —
28,838,908 28,118,009 15,246,513 18,365,896
Current assets REEE
Prepayments for W B £ b T8 < FRIE
acquisition of land 18 11,006,809 13,508,836 —_ —
Properties under AHEEZERAYE
development for sale 9 54,314,252 49,064,535 — —
Completed properties for sale nEEZEEKME 10 14,407,957 11,640,241 — —
Financial assets at fair value BEATEEBER
through profit or loss FIBR 2 BA TS B E 17 13,552 11,456 — —
Accounts receivable JE U BR 31 19 347,695 232,940 — —
Prepayments, deposits and BRNRIE - RE Rk
other current assets Himeh & E 18 2,924,163 3,634,376 1,983 268
Due from associates FE U Bit &2 N &) I 40 31,884 31,890 — —
Due from related companies JiE Lk B 3 D B R 40 6,361 6,188 — —
Loans to subsidiaries MEBARZEXR 12 — — — 137,345
Pledged/charged bank deposits BHEAR R IRITER 20 1,232,929 1,030,093 — —
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEBEESEEY 20 4,356,241 2,618,161 16,283 680
88,641,843 81,778,716 18,266 138,293
Total assets HEE 117,480,751 109,896,725 15,264,779 18,504,189
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Balance Sheets (continued)

EEREXR(A)

Asat 31st December 2012 R-ZZE——#+_-_H=+—H

Consolidated Company
we N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —ZT——F =ZE--f =—ZZ=——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt &t FET FA& T FET T T
Equity B
Capital and reserves AREREFAA
attributable to the EBERAREE
Company’s equity holders
Share capital fi% A 26 173,600 173,600 173,600 173,600
Reserves 1 27 42,014,189 40,910,852 12,651,129 13,154,706
42,187,789 41,084,452 12,824,729 13,328,306
Non-controlling interests FEVEFI M= 2,806,811 2,981,657 — —
Total equity ERBH 44,994,600 44,066,109 12,824,729 13,328,306
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Land cost payable FE AT #h K AR 21 59,651 81,481 — —
Borrowings T 23 21,270,578 21,718,581 2,292,369 2,290,102
Due to minority shareholders JE {51 BT 8 A 7] 4 88
of subsidiaries R 2 3K IB 40 556,080 439,841 — —
Deferred tax liabilities R IE B E 24 5,548,087 5,816,801 — —
27,434,396 28,056,704 2,292,369 2,290,102
Current liabilities FREEE
Accounts payable J& 151 BR 3K 22 5,137,933 5,120,006 — —
Land cost payable FE A~ + #h kA 21 750,732 602,612 — —
Borrowings & & 23 15,520,648 13,629,307 — 2,707,119
Deferred revenue BT A 14,233,334 9,679,048 — —
Accruals and other payables JE 5T FRIA K E Atb
&1 3R 1E 2,762,720 2,962,465 127,991 159,137
Due to an associate FE A — BB & A |l 2 5B 40 6,807 6,808 — —
Due to related companies FEfTBEE A R 2 A 40 265,210 81,704 — —
Due to jointly controlled entities FET S BB E 88 2 5RIB 40 2,145,551 1,574,135 — —
Current tax liabilities ANEHRIEBEE 25 4,228,820 4,117,827 19,690 19,525
45,051,755 37,773,912 147,681 2,885,781
Total liabilities BEEE 72,486,151 65,830,616 2,440,050 5,175,883
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEER 117,480,751 109,896,725 15,264,779 18,504,189
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BF)FE 43,590,088 44,004,804 (129,415) (2,747,488)
Total assets less HEERARBESE
current liabilities 72,428,996 72,122,813 15,117,098 15,618,408
Chu Mang Yee Zhang Yi
KA iR
Director Director
EF 2

The notes on pages 143 to 261 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2012 £, %

— =

—FEF - A=F—HIFFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
W &t FTHET TET
Revenues Uy = 5 9,926,605 8,007,537
Cost of sales HE KA (5,683,720) (4,329,161)
Gross profit E 1] 4,242,885 3,678,376
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMERNTE WS 8 214,622 107,397
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEENBEE
financial assets U %8 28 1,770,414 —
Other income/gains, net HAW A Was - F 5 29 58,957 361,764
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISHEEE R (503,766) (466,549)
General and administrative expenses — R ERITHER (1,357,088) (1,271,430)
Finance income WA 32 35,807 29,098
Finance costs LUR IO RN 32 (215,829) (238,539)
Share of profit of associates oG B & R BD&E A 13 3,003 351
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities DIEHBEH ERER 14 (154) (3,284)
Profit before taxation % 1 B i 4,248,851 2,197,184
Taxation Fii 18 33 (1,360,748) (788,773)
Profit for the year FERA 2,888,103 1,408,411
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of the Company KAFIRERE A 34 2,982,790 1,430,031
Non-controlling interests FEHR I 1 HE a5 (94,687) (21,620)
2,888,103 1,408,411
Earnings per share for profit attributable RERELTREZEA
to equity holders of the Company EBEEAFEZER
during the year (in HK$ per share) B (ZKRET)
— basic and diluted — AR REE 35 1.72 0.82
Dividends f% 8 36 — —

The notes on pages 143 to 261 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEZEBARRE

Forthe year ended 31st December 2012 #ZE —F—_—F 1+ - H =1 —HIFFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt iF TERT FET
Profit for the year FERA 2,888,103 1,408,411
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EWBA
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AMHHERBEE 2
financial assets NEEEE (387,407) (40,645)
Assets revaluation reserve and currency HENHEHEEN B EER
translation differences realised upon BHR o EEEHRHBER
disposal of available-for-sale BHEN Z5
financial assets (1,768,051) —
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HERELEMER
disposal of properties held for sale BREESGHHR 27(ii) (35,246) (26,684)
Deferred tax IR F 18 289,682 2,156
Currency translation differences EWELERE 21,041 2,044,172
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EEA -
for the year, net of tax HNKp#HEE (1,879,981) 1,978,999
Total comprehensive income FEXEHBALR
for the year 1,008,122 3,387,410
Total comprehensive income THATELEZE
attributable to: WA :
Equity holders of the Company KAFIRERE A 1,103,337 3,268,207
Non-controlling interests FEVE S M A (95,215) 119,203
1,008,122 3,387,410

The notes on pages 143 to 261 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31st December 2012 B ZE —F—_—F1+ - H=+—HIFFE

2012 2011
—E-—_fF —ET——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
W &t FTHET TET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRITRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations xE/ (AR)RE7ES 37(a) 3,843,832 (926,706)
Interest received 2 YA 8 35,807 29,098
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEMNSEH (1,500) (45)
Mainland China corporate RN CIPN S
income tax paid REMENR (849,945) (1,144,532)
Mainland China land B B R BE £ 3t
appreciation tax paid BED (454,623) (425,181)
Net cash from/(used in) operating RETEEES (TR Z
activities ReF8 2,573,571 (2,467,366)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Additions of land costs B A & 30 B AR (6,915) (66,922)
Additions of properties and equipment BAYENEE (218,612) (50,711)
Dividend income BB A 87,636 68,843
Additions of investment properties ISR EME (397,705) (610,149)
Decrease in deposit paid B R — 292,484
Investment in jointly BB A S RZE
controlled entities i (742,358) (164,146)
Investment in an associate BB — [ QA — (105,736)
Disposal/(additions) of available-for-sale HE/(BA)ATHEE
financial assets MG EE 2,131,365 (1,161,112)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of BEWBRA
cash acquired MREANE S 37(b) (102,156) (684,453)
De-register of a subsidiary I — M B A A (17,744) —
Decrease in prepayments for acquisition U B8 + b TE 1 FR B
of land NS — 86,830
Prepayment for acquisition of a jointly BE M EES
controlled entity BER2BEMNRIEA — (1,504,151)
Increase in pledged/charged BEHEMR MRRITEKX
bank deposits N (203,045) (878,488)
Net cash from/(used in) investing wEEBELE(FTA)Z
activities ReFE 530,466 (4,777,711)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

GERETRER(E)

For the year ended 31st December2012 B Z —F——4F+ _H=+—HILFE
2012 2011
—E—-—F —F2——%F
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Wt &t FTHET TET
Cash flows from financing activities METHRTRE
New short-term bank loans g A IR TTE K 5,215,380 6,269,025
Repayments of short-term bank loans BREHRITER (11,176,024) (2,690,804)
New long-term bank loans MERERITER 11,736,783 8,389,515
Repayments of long-term bank loans EERHFITER (1,621,952) (3,882,722)
New senior notes MIEBERE — 2,288,733
Repayment of senior notes BREEBLEER (2,715,482) —
Repayment to a jointly controlled entity BEBRT—RHHER
mEHERE (19,893) (214,707)
Advance from/(repayment to) related BREE(BERBRT)
companies EZRER/NEG] 299,695 (270,743)
Interest paid B FE (3,021,932) (2,353,452)
Repurchase of own shares BOARH KRG — (70,379)
Dividends paid to the Company’s equity i /NG
holders HBEAZKRE — (300,531)
Dividends paid to minority shareholder EET—HMEBRARZ
of a subsidiary DEIRR 2 RS (61,887) —
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BMEEE (TR, EEX2
54 %5 (1,365,312) 7,163,935
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBETEEYZ
cash equivalents #hn/ L) F8E 1,738,725 (81,142)
Cash and cash equivalents R—HA—RxZ
at Tst January RekREeFED 2,618,161 2,573,604
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and RekBEeFENL
cash equivalents PE X (&5 18) Wz (645) 125,699
Cash and cash equivalents RT+ZA=+—H2
at 31st December ReRREZEEY 4,356,241 2,618,161

The notes on pages 143 to 261 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

FI13E01 A M ERME T BEHRRE S — B

,f/'\ ®



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2012 B ZE —F—_—F1+ - H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
ARRIAER B AR

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FEE I 1T
[N & P& #HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Balance at 1st January 2011 R-E——%F
—A—HZ#& 175,237 38,011,918 2,805,944 40,993,099
Profit for the year F = % A = 1,430,031 (21,620 1,408,411
Other comprehensive income: Hih2EWA :
Fair value loss on AHEENKEE

available-for-sale NTEEEE

financial assets — (40,645) = (40,645)
Assets revaluation reserve HERIELHEYWER

realised upon disposal of BHEEESM

properties held for sale & &8 (M 2t 27ii))

(Note 27(ii)) — (26,684) — (26,684)
Deferred tax R AL IR — 2,156 — 2,156
Currency translation EWEL R

differences — 1,903,349 140,823 2,044,172

Other comprehensive income FEAMEZEEA

for the year, net of tax MR IR — 1,838,176 140,823 1,978,999
Total comprehensive income FEZEBALSE

for the year — 3,268,207 119,203 3,387,410
Transactions with owners: HBEEERS

Acquisition of equity interests W i — B B A )

of a subsidiary PR 7 HE 2 — 56,510 56,510
Dividends paid AR A — (300,531) — (300,531)
Repurchase of own shares BRSO (1,637) (68,742) — (70,379)

(1,637) (369,273) 56,510 (314,400)
Balance at 31st December 2011 R-E——%F
+ZA=+—BZ#&# 173,600 40,910,852 2,981,657 44,066,109
EEAREEERAT ¢« —E—_—FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
GERBSBR(HF)

For the year ended 31st December 2012 #E/ZF —F—_—F+ - H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

EARREREAEWN
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FEHE I
IR 2= f##E & BEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TERT TERT TER
Balance at 1st January 2012 R-ZE——F
—A—HZ#& 173,600 40,910,852 2,981,657 44,066,109
Profit for the year FE A — 2,982,790 (94,687) 2,888,103
Other comprehensive income: Efh 2 E A -
Fair value loss on AHEENKEE

available-for-sale NTEEE

financial assets — (387,407) — (387,407)
Assets revaluation reserve t & AT H S B RS

and currency translation BEREE 2

differences realised upon BEESMHEER

disposal of available-for-sale HEENEZ5

financial assets — (1,768,051) — (1,768,051)
Assets revaluation reserve HERFIELHEMER

realised upon disposal of BREESM

properties held for sale & & (B e 27(ii)

(Note 27(ii)) — (35,246) — (35,246)
Deferred tax iR SE B 1A — 289,682 — 289,682
Currency translation BEEIE N 5

differences — 21,569 (528) 21,041

Other comprehensive income FEHMEERA -
for the year, net of tax MR A — (1,879,453) (528)  (1,879,981)
Total comprehensive income FEEZEARALRE
for the year — 1,103,337 (95,215) 1,008,122
Transactions with owners: HEEFEFHFER S
De-register of a subsidiary EH—RENB AR — — (17,744) (17,744)
Dividends paid EANEYS — — (61,887) (61,887)
_ — (79,631) (79,631)
Balance at 31st December 2012 R =—Z ——4F
TZA=t—BZ#& 173,600 42,014,189 2,806,811 44,994,600

The notes on pages 143 to 261 are an integral part of these financial #$143Z261E 2T AWM EHREREF — 0
statements. 4 o
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General Information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The
Group is also involved in property investment, hotel operations
and property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28th March 2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the two years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

In 2012, the Group adopted the following new or revised
HKFRS, which are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2012 and relevant to the Group’s
operations.

HKAS 12 Amendment Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets

Annual improvements to HKFRS published in May
2011

HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

HKAS 12 Amendment introduces a presumption that an
investment property measured at fair value is recovered
entirely through sale. This presumption is rebutted if the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. Prior to the
amendment, deferred taxation on investment properties at
fair value is measured to reflect the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts of investment properties
through use.

The Group has reassessed the business models of the Group's
investment properties located in Mainland China. The
carrying values of the investment properties are expected to
be recovered through use and the presumption of sale for
these investment properties is rebutted.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of this
amendment and considered that there was no significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial position. The
adoption of the other amendment does not have any effect
on the results and financial position of the Group.

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to
Existing Standards that are Relevant but not yet

FESHBREHME®

2.1 MBEE (%)

AEECHGERALEBIZEE
BERBABHAEEZXRENTE
ARBREATE - KRS —EF]
WA EHAEE 2 XE R BRR
ERERZE -

BREEGARERZER - BB
ERZBREET

Effective

New or Revised Standards, Interpretations and

Amendments

AT A

CHEE

- RBREE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTRBHZ&
BT AEER
HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1st January 2013
Financial Liabilities
BEMBHREENFE 7R (ETA) BE—EAHCREERERARE —E—=%—HA—H

HKAS 1 Amendment

R E AR ACC )
HKAS 32 Amendment

BB & ERE325 (BRI A)
HKAS 19 (2011)

ARG ERNE1IR(ZF——F)
HKAS 27 (2011)

ARG ERNE 7R (ZF——F)
HKAS 28 (2011)

BER R ERE2H(ZF——F)

HKFRS 9
BRUBREER LR
HKFRS 10
BBUBREERE 1055
HKFRS 11
BRUBREERE 115
HKFRS 12

BB B EERE 1258
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendment

BRUBREERFE105%
BEMBREEUFNHER
BERPBHEEAE 125 (BITA)

HKFRS 13

BB REERF 135

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

EE(ERMBREREZEE) —REBF20%

Annual Improvements Project

FEBEIRR

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HEm2EKAEAENHZ

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Tst July 2012

—T——F+A—H
1st January 2014

BiEeREERSRBAE —E-mMFE-A—H
Employee Benefits 1st January 2013
B T 48 A —ZE—=%—HA—H
Separate Financial Statements 1st January 2013
BB IR R —T—=F—A—H
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1st January 2013
REEARRASLENRE —=-=%-A-8
Financial Instruments 1st January 2015
eRIA —T-—hF—-—HA—H
Consolidated Financial Statements 1st January 2013
e B HRE —ET—=%—-A—H
Joint Arrangements 1st January 2013
Ch-:a —EZ—=F—-8—H
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1st January 2013
EEMEBERNEE —E—=%—-A—H

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

1st January 2013

RRMBHRE AERHER —E—=%—HA—H
R E BRSO E
i 45 3
Fair Value Measurement 1st January 2013
AFEM B —®-=%-A-A
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1st January 2013
b 3% BR AR A EE T B2 RUER PR —T—=%—H—H
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle 1st January 2013
—ERNFER T —FRMZEFENE —F-—=%—-A—H

SEAREBARLE ¢« ZT——FFH



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

P2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to
Existing Standards that are Relevant but not yet
Effective (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, interpretations and
amendments, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s
operation and will give rise to changes in accounting
policies, disclosures or measurement of certain items in the
financial statements. However, the Group is not yet in a
position to ascertain their impact on its results and financial
position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

FESHBREHME®

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

22 HEKRE (&)
Bt /& 23 5] (4)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
The

consideration transferred for the acquisition of a

to account for business combinations.

subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered as indicator of impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Transactions with Non-controlling Interests

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions-that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

2

FESHHREHME®

22 HEKRE (#®)

(b)

(c)

BFEHItER XS

fisf B IF PR B MR 2R 2 R B AR
ERREZEHROER BIA
Ry —BEER AN
HERBEAANSGMNETHR
e EMENHEZAFER
HERERBENBARIFEE
ZHEREENEZEBARSERS
HESFFERIERE ZBEITA
RS-

EAEETBRARGIESE
REEN EXTBNEMRE
BaEFAtE2QFE FE
ENEPERDTER - 2 F
BERAREEANEREARM
ERAEREE FRBE -
BEXNETREE - MH ZAH
FE RS H b 2 A R
MERBREENAEEEBEE
RERBEEMEGE - E8K
EzAEEMEEKA R ER
MBBEEN S EERS -

BE R

BENAEENLAEEHER
BEARENMBEESENRA
TR BEMHNEE20%E50%
WERNRE -REEERA 2
WENEZSTEAR 916
LARK N FE R ©

IR EEE R B R B A 2
HURBENREBERAZE N R
BIZ L I 2 A #E H b 2 E R
AFHERANBBEHOBER
=@ (EE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint Ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Investment in jointly controlled
entity is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, whereby the investment is initially
recorded at cost and is adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results,
distributions received, other necessary alterations in the
Group’s proportionate interest in jointly controlled
entity arising from changes in equity of jointly
controlled entity that have not been included in the
consolidated income statement of the jointly controlled
entity. The excess of cost of investment over the
Group’s share of the aggregate fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired at the date of acquisition
is tested annually for impairment, as well as when there
is indication of impairment, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The Group’s share of
post-acquisition results after taxation of jointly
controlled entities is included in the consolidated
income statement.

A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves the joint
control and ownership by the Group and other parties
of assets contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of,
the joint venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled
asset. The Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and
any liabilities incurred jointly with other joint venture
partners are recognised and classified according to the
nature of the relevant items. Income from the sale or
use of the Group’s share of the output of jointly
controlled assets is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group, whilst the Group’s share of
expenses in respect of jointly controlled assets is
recognised as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors who make strategic decisions.

Foreign Currency Translation
(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured in Renminbi, which
is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)
(c) Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) ~ all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Foreign Operation and Partial

Disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Properties and Equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.5 Properties and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel property 28 to 30 years

(superstructure)
Buildings Shorter of useful life
of 50 years or lease term
Furniture and office 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods
or services in the ordinary course of business. These
properties are carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures, borrowing costs directly attributable to
construction of such properties and other direct costs, less
any impairment losses. On completion, the properties are
transferred to the appropriate categories of properties and
equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until
they are completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.6 Investment Properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property. Investment property also
includes property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International
Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are
performed annually by external independent valuers.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is
only applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably
measurable.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of land
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.6 Investment Properties (Continued)

2.7

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
this item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and taken directly to equity as a
revaluation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is
classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.

Properties under Development for Sale and
Completed Properties for Sale

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale are included in current assets at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2ot/

2.8

Properties under Development for Sale and
Completed Properties for Sale (Continued)

The costs of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale consist of land costs,
construction expenditures, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business as determined
by management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions, less further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Company’s interest in net
fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current asset.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FESTBRBME@®
(Continued)

210 B EE &)

2.10 Financial Assets (Continued)

(b) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets.

(c) Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other income/gains, net”, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net” when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
“other income/gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models, making maximum use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific
inputs.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (Continued)

2.11

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in
Note 2.11.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of accounts receivable is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivable. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

2

FESHHREHME®

2.12

2.13

2.14

ReRBEEEEY

RehReEEVMERTERAS
FR|ITZEMNEFSR REMEE
HRB=EAXUNAMRBEEERS
ZREHRE -

iR 2

EBEROBEREAR - BITHRAE
P #E B FE MG 2 R 48 AR T R B AR
MBI E T 1S 5R IR (I BR B IR) Z Rk ©

HEMAEEXERABBEEARRQA
ZREHEBRA XN ZRE(RE
EREREEZHEXRABEMSG
) IR R BB A A S B
TG BEEZERMOBEEH -

BE
EENREAFEHBEELEZR
SGRA)ER - XHRARUWE - &
TREEMBEEXAMBABER
B ZHBAA - BRERNE - B
Bl BEkX5EXNZ2ER KA
T HEERERBRESIZAAE
WeFBERBPELRERBRR -
EEERZCEERAIE: AE
KA ZKA) LELEEM
ZEFMEZEREERERERM X
EREABERANER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.15 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.16 Current and Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee Benefits

(a) Pension Obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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FESHBREHME®

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.17 Employee Benefits (Continued) 217 EERA (#)

(b) Share-based Compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as expenses. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market performance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sales of properties and services

in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of Properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the buyers, which is when the
construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have
been issued to the buyers and collectability of related
receivables pursuant to the sale agreements is
reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
the properties are included as deferred revenue under
current liabilities.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant leases.

Property Management Fees, Property Design
Fees and Marketing Consultancy Fees

Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the
services are rendered.

Hotel Operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon
provision of services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Government Grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will
be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate. Grants relating to the purchase
of properties and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
Amounts received for which the earning process has
not been completed are accounted for as deferred
revenue.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.20 Operating Leases (as the Lessee)

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of

ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases.

(i)

(ii)

The Group is the Lessee other than Operating
Lease of Land Use Rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor), are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

The Group is the Lessee under Operating Lease
of Land Use Rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights on which properties will be
developed.

For land use rights to be developed for investment
properties which are measured at fair values, the
upfront payments are included in the cost of investment
properties and accounted for as finance lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties
and self-use buildings, the upfront payments are
separately recorded as assets and amortised over the
periods on a straight-line basis. The amortisation during
the period of time that is required to develop the
properties for its intended use, the land amortisation is
capitalised as the cost of construction in progress. In
other periods, the land amortisation is charged to the
consolidated income statement.
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FESHBREHME®

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

220 REBFE (ERAABAN) (&)
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2.20 Operating Leases (as the Lessee) (Continued)

(ii) The Group is the Lessee under Operating Lease (ii)
of Land Use Rights (Continued)

For land use rights to be developed for properties for
sale, the upfront payments are included as properties
under development for sale or completed properties for

sale which are measured at the lower of cost and net Eoh A HEE 2D BRI E
realisable value. WAR R AR K ] B3R FER E F
ZEBIREFER o
2.21 Insurance Contracts 221 REBEEH
The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect AREEBBSEBEBAETE TYWEERZ
of mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers HBREERMGTEEGECERNE
and guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries ’A Al ERZMBEREHRBR
as insurance contracts. B a4 o
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities NREF@NANZEEHFNBRE ‘;L]‘EE

under its insurance contracts using current estimates of future
cash flows. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance
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liabilities are recognised in the consolidated income BEHETRGRIEDRRER -
statement.

2.22 Dividend Distribution 222 & B 2K
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is mAR R KRR D IR REEREE

recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s Directors/shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effect on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently considers not
necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

(a) Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on
account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates in
Mainland China with most of the transactions
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of the
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HMBEBRER®
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREAX#)
(a) Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued) (a) ZPEE JE fz (42)

At 31st December 2012, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by one percentage-point against US dollar
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$22.1 million (2011:
HK$49.2 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of US
dollar denominated senior notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2012, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by one percentage-point against HK dollar
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$0.1 million (2011:
HK$0.3 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HK
dollar denominated bank deposits.

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit
exposures to customers. The Group has credit policies
in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and
financial institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At
31st December 2012, deposits with banks amounted to
HK$5,587 million (2011: HK$3,648 million) were
placed with a number of international/national/
provincial/municipal financial institutions with sound
credit ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group
normally receives deposits or progress payments from
sales of residential properties to customers prior to the
completion of transactions. In addition, the Group
monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly
controlling their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial positions on a
regular basis.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. If
a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group
is able to retain the property sales proceeds received
from the customers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is minimal (see also Note 38).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset (other than
equity securities included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets) in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to
third parties. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable is set out in Note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 MBERBRERw
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 3.1 iEBEZE#)
(c) Liquidity Risk ) mEEZREE

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a level
which is considered adequate by the Group to finance
the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient cash
to meet its business development requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to offset the potential impact on the Group’s
business development and current operation, should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow
may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s
Directors consider that the Group will be able to
maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.

As at 3Tst December 2012, the Company’s current
liabilities exceeds current assets by HK$129,415,000,
primarily due to the Company’s interest payable on
senior notes. After considering the proceeds from the
issuance of new senior notes of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,327,000,000) on
16th January 2013, the Directors consider that the
Company will have sufficient financial resources to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due (see also
Note 42).

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3

(c) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

3 BE¥RRERE®

31 MBRABER®)
() mBELZEE (&)

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years 5 years
15/ 182F 2855 BB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Group £
At 31st December 2012 R-ZBE——-F
+=-A=+-—-H
Borrowings (including interests) EBEEBEME) 18,726,790 9,014,588 15,276,947 261,083
Accounts payable and accruals e BR X - FERT RUR
and other payables Ko H 4 e 1 5708 7,900,653 — — —
Land cost payable FEA L AR AR 750,732 59,651 — —
Due to an associate JE i — Fl Bt 2 1 )
s O 6,807 — — _
Due to related companies e BE A 2 A 265,210 — — —
Due to jointly controlled entities & {5 [ 422 % & 48
2 28 2,145,551 — — —
Due to minority shareholders ERIBARZ
of subsidiaries DEIRE 2 FIA — — — 556,080
29,795,743 9,074,239 15,276,947 817,163
At 31st December 2011 R-ZB——F
+=-A=+-—-H
Borrowings (including interests) EBEEBEEME) 16,565,498 12,714,481 9,474,420 3,334,968
Accounts payable and accruals e BRI - FERT RUR
and other payables R E i FE 5 5038 8,082,471 — — —
Land cost payable JE £~ £ # B ZR 602,612 81,481 = =
Due to an associate JE i — F Bt 2 2 )
Z IR 6,808 — — —
Due to related companies FEFRE 1 B 2 3R 81,704 — — —
Due to a jointly controlled entity  f& {5 — i £k &) 122
ER TR 1,574,135 — — —
Due to minority shareholders R BRARZ
of subsidiaries DB 2 FIA — — = 439,841
26,913,228 12,795,962 9,474,420 3,774,809
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

(c)

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 MBERBRERw
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 31 BIRRERBEE#)
Liquidity Risk (Continued) (c REBEZEEE)

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years 5 years
15R 182F 285 HB5H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET
Company YN
At 31st December 2012 R-ZE—Z-F
+t=A=+-8”
Borrowings &e 273,249 273,249 2,621,542 —
Accruals and other payables FEEFRIE R E A
eI KR 127,991 - — —
401,240 273,249 2,621,542 —
At 31st December 2011 R-ZB——F
+t=ZA=t—-8”
Borrowings B’E 3,215,250 273,969 2,902,421 —
Accruals and other payables FEFTFRIE R HoAth
FE 43R 159,137 — — —
3,374,387 273,969 2,902,421 —
The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for ERTEBREARTAEEYE
mortgage facilities granted to certain buyers of the ZETERZRIBERMIA ﬁE
Group’s properties (see Notes 3.1(b) and 38) as TIEH 2 ER(Z2REBE3 b
management considers the risk as minimal. 538) REAREBERR ﬁ
BERCEZRE -
Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest-rate Risk (d) BE7mRAFEFERRE

(d)

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits
and borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk.

BERR

AEBZHNERRITIBAE BR
TEFRREEES -RITEXR
&Mﬁ@ﬂ7$WZPEA$
EEASZBRERFERR - M
NEEMEZER2EESA
SEAXATFTENERR K
SEVERERES R MAFEE
M = B 4 S o

EEBRAT o ZF-—_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(d) Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest-rate Risk
(Continued)

At 31st December 2012, if interest rates had increased/
decreased by one percentage-point and all other
variables were held constant, the net finance income
(after taking into account the interest expenses
capitalised in the properties under development),
would increase/decrease the Group’s post-tax profit by
approximately HK$33 million (2011: HK$19 million).

3.2 Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity owners and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital Risk Management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

w

BEERERE®)

3.2

EvEREERE @

R-E-——_FRFR-_ZF——F+_-A
=t—RZEXREBELIRNT :

2012 2011

—F--F Z—FT——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TET

Total borrowings BiEE 36,791,226 35,347,888
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and o B HRRITERRE

cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) RekBEEFEY

(K&t20) (5,589,170) (3,648,254)

Net debt BEFE 31,202,056 31,699,634

Total equity MR 44,994,600 44,066,109

Gearing ratio EXRBELE 69% 72%

The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
increase in profit attributable to equity holders during the
year and increase in pledged/charged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

Fair Value Estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

J Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).

3.3

ERBBELERTRIEHRFARE
BERAARGERAENREERR
RERTERERERBEEED
KENFTEK -

ATEEE

TRUABEEZDTEAFEFEZ
MBITAE - TRRBIZEZWT :

s HERBEXRBERNERMS
ZRECRAR) (B1R) -

s FBIRAMEBHENEEHKAR
ABRcEERS AZERMB®M
ER)EEHABEMA
EBratEE) (RERK) (2
&) -

e HEELREMSLIFRIEA

BIEMSBE @ ABEM
THBZEEER) (F34) -

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR

177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 MBERBRBERw
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 3.3 2 EMERE®)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are TREIWNR=_BE—=F+=-A=+
measured at fair value at 31st December 2012: —AEATEFEZAEBEE -
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E1H HE3{ BEr

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$000
TERT THERT TERT

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEEBER R
profit or loss WS EE
— Trading securities —BEF 5 13,552 — 13,552
Available-for-sale financial assets AHETMKEEE
— Equity securities — BRAEFEFH — 2,684,836 2,684,836
Total assets BB E 13,552 2,684,836 2,698,388
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are TREBIR-_B——F+_H=+
measured at fair value at 31st December 2011: —HEATEFAEZAEEHEE
Level 1 Level 3 Total
Y FE3R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T&T F&T T3
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through HATEEARBZEYE
profit or loss WS EE
— Trading securities —BEF S 11,456 — 11,456
Available-for-sale financial assets A ETMKEE
— Equity securities e N 2,130,561 3,072,774 5,203,335
Total assets BEE 2,142,017 3,072,774 5,214,791
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily Mainland
China and Hong Kong equity investments classified as trading
securities or available-for-sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. There was no instrument included in
level 2 at 31st December 2011 and 2012.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Instruments included in level 3 represent unlisted equity
securities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include market approach by applying multiple
methodologies with reference to similar companies and with
regard to the risks and nature of the business.

3

R RERE#)

3.3

DR EGLEE)

REBMESAEESRTAZAF
BNREREEBR 2AMmEER
FE-MAKREREBR S
RPE K5 ZRAR  RERS
SEERBESHRE BZFER
BEREEHMRAFEELETZT
BEX5 AMmBARAERE A&
BABMEEEMAZTERES
BRI<EAB - HETADHAFE
Mo BIRFAZIAFEBRE S
RBEFXGRAFLERBEELZ
TEAERBEZBRAKE -

RAREEERMBEE ST A (40
BOTETR) 2 AFEDFRGEE
FEE - WEREREAEMEATSH
RMBEREZAEREEZR TR
ARERm OB E RS EMEA - WET
EfE—EHIAZAFEMETEKX
BARBEBUBERE AEIAS
HFAF 2R - BHE—_ET——FR_-F
——#F#+-_A=+—BITETA
FFAZE 24 -

i — ARz EEXNEAREL IR
BRABEMSHEFE AEITA
BEAFIR-FTAFEIRZTASE
FEMERARES -

ARG EERTABEZREMRE

BREERBHEIEZLZ2EREARF
AR R R B H T I5E

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

3

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31st
December 2012 are as follows:

ERRERE %

33 AR EME )
BE_Z——F+-_A=+—81
FE - -FEIRTALHOT :

Available-for-sale
financial assets

AHHENBEE

HK$’000

TET

At 1st January 2012 N—_E——F—HF—H 3,072,774
Fair value loss recognised in equity RSP HER 2 A FEEE (387,407)
Exchange difference I 5 = 5 (531)
At 31st December 2012 R—_E——F+-_A=+—H 2,684,836

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
accounts receivable, accounts payable, balances with related
parties and land cost payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments or
based on the current bid price in the market.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated Impairment of Properties and
Equipment and Intangible Assets

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each
balance sheet date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment and intangible assets have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations,
taking into account latest market information and past
experience. These calculation and valuations require
the use of judgements and estimates.

Estimated Provision of Properties under
Development for Sale and Completed
Properties for Sale

For the purpose of determining provision, properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows. The recoverability of
the carrying amounts of these assets is assessed based
on their fair value less costs to sell. The fair value is
determined taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. Provision is made when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and estimates.

4

EESTHERHAE @)

41 EESHERBR®)

@) WERRGREFEEEZ

1d; 51 7Bt 16

MERBRBEDIRBEMHRIBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

(Continued)

(c) Estimate of Fair Value of Investment Properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences, by reference

to independent valuations; and

(ii)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices, by
reference to independent valuations.

In the case of investment properties under development,
their fair value reflects the expectations of market
participants of the value of the properties when they are
completed, less deductions for the costs required to
complete the projects and appropriate adjustments for
profit and risk. The valuation and all key assumptions
used in the valuation should reflect market conditions
at the balance sheet date. The key assumptions include
value of completed properties, period of development,
outstanding construction costs, finance costs, other
professional costs, risk associated with completing the
projects and generating income after completion and
investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost. The
fair value is made by reference to independent

valuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of Fair Value of Investment Properties
(Continued)

It may sometimes be difficult to determine reliably the
fair value of the investment property under
development. In order to evaluate whether the fair
value of an investment property under development
can be determined reliably, management considers the
following factors, among others:

e The provisions of the construction contract
e The stage of completion

J Whether the project/property is standard (typical
for the market) or non-standard

. The level of reliability of cash inflows after
completion

e The development risk specific to the property

o Past experience with similar constructions

J Status of construction permits

Estimate of Fair Value of Available-for-sale
Financial Assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that
are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods (such as
market approach by applying multiple methodologies)
and evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost; and the financial health and business
outlook for the investee. The key assumptions adopted
on the valuation methodologies are based on
management’s best estimates.

4

EEE

FTHER A2

41 EESHERBR®)

(c)

(d)

REYEZ R FEME
(%)

HRERFREMWELFE
ERXGHATEETE A
FHEERTREVELTFER
BHAUEET EEEREE
(EHBEHR)ATEE:

- EA/MERTEEE
(#7045 1 = /B % i8) 5 3

@

e EHBRAESARAZAE
BE

s WEBEZERAR

e HBUBREIRZBER

s RBEMAREINR

JRLHEMBEEEZLF
E1gar

AEREEBRMSZEER 2t H
EMBEEZ R FEIERRBMG
EXEE - ARERBHEE
BRBIE(DINERBEES
AR EE) LG (BIEE M
RR)BREZRFEEREMKX
AHEHEEEE: RERER
B E B 75 A2 2 AR A B 3 75 Al
BoEENEARANEZERR
TTREEEENKEME

183



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Continued)

(e)

Current Taxation and Deferred Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
taxation assets and taxation in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of these taxes varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and the Group
has not finalised most of its land appreciation taxes
clearance and payments with the local tax authorities
in Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group
recognised these land appreciation taxes based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the taxation
and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4 EEEGHERIE @
(Continued)

4.1 EEETFHERRBRR®E)

4.1 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Continued)

(f)  Depreciation 0 HE

The Group’s net book value of properties and equipment
as at 31st December 2012 was approximately
HK$3,435,475,000 (2011: HK$3,264,839,000). The Group
depreciates the hotel properties, buildings, furniture and
office equipment and motor vehicles on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 28 to 30 years, 50
years, 5 years and 3 to 5 years, respectively, and after
taking into account their estimated residual value,
commencing from the date the asset is placed into
productive use. The estimated useful lives and dates that
the Group places the properties and equipment into
productive use reflects the Directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s assets.

AEBIZMERRHER_Z —
—F+-_A=+—HBZ2EEF
& 4 %3,435,475,0007% 7T( —
LT — — 4 :3,264,839,000/5
L) RSB HEEEMNIRAE
SEREZHR LWEKER
S RI28E304F ~ 504 « 5F AKX
3ESF 2 fHE A B FEH R
A REEMRAFHKREBRE
HBEDE BT XM R
RERBARSEFTERTE -
mErr AFHE AN EEIEY

HEBEBEAEERRZBH
RHEEHAEERBERRN
EEEEEERREENZZ
HAFE 2 fhET o

42 EEESFHHE
(a) Revenue Recognition (@) WA ER

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements

The Group has recognised revenue from the sales of
properties in the ordinary course of business, as
disclosed in Note 2.19. The assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership coincides
with the date when the equitable interest in the
property vests with the buyer upon handover of the
respective property to the buyer.

A 219 R EE - AEE
EERBXEN-—REKFHE
MR W o W E R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 38, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks. In order to obtain mortgages, the purchasers
would have settled certain percentage of the total
contract amount in accordance with the related PRC
regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements
provide sufficient evidence of the purchasers’
commitment to honour their contractual obligations of
the bank loans. In addition, based on past experiences,
there were no significant defaults of mortgage facilities
by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that
significant risks and rewards associated with ownership
of the properties have been transferred to the
purchasers.

Financial Implication of Regulations of Idle Land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property
developer fails to develop land according to the terms
of a land grant contract, including the designated use of
the land and the time of commencement and
completion of the property development, the PRC
Government may regard the land as idle and issue a
warning or impose a penalty on the developer or
reclaim the land. The Group has certain tracts of land
for which development has not commenced according
to the specified terms of the respective land grant
contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether
these tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle
land or may be reclaimed by the Government and
thereby resulting in any adverse financial impact to the
Group. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities as
to the extension of time of commencement or revision
of development plans.
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4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.2 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(c) Distinction between Investment Properties and

Owner-occupied Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but also
to other assets used in the production or supply
process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both a business
and geographic perspective. Reportable business segments
identified are property development, property investment, hotel
operations and property management. Geographically, the
Executive Directors consider that the reportable business segments
can be further segregated into three main geographical areas,
namely Southern China (SC) (including Guangzhou, Huizhou,
Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China (NC) (including
Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) and Eastern
China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou and Ningbo).

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted segment results.
Corporate expense, finance income and finance costs are not
included in the results for each operating segment that is reviewed
by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist primarily of properties and equipment,
investment properties, investments in jointly controlled entities,
prepayments for acquisition of land, properties under development
for sale, completed properties for sale, prepayments, deposits and
other current assets and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude
available-for-sale financial assets which are managed on a central
basis, and deferred tax assets. These are part of the reconciliation
to total balance sheet assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical
Areas

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from
external parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in
a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income
statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from rental and hotel operations, and

DEER &)
REKRMWEE D 2D BELE
SERE TR A $X%1ﬁﬁ

TEFER2HIINRKRFRE
R—BzAAFE-

“mﬁﬁ:k
Bk &

WaBMEHEEMSRELR HEe B
JEEEW S AR EERRABMK

property management income.

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Sales of properties MEHEE 8,852,257 7,170,325

Property management income EEEBUWA 583,615 490,115

Income from hotel operations T & UL A 237,551 199,444
Rental income e A

— Investment properties —REMHE 139,612 41,712

— Others —HAth 113,570 105,941

9,926,605 8,007,537

EEAREEERAT ¢« —E—_—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 aHER@®
Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical BREBKRWES P 22BEE &)
Areas (Continued)
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for HE-_Z——F£+-_A=+—HIEFE
the year ended 31st December 2012 are as follows: WEBRMRIED 2D LEBWT -
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERR NERE BEEE NEEE 58
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC NC

8 R 57 5 R 5 £H 5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TErn TEx TEx TEx TER FER TER TERL TERL TERL

Year ended BE-E2-C-F

31st December 2012 +=B=t+-H

LEE

Total revenues Al 6 3,077,021 3978774 2,262423 57,669 83,610 — 34263 203,288 591,929 10,288,977
Inter-segment revenues AHERE (309,682) — (42,709 - (1,667) - - - 8314)  (362,372)
Revenues U2 2767339 3978774 2219714 57,669 81,943 — 34263 203,288 583,615 9,926,605
Adjusted segment results BRABLHLE 333,238 1,615,335 533532 (254,445 394,844 140406 3298  (184173) (27,801) 2,554,144
Depreciation ik (7,955 (34200 (202600  (131) (126) 19 (7,439  (120,631) (2,446)  (162,427)
Amortisation B - - — — — — (7,246) (6,286) — (13,532)
Provision for impairment of accounts & 1§ B 7 (B & &

receivable — — — — — — — — (42,843) (42,843)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment ¥ E¥1% 2 A ¥ A

properties (BiB)/ s - - —  (285070) 357,487 142,205 — — — 214,622
Share of (loss)/profit of PEHERR

associates (B8)/ & (101) — 3,104 — — - - - — 3,003
Share of (loss)/profit of jointly AERRRHIEE

controlled entities (B#8)/ 87 (335) - 181 — — — - - - (154)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 ZEER®)
Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical BEBRMWEE T 2D ELE (&)
Areas (Continued)
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—BIFE
the year ended 31st December 2011 are as follows: BEBRMWBE D 2 DEEEOT ¢
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NELE MERE BEEE mELE £@
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC NC

@ R Bt E@ R OEX E@ £
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS$'000
TAL  TERL  TER TER  TER TRz TRz TAR TAL  TARL

Year ended BE-E2--%

31st December 2011 +ZB=t+-H

LEE

Total revenues Al 2,651,020 1,921,790 3,118,211 20,189 21,523 — 34,628 164,816 497,346 8,429,529
Inter-segment revenues R il g (358,641) —  (56,120) — — — — — (7,231)  (421,992)
Revenues Iz 2292385 1,921,790 3,062,091 20189 21,523 — 34628 164,816 490,115 8,007,537
Adjusted segment results BRENHEE 449270 901,509 835,850 58,694 3,747 10,536 9,969 (164,997) 1879 2,123,374
Depreciation & (8,622) (2,787) (7,867) (152) (125) — (7,126)  (117,789) (2,091)  (146,559)
Amortisation B — — — — — — (3,128) (3,394 — (6,522)
Provision for impairment of accounts & 4§ B 3 5l (B2 fig

receivable — — — - — — = = (420) (420)
Fair value gain on investment BENEZATE

properties Yok — — — 82,382 4,828 20,187 — — — 107,397
Share of profit of associates A E D AR 296 — 55 - — — — — - 351
Share of loss of a jointly A —EERZH

controlled entity EREE — — (3,284) - — — — — — (3,284)

SEAREBARLE ¢« ZT——FFH
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 ZEERE)
Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical BREBRMWEE D 2 WEE (&)

Areas (Continued)

The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as RIE——F+-_A=1+—"HBEEZHBRE
at 31st December 2012 are as follows: WERESZHIHEEWNT :
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
WERR NERE BEEEE NEEE 58
sC £C NC sC £C NC sC EC NC
#H 3 ) #H 3 #1 2@ E3 Y #

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TERL TER TERL TEr TE=R TERL TERL TERL TER

As at 31st December 2012 N-8--&
+ZB=+-R 34895952 18791759 39,011,526 5332406 10429824  1471,040 607,718 1,051,538 2,642,492 262,326 114,496,581

Segment assets include: PHEERSE:
Investments in associates REERE
ZHE 2,237 - 152,422 - - - - - - - 154,659
Investments in jointly R ERE ]
controlled entities i PAY 2,442,920 — 1,584,519 - - - - - - - 4,027,439
For the year ended HE-Z--F
31st December 2012 +=B=+-8
LFE

Additions to non-current assets R E 3EiR B4 &

(other than financial (TBELR
instruments and deferred TARER
tax assets) HBEEE) 744,141 22,110 40,691 241,966 420,502 44,037 4,825 94,320 50,222 2,206 1,665,020
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 ZEER®)
Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical BEBRMWEE T 2D ELE (&)
Areas (Continued)
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as RZE——F+_A=+—"HREBKK
at 31st December 2011 are as follows: WERESZHIHEEWNT
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER MERE BELE NEER £E
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC

5 ER ®X ®®  ER £ 28 £R =Y
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TER  FER TAT TET TET  TER  TET TR

As at 31st December 2011 R-E--%
+ZB=+-H 31,692,887 18,324,211 33,518,088 5,370,445 10,491,960 1,119,520 931,398 87,427 2,776,352 160,862 104,473,150

Segment assets include: ABEERHE
Investments in associate REERE
ZRE 2,339 — 149,346 - — — = = = — 151,685
Investments in jointly R
controlled entities BEEIRE 168,373 — 1,584,631 — - — — — — — 1,753,004
For the year ended BE-2--%
31st December 2011 +-B=t-H
LEE
Additions to non-current REFRDEE
assets (other than financial (TefEew
instruments and deferred TARERE
tax assets) WEEE) 172,753 6,517 114,890 165,399 645,137 19,537 29,234 57,226 17,459 4280 1,232,432
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5

Segment Results by Business Lines and Geographical
Areas (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to
profit before taxation is as follows:

oEE R (#)
REBRHEBEE D 2D HEE &)

A] 2 0 R 2 AR & a A B BR B AT i A B
BRIAE

Ral

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAT
Reportable segment profit from operations A 28D B E 5 A 2,554,144 2,123,374
Unallocated corporate (expense)/income, net KOBRAR (B WA - F5 (27,417) 215,067
Dividend income from available-for-sale RAHEENBEERR 2
financial assets PSRN 131,732 68,184
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEENKEE
financial assets Wz 1,770,414 —
Finance income B 75 A 35,807 29,098
Finance costs B 7% A AR (215,829) (238,539)
Profit before taxation B A% A1 4 ) 4,248,851 2,197,184
Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets is as Aoz EELRREEYERNOT !
follows:
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAT
Total segment assets DEEEBE 114,496,581 104,473,150
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ENKEE 2,684,836 5,203,335
Deferred tax assets BREFRIEERE 299,334 220,240
Total assets BEE 117,480,751 109,896,725

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the year ended 31st December 2012 and 2011 are from Mainland
China.

As at 31st December 2012 and 2011, all non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets are located in
Mainland China.
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6

Land Costs

6 TR

Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel THAAEBREDEREREFZIEN

properties and self-use buildings.

RETHER -

Group
-3
2012 2011
—F-=F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T T
At 1st January nN—HA—H 714,967 622,193
Additions 7 48 15,871 44,154
Transfer from investment properties , properties ~ &t E R E Y% A EE 2
under development for sale and prepayments BRAPYERYE T
for acquisition of land T8 15 K18 813,504 22,711
Amortisation b (13,532) (6,522)
Exchange difference PE 5 == (1,812) 32,431
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 1,528,998 714,967
In Mainland China, held on: KRB RE  ZUATHAFE
Land use rights of between 10 and 50 years NF10FE50F 2 i
1= P 4 1,525,676 711,563
In Hong Kong, held on: RES BUATHREFE -
Leases of over 50 years 50F LA E 2 A 3,322 3,404
1,528,998 714,967
As at 31st December 2012, net book amount of approximately RZE-——F+-_A=+—RH x&EHE
HK$74,591,000 (2011: HK$76,490,000) of the Group’s land was A FE#74,591,0008 L (=ZF ——F:
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 23). 76,490,000 7T) 2 T B IFIE R £ H

ZRITEEZEM R PFRE23) ©

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

Properties and Equipment 7 WERFZE
Group
&
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress  properties Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
BRR
EEIR EEYE BF BAERE RE M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FERT FERT FERT FTERT
Year ended BE-ZE—=F
31st December 2012 +=—A=+—H
LHEE
Opening net book amount HA ) BE % (8 244,391 2,186,095 670,519 135,101 28,733 3,264,839
Additions (including i (BEERL
capitalisation of o b 6H)
land amortisation) 174,746 28,014 — 12,637 3,215 218,612
Transfer from investment EEEIRE
properties LIS 115,282 — — — — 115,282
Acquisition of equity interests  Y¢ #& [ B A 7]
of subsidiaries IR AR HE =
(Note 37(b)) (Kia£37(b)) — — — 179 — 179
Depreciation e — (96,856) (16,323) (42,995) (6,253)  (162,427)
Disposals & — — — (66) (319) (385)
Transfer B (56,741) — 43,378 17,765 (4,402) —
Exchange difference X (67) (398) (126) 24) (10) (625)
Closing net book amount R EBREFE 477,611 2,116,855 697,448 122,597 20,964 3,435,475
At 31st December 2012 R-ZE—Z-F
+=ZHA=+-—H
Cost B A 477,611 2,499,248 761,603 391,648 67,502 4,197,612
Accumulated depreciation i E — (382,393) (64,155) (269,051) (46,538) (762,137)
Net book amount R FE 477,611 2,116,855 697,448 122,597 20,964 3,435,475
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ma

7

B 5 ¥R R B 5E (4F)

Properties and Equipment (Continued) 7 WMEERRHE®
Group
£
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress  properties Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
R K
FERIRE JBEYME BF PRERME e B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THBTT TATT THETT THETT
Year ended BE_Z2——F
31st December 2011 +=A=+—H
EFE
Opening net book amount B BR % B 607,442  2,175026 233,786 158,106 25,485 3,199,845
Additions (including Wig(REER
capitalisation of 1k & 3t 8H)
land amortisation) 35,253 — — 8,031 7,427 50,711
Acquisition of equity 1 % B /8 A =]
interests of subsidiaries R AR R 25 — — — 4,815 — 4,815
Depreciation e — (94,519) (4,090) (42,588) (5,362)  (146,559)
Disposals H & = — — (362) (130) (492)
Transfer K (418,929) — 418,929 — — —
Exchange difference P ERR 20,625 105,588 21,894 7,099 1,313 156,519
Closing net book amount HY 4R BR T F B 244,391 2,186,095 670,519 135,101 28,733 3,264,839
At 31st December 2011 R=-ZE——F
+=A=+—H
Cost %N 244,391 2,471,694 699,306 365,189 66,797 3,847,377
Accumulated depreciation REE —  (285,599) (28,787) (230,088) (38,064)  (582,538)
Net book amount REEE 244391 2,186,095 670,519 135,101 28,733 3,264,839

Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately

HK$1,837,410,000 (2011:

HK$1,979,463,000) as at 31st

December 2012 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking

facilities (Note 23).

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and hotel

properties, which will be held for the long-term. All construction in
progress is located in Mainland China on land held under land use

rights expiring from 2042 through 2046.

R-_E——F+-_F=+—8 EEF
8 #91,837,410,0007%8 Tw( = & — — F :
1,979,463,00078 7T ) 2 B J& ) % B K 18 1E
AEBBITEE 2T G (HaE23) °

ERTITRITEERUFAZETREBESE
ME-MEERZIRUNTERE UK
LABRBR TN _FZE TN NFH
BEm T ERERE 2 L1 -

—ZFFR
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8 Investment Properties 8 WREWF
Group
S
2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Completed investment properties ERREKREME 5,420,238 5,275,688
Investment properties under development BEDIEEYE 11,115,495 11,361,785
16,535,733 16,637,473
At Tst January W—HA—H 16,637,473 15,405,498
Additions (including capitalisation of interest) i (BREERNLFE) 657,571 829,969
Transfer to land costs, properties and equipment B &= + H A AN « ) % R & &
and properties under development for sale MAHEEZHRTYE (970,864) (481,188)
Fair value gain on investment properties B Y =N FERE 214,622 107,397
Exchange difference fE 3 =58 (3,069) 775,797
At 31st December Rt+—_A=+—8H 16,535,733 16,637,473
All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land PREREY RGN B ARE R AZRR
held under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2058. They BR-_ZE=+FZ_Th /\FHBEER
were stated at fair values with reference to valuations performed on Mt ERERBEZ L MEREME
an open market value basis by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, E2ERERBUGEMNBRBRRITAR
independent qualified valuers, as at 31st December 2012. RARZEBE-—ZF+_A=+—BEA
FMmEEREEETZMEE AR FET
BE o
As at 31st December 2012, approximately HK$7,907,601,000 R—ZE—=—F+-_A=Z=+—H &%
(2011: HK$5,906,934,000) of the Group’s investment properties E 497,907,601,000% 7T( = & — — & :
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 5,906,934,00078 7T) Z IR & ¥ ¥ 2 H R 1E
23). AEBRTEE 2 BT M (FRE23)
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9

Properties under Development for Sale 9 AHHEZRERYE
Group
S
2012 2011
—F—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Amount comprises: TR
Land costs + AR AN 33,835,679 32,325,047
Construction costs AN 16,504,811 14,731,713
Finance costs capitalised B & A1k B 5 B A 3,973,762 2,007,775
54,314,252 49,064,535
Expected to be completed and available for sale  FEHA# R BB+ — @ A%
after more than twelve months BIRAHEEE 44,131,140 41,377,736
Expected to be completed and available for sale T8 HA# A+ — @ A A% T
within twelve months KAl g & 10,183,112 7,686,799
54,314,252 49,064,535
All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland FTERHEEZERTYWEALNF
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring RERURNBELMEREMFA 2 L
from 2037 through 2081. W ZELHERER _ZT=LtFE_F
N\ — 5 J& i e
As at 31st December 2012, approximately HK$11,418,687,000 R—ZE——F+=_A=+—H8' &%
(2011: HK$6,054,370,000) of the Group’s properties under E 4911,418,687,0008 T(=Z & — — F :
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s 6,054,370,0007%8 7T) 2 AT i & 2 B &

banking facilities (Note 23).

MEDBBEAEBRTEE ZRKER
(Pff5E23) ©

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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10 Completed Properties for Sale

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China
and are located on land held under land use rights expiring from
2037 through 2078.

As at 3Tst December 2012, approximately HK$2,019,428,000
(2011: HK$2,569,851,000) of the Group’s completed properties for
sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
23).

10 IR HEZE BRI E

EHAHEEZEZXRMEBLR P
RERURRELMEREMFTAE 2L
W ZELHWERAER_FT=LFE_F
T NEFER e

RZTEBE—=—F+=-_A=+—8B' K&
#2,019,428,000/8 w( = & — — F :
2,569,851,000% 7T) 2 Al fff i & 2 B & K
MEBEFEAEBRRTEEZRTF R
(Pt 5E23) °

11 Intangible Assets 11 BEEE
Group
&
Goodwill
[k
2012 2011
—E-—F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
At 1st January ®n—H—H 41,245 124,837
Transfer 2R — (85,542)
Exchange difference ME X =R ® 1,950
At 31st December Rt+—_A=+—8H 41,237 41,245
Cost DN 53,653 53,663
Accumulated impairment charge 2 REER (12,416) (12,418)
Net book amount BREEE 41,237 41,245
Goodwill mainly relates to the property management segment. MEXZHEYEEROIEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

12 Subsidiaries 12 B QT
(@) Investments in Subsidiaries @ RKBARIZEE
Company
YN
2012 2011
—2--F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG  ERKARE 92,372 92,389
Due from subsidiaries A NG E ) 15,154,141 18,273,507
15,246,513 18,365,896

(b)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December
2012 are set out in Note 41.

Loans to Subsidiaries

EEHEABDRESEET 28
R A 4B T8 TE 4B BRI

N—ZTE—=—FE+-_B=+—Hz=x
DB R A FIEH R E41 -

(b) MBEATZERK

Company
AL
2012 2011
—E——fF —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TRET

Current VL)
Loans to subsidiaries WEBRRZER

— 137,345

Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and carry interest at 8.0%
t0 8.9% (2011: 8.0% to 8.9%) per annum.

WEBRARzZERTEMEIE - FHEXE8.0
EZ89E(-ZT——F:80EZE89E) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

13

Investments in Associates

13 RBEQRTzRE

Group
-

2012 2011
—2--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
At Tst January w—H—H 151,685 43,433
Addition oI — 105,736
Share of profit of associates 7 R B N B A 3,003 351
Exchange difference ME W =R 29 2,165
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 154,659 151,685

The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as follows:

AREERIFELTBERR 2EmMT

Attributable to the Group

AEEEN
Particulars of Place of Principal Profit/ Interest
Name issued shares held incorporation activities Assets  Liabilities  Revenues (loss) held
) . A Ziks
=L FBERITROFE SMRLEHE FTEBXK BE =8 A (& 18) %
HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$’000 %
FHET FET FET FHET
2012
—E-=F
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of 4,192 1,955 594 (101) 40%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000 i N school
Company Limited sEff A A A R B ER
BRELHECERE 5,000,000 7T
R A
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 57,144 7,982 — 3,982 25%
Limited US$20,000,000 BB K B development
ERREYRE % RIS MEER
BRAA 20,000,000 7&
Tianjing Jingjin Financial Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 104,665 1,405 — (878) 30%
and Property Investment RMB300,000,000 B K development
Company Limited AR AR AR MEER
REFETBER 300,000,000 7C
REBRAF
166,001 11,342 594 3,003
2011
—E——%
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of 4,357 2,019 1,020 296 40%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000 K B school
Company Limited AR ARE BB
BEREEHA X CER 5,000,0007C
BRRAA
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 53,173 7,984 11,810 1,596 25%
Limited US$20,000,000 elEi N 75 development
ERABZYREE RS ESE: 7
BRAR 20,000,000 3 7T
Tianjing Jingjin Financial Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 115,546 11,388 — (1,541) 30%
and Property Investment RMB300,000,000 R oK B development
Company Limited EMARE AR MEER
REREDRER 300,000,000 7T
REARATA
173,076 21,391 12,830 351
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14 Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

14 RAREZEHERBZRE

Group
S
Share of
net assets Advance Total
DIEREE B Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TETT TETT
At 1st January 2012 R-—ZE——#—H—H 964,506 788,498 1,753,004
Addition 432 2,271,353 — 2,271,353
Share of post-acquisition results DGR IE R ES (154) — (154)
Exchange difference M N = 3,379 (143) 3,236
At 31st December 2012 R-ZE——F
+=—A=+—H 3,239,084 788,355 4,027,439
At Tst January 2011 R-—_ZTE——F—F—H 874,333 638,590 1,512,923
Addition 1 48,901 115,245 164,146
Share of post-acquisition results DGRBS (3,284) — (3,284)
Exchange difference E i =% 44,556 34,663 79,219
At 31st December 2011 R-ZE——%F
+=—A=+—H 964,506 788,498 1,753,004
As at 31st December 2012, investments in jointly controlled R-E——F+ZA=+—8 RAFRE

entities represent the Group’s investments in (i) Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited (“BJ
Dongfangwenhua”), a company with a property development
project in Beijing, Mainland China; (ii) Guangzhou Dongtai Textile
Company Limited (“GZ Dongtai”), a company with a property
development project in Guangzhou, Mainland China; and (iii)
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Company Limited (“GZ Dyeing”),
a company with a property development project in Guangzhou,
Mainland China.

In 2007, the Group acquired 60.98% equity interest in BJ
Dongfangwenhua, for a total consideration and capital contribution
of HK$820,190,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB795,584,000). The Group is responsible for contributing 97%
of the capital of BJ Dongfangwenhua and is entitled to 57.14% of
the voting power in the Board of Directors of B) Dongfangwenhua.
Ordinary resolutions of B] Dongfangwenhua require 75% of the
voting of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Group is entitled to
100% of the profit arising from the office building (South) and 45%
of the profit arising from the office building (North) in the property
development project.

HEBZREDEAEEROIERRS
XEBRBREXRARAA(TILERRG XE
D —R#EEFEIER—EAMEERER
ZRBZEE  WEMNREHBEXA
RAR(TEMRZED  —BEE+EEM
—EMEERBER AR ZEE  Kdiii)
BME—RBHARRNR (TEMPED
—EHERATEEM -—EMEHRER 2
RAZKE °

RZZTZELF AEBRBILERRESX
#76098% B AR RERERITE
#2587 820,190,000%8 7t (FBERH AR K
795,584,0007T) - A BB EE D IR
HAXEZI7%ERNBR KB EHEFIL
RE A NEI4%EETEHRERE - LR
RAXNEZEBRBREEETL75%E
ZREo N AEENBEESGIERER
NERABSTEE) Z2100%4 F XK AH
MERRERER S FEUL) R 2 45%% F o

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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14 Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

In 2011, the Group acquired 65% of equity interest in GZ Dongtai
(TIT Project-Industrial Park), for a total consideration and capital
contribution of HK$164,146,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB136,500,000). The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting
power in the Board of Directors of GZ Dongtai. Ordinary
resolutions of GZ Dongtai require 66.7% of the voting of the Board
of Directors.

In 2012, the Group acquired 65% of equity interest in GZ Dyeing (TIT
Project-International Park), for a total consideration and capital
contribution of HK$4,636,278,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,762,211,000). The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting
power in the Board of Directors of GZ Dyeing. Ordinary resolutions
of GZ Dyeing require 66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors.
As at 31st December 2012, the Group has contributed a total of
HK$2,271,353,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,844,611,000) to GZ Dyeing. The remaining capital will be
injected to GZ Dyeing according to the construction status of the
property development project.

The Group’s share of the assets and liabilities as at 31st December
2011 and 2012, and the Group’s share of revenues and results of
the jointly controlled entities for the year ended 31st December
2011 and 2012 are as follows:

14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

REAREZEHERBZ2KRE &)

N ——F AEERBEMNEZR(TIT
BHE —EEXR)65% 2R AER  BRE
B &R B B 164,146,000 7T (85 R 4
A R #136,500,0007T) ° AN 5 B 1A & M R
FHEBSTI4%MESTSRER - EMNE
B ERREEASEETE66.7%MTE -

MN-T——F KREFUWREBEMLETT
HE-REE)65% B AELRD  LRE
& BN E B A4,636,278,000% 7T (FHE R
49 N R ¥3,762,211,0007T) » /&~ &£ B R E
INABERS7I4%MEESS R ER - B
MR EBREREAEEL66.7%ME
E-RN_F——-—F+_A=+—H ' &&E
BB mEMNPEE L ES £2,271,353,000
BT (HHERH A RBE1,844,611,0007T) °
BTEABEBYELEREBANERE
E R N 88 0E A o

KEBR-_ZE——FR_FT——F+=
B=+—HSEZ2EERBE  UEA
EEREE T ——FR_FT——_F+
A=t BLFEMHEEBEHE
WS REFWNT :

Group
£

2012 2011
= s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T

Assets BE
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,937 101,556
Current assets (Note) MEVEE (Hat) 5,147,575 2,706,591
5,149,512 2,808,147
Liabilites e
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (878,525) (878,687)
Current liabilities mEBE (1,031,903) (964,954)
(1,910,428 (1,843,641)
Net assets EEFE 3,239,084 964,506
Revenue W 5 — —
Other expenses, net H i - FE (154) (3,284)
Loss before taxation B 75 A1 /&5 18 (154) (3,284)
Taxation iE — _
Loss for the year rEEEFR (154) (3,284)

Note: Current assets include the Group’s amount due to jointly controlled entities of
HK$2,145,551 (2011: HK$1,574,135) as at 31st December 2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

15 Investments in Jointly Controlled Assets

16

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, under
which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou Zhuguang
Real Estate Development Company Limited contributed land and
other assets for the development of properties located in
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China. During the
year ended 31st December 2012, the Group's participating interest
in these jointly controlled assets was 95.5% (2011: 95.5%). The
Group's share of the net profit of the jointly controlled assets for
the year amounted to HK$71,418,000 (2011: HK$24,428,000) and
the net assets of the jointly controlled assets as at 31st December
2012 amounted to HK$796,237,000 (2011: HK$1,387,541,000).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

15

REARBEZEREEZRE

AEBETHBEBRARE —ZBIYE=ZH
BEMHKAFSHERZERAAE LA
HEAZEHEELZE Bt AKEETA
ARENKAEAEHWERZEAR AT
FABURAPREAREEREEMN 2 WER
HIFHEMEE - BE_T——F1+=
A=+—BHLEFER AEEHEZSH
A 2 4 & ZZ95.5%( =& — — 4F : 95.5%)
SR AEEFEE (L ERZS
BEWZSFEEA71,418,0008 L (= F —
—4F :24,428,000/87L) MASKER=-F
——F+-_A=+—HEEHEREHE
BE R E I 5796,237,0008 T (—ZF ——
£ :1,387,541,00078 7T ) °

16 AIRHEMBEE

Group
%
2012 2011
—E—_fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
At 1st January Rn—H—H 5,203,335 3,316,388
Addition Frig — 1,721,322
Disposal & (2,130,363) —
Fair value loss recognised RETPERZATE

in equity (Note 27) B8 (fat27) (387,407) (40,645)
Exchange difference P& 7 Z R (729) 206,270
At 31st December N+=-_A=+—H 2,684,836 5,203,335
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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16 Available-for-sale Financial Assets (Continued) 16 ITHEEMBEE &)
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AHEEENREERIEIATXIA
Group
%
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
Listed securities: FHES:
— Equity securities — Mainland China, —BRAFES —PBEKE -
at market value (Note (a)) BWE#ZE) — 2,130,561
Unlisted securities: ELTHESE:
— Equity securities — Mainland China —BRAFEHF—PEARE
(Note (b)) (Kt & b)) 2,684,836 3,072,774
2,684,836 5,203,335
(@  The investment represented equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock @ AREENRLEBZFRZMETZBRAZES
Exchange and it was disposed of during the year (Note 28). WRAFEERHE (HsE28) °
The investment was denominated in Renminbi. BRETIAARKEEHE
(b)  The investments represent 4.29% and 4.99% attributable equity interests in b) AREEEREMBATBERESBEB29% %
two financial institutions in Mainland China. 4.99% 2 A & o
The investments are denominated in Renminbi. RETIAARKEEHE

17 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or 17 BAFEEZEBERIRZHE

Loss BE
Group
&=
2012 2011
—F-=F ZT——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET
Listed securities: FHRES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong, —BABE—FB
at market value L miE 13,182 11,086
Unlisted securities: FEETES
— Equity securities — Mainland China —RAFEF — B Rk 370 370
13,552 11,456
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

17 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or

18

Loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within operating activities as part of changes in working capital in

the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 37).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other income/gains, net, in the consolidated

income statement (Note 29).

EE#®)

17 BRAVEEBERIIRZUH

AT EBEBESIE M EERS
ARSHBERCEEDNIIELELS

2o &8 (HaE37) -

BAVEEBRGSIGCMBEEZR
FEZH HINAGERER A MK

AW

A (M5E29) -

Prepayments for Acquisition of Land and 18 WL FENHEBR AN
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current Assets B BRERHEMABEE
Group Company
& AFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T —F =F-=fFf —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET TET FHET
Non-current FEMB
Prepayments for acquisition 4§ & + b 8 1+ ZIE ()
of land (i) 131,197 131,221 — —
Current wE
Prepayments for acquisition W8 £ #h 38 (5 3R 3B (i)
of land (i) 11,006,809 13,508,836 — —
Other receivables (ii) H b e W ZR TE (i) 202,690 238,789 - —
Deposits for acquisition of W A m 2
equity interest (iii) 1B (iii) 19,051 1,773,834 — —
Dividend receivable FE R B 44,092 — — —
Guarantee deposit ERRE 23,432 25,903 — —
Guarantee deposit for BEEEREZS
borrowings 616,637 — — —
Prepaid construction BNZERX
expenditures 94,498 31,990 — —
Land tender deposits THREERS 144,910 61,675 — —
Prepaid sales taxes TR 8E B 849,962 599,812 — —
Utility and other deposits NAREREMES 235,310 373,549 — —
Receivable from disposal of & — K E A A
a subsidiary (iv) 2 FE W FR TE (iv) 147,970 172,668 — —
Others H1h 545,611 356,156 1,983 268
Prepayments, deposits and ARNZE RER
other current assets HmHEE 2,924,163 3,634,376 1,983 268

BEAREEERA

e —B-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

B 5 ¥R R B 5E (4F)

18 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land and
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current Assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances made for the
acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin,
Mainland China. Formal land use right certificates have not yet been obtained
as at 31st December 2012.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,625 million (2011:
HK$4,630 million) for the land situated in Chaoyang district of Beijing in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best
Investments Limited which, through its wholly owned subsidiary, possesses the
right to develop the Jing Run Project on the land (Note 40(f)).

The balance also includes an amount of approximately HK$4,195 million (2011:
HK$4,195 million) for the land situated in Panyu District of Guangdong in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of the entire equity interest in Panyu
Zhujiang Real Estate Limited which possesses the right to develop the land (Note
40(e)).

Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in first class land
development projects in Mainland China with fixed guaranteed returns based
on a pre-determined percentage of funds invested by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying amounts

approximate fair values.

This represents deposits made to independent third parties for the acquisition
of equity interests in certain Mainland China entities whose principal activities
are property holding and development. The acquisitions are not yet completed
as at 31st December 2012.

The balance represents consideration receivable from the disposal of a
subsidiary, Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza Limited to Jumbo Advance Investment
Limited, a related party.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

18 W EE T FE Y 7K IR

AT

)54
H RekEMRBEE S

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Wit 2 BARIBBERN T B AELR -
E8 BMNERXEZRE L EAEMEL 22
R MR-—ZE——F+-_A=+—H " HRIE
IE =X T fF A5 o

EHeEREMLRILERBEB R Z MR
4,625,000,000% 7T (= Z — — 4 : 4,630,000,000
B R EAEERBEERESR
RAEIZ80%ESARM Mz ARBEBRENEA
AR A R OB IE B iR 2 R (M 5E400) ©

EBRTENEREUAERFSR 2B L
4,195,000,000% 7T (= Z — — 4 : 4,195,000,000
B MR DEAEERBEERERIEH
EBERARZE2HESEH MZxARBEERE
J& 5% - #h 2 BA 3 4 (M 3£ 40(e)) °

Hih R REAEE2 Eh B KEARE
BEER(BEASEMBABESRBRLE
RIEAAE) 2L —RAEEBFH -

Hit B HRIBAAARBE  REEREAFE
HE -

WER KB EThRREAEEE(HEEEHK
ANMERBERBAZE)ZRAEZMABIE=
et zEE R-_T——F+=-_HF=+—
B U R

EHERERABEALERREGRAA
HE—RNBARABEAIBSESERIAM
e 2 (1B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

19 Accounts Receivable 19 EBUWARR
Accounts receivable mainly arise from sales of properties, rendering FEWERR T ENRYEEE  RBEEBEYD
of decoration and property management services. No credit terms XEERBELE BERTEFIEMANEE
were granted to the customers. fiRK
As at 31st December 2012, accounts receivable of RZE——F+_A=+—H" EI
HK$347,695,000 (2011: HK$232,940,000) were past due but not Bk 3X347,695,00008% L ( = T — — F:
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers. 232,940,0007% 7T) E @ BB R RE - 1 F

RERZEZBIEFAR -

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: FEM R 2 BRER AT A0 T -
Group
£H
2012 2011
—2--F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
0 to 3 months 0E3fd A 113,614 72,889
3 to 6 months 3Z261EA 46,987 13,836
6 to 9 months 62 91E A 32,122 7,359
9 to 12 months 9= 1218 A 22,615 8,817
Over 12 months @128 A 132,357 130,039
347,695 232,940
Carrying values of accounts receivable denominated in Renminbi UREFAARBEHE - HREEEER
approximate their fair values. FEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

19 Accounts Receivable (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

As at 31st December 2012, accounts receivable of HK$69,138,000
(2011: HK$26,304,000) were impaired and past due for over 12
months. The amount of the provision for impairment was
HK$69,138,000 (2011: HK$26,304,000). These related to a
number of independent customers.

Movement on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable
is as follows:

19 BWERRK(®)

AEEfHEERZEANEERR S LA
W R K 2 R E (B -

R-_ZTE——F+-_A=+—H BUREXR
69,138,000/ 7t (==& — — 4 : 26,304,000
BIT) BB E ke AR B 1218 A o R E &
4 % 569,138,000 T (—Z T — — & :
26,304,000 7C) c It ERIBHE L ZF L
HEFEEH-

EUERRRERBZEHWT :

Group
-3

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1st January n—H—H 26,304 24,651
Provision recognised in malRRANERZER

consolidated income statement 42,843 420

Exchange difference PE 3 =58 9) 1,233

At 31st December Rt+—-—_A=+—H 69,138 26,304
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

20 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash and 20 EER WERTERURR

Cash Equivalents ERETEEY
Group Company
& N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®2-=F 2% Z=%T-=F —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FET THERT FHET
Cash at bank and on hand  $R17 &k F IR & 5,589,116 3,648,200 16,283 680
Short-term bank deposits %2 #8817 13 3K 54 54 — —
5,589,170 3,648,254 16,283 680
Less: pledged/charged o B
bank deposits RITE K (1,232,929) (1,030,093) — —
Cash and cash equivalents 38 & K38 & EEY 4,356,241 2,618,161 16,283 680
As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s pledged/charged bank R_E-——_F+-_A=+—H XxEEHZ
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in BEHER  MRROTERETERRDERT
respect of the granting of banking facilities and the processing of BHTIRT UERHRITEERRITEE
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s ERARMASBEYEERE TRIBEER -
properties.
The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and cash BEEA MERTEFARBESRRS
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: BYZREEDATIEEIE:
Group Company
S N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——%F —E--F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET FERT TET
Renminbi N 5,468,328 3,606,257 — —
US dollar X7 113,363 14,431 15,780 83
Hong Kong dollar BT 7,464 27,566 503 597
Other currencies H & & 15 — — —
5,589,170 3,648,254 16,283 680
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

20 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash and

Cash Equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include pre-sale proceeds of
HK$989,411,000 (2011: HK$593,338,000), which are to be used
for purchases of construction materials and payments of

construction fee of the relevant property projects.

21 Land Cost Payable

20 EER WERTERUARR

ERBEEEY )
He LB SEBYREEEMEX
15989,411,000/8 t( = & — — F:

593,338,000 L) ' ZE R BEKANREE
EMEITNEEYMEEEZEEER -

21 FEN T EAK

Group
-3

2012 2011

—F--F Z—FT——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT T T

Land premium payable FEAT 3 HH B 606,002 449,006
Land compensation payable FE £ (E R 204,381 235,087
810,383 684,093

Less: Amount due within one year BETARBBREEAER —F

included in current liabilities NEEZ S (750,732) (602,612)
59,651 81,481

Land cost payable is denominated in
amounts approximate fair values.

Renminbi. Their carrying

FEMRE -

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

22 Accounts Payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to
related companies of trading in nature) is as follows:

22 FETBRFX

ENEFR2EEST(BRENTHEER
AERNRZMEZEF)MT

Group
s

2012 2011
—F-=F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
0 to 3 months 0E3# A 1,941,985 1,710,517
3 to 6 months 3E61E A 1,129,178 1,059,535
6 to 9 months 6291 A 885,588 1,006,929
9 to 12 months 9FE 1218 A 700,842 796,870
Over 12 months HiE 1218 A 480,340 546,155
5,137,933 5,120,006

As at 31st December 2012, approximately HK$623,119,000 (2011:
HK$2,516,006,000) of accounts payable were due to certain
related companies in respect of property construction fees (Note
40(b)).

Carrying values of accounts payable denominated in Renminbi
approximate their fair values.

R-_E——F+-_A=+—8 EfE
AR #49623,119,0008 L (= & — — F .
2,516,006,00078 JT) & L ¥ E E L B E T
A TRIED R Z B (M sE40(0)) °

ENEAANARESHE EEEEREERQ

FERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

23 Borrowings 23 BE
Group Company
5 YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——%F —E-——fF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Non-current JE 7 &)
Bank and financial R1T K B 7S
institution borrowings WIBEE 18,978,209 19,428,479 — —
11.75% Senior notes 11.75% 8 £ E1% 2,292,369 2,290,102 2,292,369 2,290,102
21,270,578 21,718,581 2,292,369 2,290,102
Current i Ep
Bank and financial 1T & B 75
institution borrowings WEEE 15,520,648 10,922,188 — —
8.125% Senior notes 8.125% 18 5t = 4& — 2,707,119 — 2,707,119
15,520,648 13,629,307 — 2,707,119
Total borrowings 18 36,791,226 35,347,888 2,292,369 4,997,221

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes with
an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes matured in
seven years (November 2012) and were repayable at their nominal
value of US$350,000,000. The Company was entitled at its option
to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes at the redemption
prices specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid

interest to the redemption date subject to the terms and conditions

specified in the offering circular. The senior notes were repaid in

November 2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

23 Borrowings (Continued)

In January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,340,000,000), for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,340,000,000. The senior notes mature in five
years (January 2016) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$300,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem all or a portion of the senior notes at the redemption prices
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interests
to the redemption date subject to the terms and conditions
specified in the offering circular.

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

23 B8 #®)

RZE——F—F ARARETRAEE
300,000,000 3% 7t (6 & 7 £92,340,000,000
BIL)IZNIEEBERE  BREOHA
2,340,000,0008 ;Lo B E B E R A F &
—T-RE—R)IE TERE®EE
300,000,000 TTE & - AR A #5 F ##
BREEBRAAZELE(N LEES
BEORMEMNEARMNZHE) BB 2K
BHABERE  HEXEEBERMTHA MK
KA PTHRBR o

REERBERERZEBLREWT

Group and Company
EBRAF
2012 2011
—E-C-F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
At 1st January nR—A—H 4,997,221 2,697,576
Addition i — 2,288,733
Repayment & MR (2,715,482) —
Amortisation of premium iR E (746) (547)
Amortisation of issue costs BB ITR 22,277 21,506
Exchange difference M 5 =58 (10,901) (10,047)
At 31st December Rn+=—A=+—H 2,292,369 4,997,221

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and are secured by the capital stock of the subsidiaries.
The net assets of these subsidiaries were approximately
HK$9,270,412,000 (2011: HK$6,394,511,000) as at 3Tst
December 2012.

BAEERAETHB QA LE & ERR
IR WA B AR Z R - B
—E-—F+-A=1+—0 ZZEWMBEA
Al Z BEFEX A9,270,412,000/% 7T (=
T ——4 :6,394,511,00078 7T) °

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

23 Borrowings (Continued)

23 B8 %)

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: EEZEHOFTMT
Bank and financial
institution borrowings Senior notes Total
BRITRHBHRBEE BERE #at
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
=F--F ZF—F =%B-=F T —F =B-=-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TETT TET TET THERT TET
Within one year —FR 15,520,648 10,922,188 — 2,707,119 15,520,648 13,629,307
Between one and two years —FEZWF A 7,127,921 10,886,234 — — 7,127,921 10,886,234
Between two and five years MEERF A 11,606,514 5,383,169 2,292,369 2,290,102 13,898,883 7,673,271
Over five years BidASF 243,774 3,159,076 — — 243,774 3,159,076
34,498,857 30,350,667 2,292,369 4,997,221 36,791,226 35,347,888
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEEREENATIEEREMRARA
following currencies with the respective weighted average effective ZEBMEFHMEMT

interest rates:

2012
—E—C—fF
Effective
HK$’000 interest rate
FET =1t P

2011
—E——%F
Effective
HK$’000 interest rate

THET BEBRAM =R

Renminbi
— Bank and financial
institution borrowings

US dollar
— Senior notes

AR
—RIT R B
BBEE

e
—EBERE

34,498,857 8.50%

2,292,369 12.32%

30,350,667 7.91%

4,997,221 10.00%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

23 Borrowings (Continued)

The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as

follows:

23 B8 #®)

BEZEREERAFENT

Carrying amount Fair values
SR B N E
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-=-f ZF——% =EB-=fF ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THETT TERT T T
Bank and financial R1T M5

institution borrowings HEEE 34,498,857 30,350,667 34,870,465 29,929,294
Senior notes BLEER 2,292,369 4,997,221 2,431,659 3,993,300
36,791,226 35,347,888 37,302,124 33,922,594
The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings are RERK BITEVBEHBEENAFET

based on cash flows discounted using rates based on the Group’s

average borrowings rate of 6.2% to 9.2% per annum as at the year

end (2011: 6.6% to 11.1% per annum), depending on the currency
denomination of the borrowings. The fair values of the senior notes
are based on the market price as at the year end.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s bank and financial
institution borrowings were secured by:

(i)  the Group'’s land cost of approximately HK$74,591,000 (2011:

HK$76,490,000);

(i) the Group’s hotel

properties of approximately

HK$1,837,410,000 (2011: HK$1,979,463,000);

(iii) the Group’s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$11,418,687,000 (2011: HK$6,054,370,000);

(iv) the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$2,019,428,000 (2011: HK$2,569,851,000);

(v) the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$7,907,601,000 (2011: HK$5,906,934,000);

BREAREEFHEEFTFR62EBZ=9.2/E
(ZE——F  FHXRe6BEEZ11.1E)E
FIZRR(ETEEEBER) FEZI
HHEESRER] - BAZBZAFETIUSF
RIETIGERAELE-

R-ZF-—ZF+ZA=1t—H AxKEZ
RITRABEE 2 EE T AT IE R &
TR

(i) ANEEA74,591,0008 (=T ——
F 176,490,000/ L) Z £ HI K AN

(i) ANEEH1,837,410,00078 7T (=T —
—4F 1 1,979,463,0005# JT.) 2 B J5E 1)
g

(i) £ BE411,418,687,0007 (= &
— — % 1 6,054,370,0007 7T ) 2 A
HEZERPYE:

(iv) ZANEEZ2,019,428,000/ T (& —
— 4 1 2,569,851,00078 jT) 2 A £
EZEERYME

(v) ANEBEH7,907,601,00078 7T (= F —

—4F 15,906,934,00078 7T) 2 I EWY
g

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

23 Borrowings (Continued)

23 B8 %)

(vi) the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of approximately Vi) REBZAHEENBEELNR
HK$2,684,836,000 (2011: HK$5,203,335,000); and 2,684,836,000% ;L (= & — — F ¢

5,203,335,00075 ) &

(vii) the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary of approximately i) KEBEZ —FEHBRA A ZRAERS

HK$69,472,000 (2011: HK$245,896,000).

24 Deferred Income Tax

# 569,472,000 L (= F — —F :
245,896,000 7T) °

24 JEFEFTISHL

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there ELEMEBEEENBEEREEABAKRIEEE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against LB EEE LT R B 1T # 5 5 8K 85
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to RIELEFRESRER —HISKEER - 50
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows: OMEE - EiEemEy T
Group
£
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$/000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets: EEFIBE E
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after —#BR+ =@ A %KD
more than twelve months ZIEERIBEE 262,956 200,485
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered within — ¥R+ =@ A Rk E
twelve months ZIBEERIBE E 36,378 19,755
299,334 220,240
Deferred tax liabilities: FEERIBAE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised after — BN+ @B 1EBEE
more than twelve months ZIEERIBEE (4,830,230) (4,837,485)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised within — BN+t —@E B NEH
twelve months ZIRERIBEEE (717,857) (979,316)
(5,548,087) (5,816,801)
(5,248,753) (5,596,561)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

24 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 24 EEREH (2)
The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: BEEBIEFEEHNT :
2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(8F)
At 1st January w—HA—H (5,596,561) (5,383,587)
Recognised in the consolidated income RiraBERER (M aE33)
statement (Note 33) 56,452 43,805
Credited directly to equity (Note 27) BEEMER (HiE27) 289,682 2,156
Exchange difference P& 7 Z R 1,674 (258,935)
At 31st December Rt+—_A=+—H (5,248,753) (5,596,561)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred Tax Liabilities

BERBREENEEHAABZEH (XL

BEZEMERBEZERANZE

T

EEBIRAE

BRIKEH) o

Revaluation surplus

EMAK

2012 2011

=F-=F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT TET

At Tst January w—H—H (5,816,801) (5,551,128)
Recognised in the consolidated income RERE B RER

statement (22,690) 495

Credited directly to equity (Note 27) BEENER (WiE27) 289,682 2,156

Exchange difference E X =58 1,722 (268,324)

At 31st December R+=—A=+—H (5,548,087) (5,816,801)

BERR

EEBERRT « —F—

—FE®R 219



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

24 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

24 EEREBH &)

Deferred Tax Assets ELEBEBEEE
Tax losses
HIBEE
2012 2011
—E-=F %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
At 1st January nN—HF—H 220,240 167,541
Recognised in the consolidated income RizEERRER
statement 79,142 43,310
Exchange difference bE = FE (48) 9,389
At 31st December R+-—_A=+—H 299,334 220,240

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2012, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$348,712,000 (2011: HK$270,054,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,670,242,000 (2011:

HK$1,269,862,000).

Unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$860,247,000 (2011: HK$712,072,000) are expiring from 2013
through 2017. The remaining unrecognised tax losses do not have

expiry dates.

As at 31st December 2012, deferred tax
HK$1,446,694,000 (2011: HK$1,436,985,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as these earnings are expected to be

reinvested.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

25

26

Current Tax Liabilities

Current tax liabilities represent payable for Hong Kong profits tax,
Mainland China corporate income tax and Mainland China land
appreciation tax.

As at 31st December 2012, the balance includes Mainland China
land appreciation tax payable of approximately HK$4,298,869,000
(2011: HK$4,018,114,000).

25

REBIERE

L e SR S
K S 3 155 8 19 B K BE £ 4t
AR -

R—ZZTE—-—=—Z&F+=A=+—8H"
EHBEREEMN P B KR HIEER
%74,298,869,0008 L( = T — — F:
4,018,114,00058 7T) °

Share Capital 26 MR
Number of
ordinary shares Par value
EBER#AE [N
‘000 HK$’000
F I FiET
At Tst January 2011 R-—_ZE——F—F—H 1,752,367 175,237
Repurchase of own shares LAERN 80 (16,364) (1,637)
At 31st December 2011 R—_ZE——F+-_A=+—H
and 31st December 2012 E—ZE——F+=-_A=+—H 1,736,003 173,600

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000
shares (2011: 3,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2011: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

In September and October 2011, the Company repurchased
16,364,000 shares for approximately HK$70,379,000. These shares
were subsequently cancelled.

A E i A% 42 204 3,000,000,000% (= =
— — 4 : 3,000,000,000 fi% ) & I E H0.175
T(ZE——F: FRo1BT) 2K -
FIBEZEITRMHEEMBRAR -

R-ZFE——FNAARTA ARAED

16,364,000 #% % 12+ X & 470,379,000 /5
T X ERMEEZ T -

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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26 Share Capital (Continued)

Share Options

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under
which it may grant options to, inter alia, employees (including
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a limit that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the share options schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The exercise price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and shall at least be the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the options;
(iii) the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and with reference
to the latest published audited financial statements in the annual
report or the latest published unaudited interim financial
information in the interim report (whichever is more recent) of the
Group on the date of offer of the relevant options; and (iv) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares of HK$0.1 each. This
employee share options scheme was adopted in November 2002
and expired in November 2012.

There was no share option granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the years ended 31st December 2012 and 31st December
2011.

As at 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011, there were
no outstanding share options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

26 BRA(®)

B

ARABE-REBBERESE Bt X
~rEA (AR EE) EE(BRARFHR
TER)RHERBEUARBARAMRND
W AR ERESE MAESREBER
1T 2 B AL T A TT B 3 17 2 B 1 48
BOAIABEBBEARATKERTRNDZ
30% - (THREKBARAEZTSETE I
BALRTNIOEZRZRSE  )VARARK
MRIEHBRER ZWKHE: (R EE
REBREEAAOLMARS A ARAMRK
2 FHWHE : (i) 52 H 5 78R A
BB RREBUBHRESENAELZE
AEBSRORTNE L FRALERZY K
BRIXROPTN B LA HRESAREE
RHRMMBEER(ABOIRE RE) TE
EBREEFE: RivARE RO EE
(B01ETT) AEBBBREFEN =
EE_F+-ARBERR_F—=-F+

—E——-—F+-_A=+—8B K=
F+_A=+T—"HILFE HEE
PREER WL - FIAITE « RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

27

Reserves 27 f#E
Group
S
Capital Assets  Currency
Share redemption Statutory revaluation translation Retained
premium reserve reserve (i) reserve (iii) differences earnings Total
EAFEE EE EEEM HBER
B3 RE #E REO 7% 4 (i) =5 REBF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Balance at R-_T——F
1st January 2012 —A—Bz#&s 10,692,732 4,183 161,117 2,923,078 5,485,628 21,644,114 40,910,852
Profit for the year F & A — — — — — 2,982,790 2,982,790
Currency translation EHSE N 25
differences —_ — —_ —_ 21,569 —_ 21,569
Fair value loss on A EMEEE
available-for-sale ZAFEEE
financial assets (Kiax16)
(Note 16) — — — (387,407) — — (387,407)
Realised upon disposal of & 7] f {H & Ff 7%
available-for-sale BERSI
financial assets —_ —_ —  (1,636,244) (131,807) —_ (1,768,051)
Realised upon disposal of H} & #5 & H & ¥ %
properties held for R 54 38 (i)
sale (ii) — — — (35,246) — — (35,246)
Deferred tax (Note 24)  IEXEF: 18 (Kf it 24) — — — 289,682 — — 289,682
Balance at N-_E——F
31st December 2012 T A=+t—BZ&#% 10,692,732 4,183 161,117 1,153,863 5,375,390 24,626,904 42,014,189
Balance at RZT——4%F
1st January 2011 —A—Bz&H% 10,793,525 2,546 161,117 2,988,251 3,582,279 20,484,200 38,011,918
Profit for the year FRER A — — — — — 1,430,031 1,430,031
Currency translation HEEERZ%E
differences — — — — 1,903,349 — 1,903,349
Repurchase of BEAF K5
own shares (100,793) 1,637 — — — 30,414 (68,742)
Dividends paid BRI E = = = = — (300,531) (300,531)
Fair value loss on A EMBEE
available-for-sale ZRAFEEE
financial assets (Ktat16)
(Note 16) = = = (40,645) = = (40,645)
Realised upon disposal of H} & #5 & X E ¥ %
properties held for 5 582 3 (i)
sale (ii) — — — (26,684) — — (26,684)
Deferred tax (Note 24)  IEXET 18 (Kt 5t 24) — — — 2,156 — — 2,156
Balance at RZT——4%F
31st December 2011 +-A=+—Bz&% 10,692,732 4,183 161,117 2,923,078 5,485,628 21,644,114 40,910,852
SEAIREEBRAR « ZE—-FFHR 223
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27 Reserves (Continued)

27 @

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

Company
AT
Currency
Share Capital translation Retained
premium  redemption differences earnings Total
BEAREE EWER

B 43 )% 1 & =8 REER st

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET F&T
Balance at 1st January 2012 WZZT——F

—B—B2&H 10,692,732 4,183 1,833,730 624,061 13,154,706

Loss for the year FEEE o o o (501,158) (501,158)
Currency translation EHERZ®

differences — — (2,419) — (2,419)
Balance at R-_T——F

31st December 2012 +TZA=+t—Bz&% 10,692,732 4,183 1,831,311 122,903 12,651,129
Balance at 1st January 2011 R_E——4F

—A—Bz&% 10,793,525 2,546 1,216,660 525,776 12,538,507

Profit for the year F & A — — = 368,402 368,402
Currency translation BHEN =8

differences — — 617,070 = 617,070

Repurchase of own shares B2 B K & % (5 (100,793) 1,637 — 30,414 (68,742)

Dividends paid B ATIR S = — — (300,531) (300,531)
Balance at R-ZB——%F

31st December 2011 +TZA=t+—Bz&% 10,692,732 4,183 1,833,730 624,061 13,154,706
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27 Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate a
portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory
reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their respective
boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset prior year
losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise
expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business operations.
When the statutory reserves reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered
capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be
made.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, Guangzhou
Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL”) became a subsidiary of the
Group and the fair value gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in GZQREL
previously held by the Group (as a jointly controlled entity) of approximately
HK$2,180,096,000, net of tax has been accounted for as an asset revaluation
reserve directly in equity on acquisition. Upon subsequent delivery of the
properties developed by GZQREL, which represents partial disposal of the
business of GZQREL, the related portion of the asset revaluation reserve is
released to the consolidated income statement.

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-sale
financial assets, and fair value gain in respect of 69.5% interest in GZQREL

previously held by the Group (see (ii) above).

27 ez

Azt

(i)

(i)

(iii)

RIRPBEARERARIR  ANRQ RN HBEARE
PSR AEE 2 B A B A B ERRBR R A (&
HHBEFREEBERR)PHEL B EAEH
BREXERES HEXTASESEET -
EERET BRI BEFEERRMER
THR MEXERESB AT AEERER -
BEAEREEINHER AR BN E QR M
BAR50% 2 & B BAE — SEHER -

R-ZET+LFERUBERENTEINEER
BRHABERRTRIFARD®E  BMHKIGB
HEHESRAR(EEHD K AERER 2K
BAR  AEBEAFEBH(ERA—EH
B 5 E ) B69.5%E 5 2 A F Bz 4
2,180,096,00055 7t (B HBr i 1H) E R KB R B
BEESIIEEELERG CERRNEE
WA ZMER(BHEBHNIER)  BE
EEFEZEBRTD BB ALEEBER -

EEEMABETHLEMBEEREHAA
EE AR EEHIS%ER A TEREZE
R (2 R EXi) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

28 Gain on Disposal of Available-for-sale Financial

28 HEAHRHEMBEERS

Assets

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group disposed HE_2——F+-_A=+—8B1tHF
of an aggregate of 205,380,000 shares of the BBMG Corporation B AEBELLEZESFR S MAKRT S
(“BBMG”) for a total consideration of RMB1,728,058,000 (equivalent 1 & A& #£205,380,0000% 4t X & BB A&

to approximately HK$2,131,365,000) on the “A” share market of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, resulting in a gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets of RMB1,435,407,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,770,414,000).

29 Other Income/Gains, Net

MERAR(TEBERD)) ZKRG &K
B A A K #1,728,058,0007T (18 & 7 4
2,131,365,0007% 7T ) + Bt Ut 8% 15 1 & 7]
& B & E W A R B 1,435,407,000
7T (FBE R 491,770,414,00078 7T ) °

9 HAWA Wz FE

2012 2011

=F-=F —FT——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Dividend income BB IRA 131,732 68,843
Government grants XA #7 Bh 3,819 31,161

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets BATEEBERIIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZRATE

Wezs (B 1R) 2,097 (272)

Net exchange gain b 5 W & % 28 26,910 262,032
Impairment loss on other assets HiEERERR (105,601) —
58,957 361,764
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30 Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses

30 HMHEE P ZHX

AxBREEEXAE - %ﬁ’%&m%?&?%’

and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: A UE—MERTRER 20T :
2012 2011
—F--F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Advertising costs EERX 238,145 253,973
Amortisation of land costs + B AN 5 13,532 6,522
Auditor’s remuneration % A0 B & 5,755 5,500
Cost of completed properties sold HEBEERYEZKRA 4,893,313 3,751,401
Depreciation of properties and equipment MERZETE 162,427 146,559
Direct operating expenses arising from NTERAIREMEEEZ
investment properties that BEEKERX
— generate rental income —ELEHESWRA 48,996 31,452
— did not generate rental income —tEELEHES KA 40,475 22,147
Employees’ benefits costs (including & B & M A A
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 31) (BIEEEMNS) (BE31) 764,896 620,413
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment HEMERKBEER 385 492
Operating lease rental in respect of premises MEZKEHRERS 36,660 40,586
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable & U BR 3 (B & 45 42,843 420

31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including Directors’

31 EEBAASN (BEEEME)

Emoluments)

2012 2011
—2-=-F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 509,021 479,500
Sales commission and bonus HEME RIEA 134,850 43,853

Pension costs RN KA
— Defined contribution plans — R EHFEE 120,930 96,960
— Provision for long-service payment —RERB e BE 95 100
764,896 620,413
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including Directors’
Emoluments) (Continued)

(@)

Pensions — Defined Contribution Plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 from Tst January 2012 to 31st
May 2012 and HK$1,250 from 1st June 2012 to 3Tst
December 2012 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make
monthly contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of
the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and
bonus), while the Group contributes 12% to 22% of such
income and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.
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31 BEERAASN (BEEEHE)

(%)

(@)

BN E— REHRKREE

AEBEEERBSRERELHESHE—
HHR VB YEITABREZ THAM
FEtE o e dl i AFE S EI([38E
Beardl)) - BB 8 - A%
(X)) RHEEB S A AlRAH
AESENMAETSEERZEE W
AZ5%RZTEEEAHRK - EBE
MEEFMEZSAERRZERRZ
T—_—_HF#—AF—B&E-_ZT——-FH
A=+—H%A1,0008 7T MK =
E——"FXA—-Bz_F——F+
—A=+—H&AE12508 L RN
FRZEFABEREEE -

IR B AR 2 R R ROER TR
EARBERERPBEKREZRE
EE—(AHBEREZRIKGTE -
AEEREEEAREEBURA(RRE
Hrd o BB RIEL) K98% 8 51 &l
HEF - AEBERZEZEFRA12%
E22%ME R - BRE LMK K
SETEEBHBERERSHKE
T-BEBREHZERAIEE(N
BRAREEZ2HERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including Directors’ 31 EERARE (BEEE#H L)

Emoluments) (Continued) ()
(b) Directors’ Emoluments b)) EEZME
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BE—_E——£+=-B=+—81
December 2012 is set out below: FE ZEBz2MeHIOT
Employer’s
contribution to
Salaries and pension
Name of director Fees allowances scheme Total
ExH
EBIREEHE
EEnA ws e RER Z R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET FER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BEEEE — 240 12 252
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (iii) RAE RS 22 =+ (i) — 641 8 649
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KB E A — — _ _
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BERBLEE — 3,710 14 3,724
Mr. Xiang Bin (v) I8 XE 2 A (v) — 2,000 1 2,001
Mr. Xue Hu (iv) BE IR SR A (iv) — 482 2 484
Mr. Zhang Yi (ii) ok 5% 5% A (i) — 4,915 16 4,931
— 11,988 53 12,041
Independent B
non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THEELRLE 280 — — 280
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver EmAE LS 280 — — 280
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREEVE ST 280 — — 280
840 — — 840
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including Directors’
Emoluments) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st
December 2011 is set out below:

31 EERAAN(BEEEHE)

(%)

b)) EEME#)

BE_ZT—F+_-_A=+—8I1t
FE JZESZME&FHI O T :

Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and to pension
Name of director Fees allowances scheme Total
EBxH
RIS
EEMA Gk o KoERL Z R HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BRBESEE — 240 12 252
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (iii) RABRE 22 = (i) — 92 — 92
Mr. Chu Mang Yee BIKEE — — — -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEFLE — 3,614 12 3,626
Mr. Xiang Bin (v) T8 ) 58 A (v) — 2,000 12 2,012
Mr. Xue Hu (iv) BE 5T S A (i) — 3,614 12 3,626
Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (i) fH A 22+ (i) — 2,550 11 2,561
Mr. Zhang Yi (i) ok 8 4% A& (i) — 1,389 — 1,389
— 13,499 59 13,558
Independent B
non-executive directors EHTES
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEELELE 260 — — 260
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver EAERE 260 — — 260
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)E ST & 260 — — 260
780 — — 780
Notes: Kot

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of

Ms. Zhao Ming Feng resigned on 7th November 2011.

Mr. Zhang Yi was appointed on 7th November 2011.

Ms. Chu Kut Yung was appointed on 7th November 2011.

Mr. Xue Hu resigned on 1st March 2012.

Mr. Xiang Bin resigned on 28th March 2013.

HK$240,000 (2011: HK$240,000).
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(i) HRELEIR -_ZE——F+—HEA#

£

(ii) REEER-_T——F+—AtBEZE
£ o

(iiiy KERLETR-_ZT——EF+—A+tBHE
ZEfE-

vy BREAER-FT-—-_F=A—HEfE-

(v) HHEER_T—=F=A=_+/\HE
o

F R K E K S E B € 240,000
BT (ZZF——4F : 240,000/ L) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Including Directors’

Emoluments) (Continued)

(c)

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2011: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining
two (2011: one) individuals are as follows:

(&)

(c)

31 EERAAAS (BREEMS)

TEBREHFAL

AEEASBERERERFALER
=R OREF K
EZ2He e REXMENZONKR
BR-BENRENTESRH(ZFT—
—F:—R)BEMALZHMEMT

2012 2011
—F-=F —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Salaries and allowances ¥ MoRR 4,115 2,272
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme  {& = ¥R K& 5 8] 2 ft 5% 14 12
4,129 2,284
The emoluments fell within the following band: e FIATAER:
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TET
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
BRI AL @R AL
2B 2R

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L2
2,000,0007 7T
2,000,001 L%

2,500,000 7T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

SEAREBARLE ¢« ZT——FFH
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32 Finance Income and Costs 32 BBWARKA
2012 2011
—E-—C-F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
Interest expense: MERX -
— on loans from banks and financial institutions ~— AR A F AR HEE
wholly repayable within five years ZRITRABEHRBER 2,624,364 1,808,043
— on loans from banks and financial institutions ~—TAR A FANRHEE
not wholly repayable within five years ZRITRMBEIBE R 18,153 69,376
— on senior notes wholly repayable —ARAFRNBREER
within five years ZBERR 485,159 496,992
Total borrowing costs incurred B8 K 2 4818 BB 3,127,676 2,374,411
Less: Amount capitalised as part of B BARIERERDME
the cost of properties under development 2 B0 P AN 2 FRIE (2,911,847) (2,135,872)
215,829 238,539
Interest income from banks HRATH B A (35,807) (29,098)
Net finance costs B 15 B 2N 58 180,022 209,441
The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the year BE_T-——_Ft+-_A=+—RHI#F
ended 31st December 2012 was approximately 8.7% (2011: 8.2%) B BARERNEERERFHFMNELR
per annum. 87E(ZZF——4:82E)-
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33 Taxation 33 ®IE
2012 2011
—F--F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Taxation consists of: IR FTERT FET
Current tax AN ER R 1A
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) EEMNEH (K at@) — 2,341
Mainland China corporate income tax R REREMGH
(Note (b)) (Kt & b)) 681,004 526,845
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K B i IR (E A
(Note (c)) (Htit(c) 736,196 303,392
1,417,200 832,578
Deferred tax iR RE I8
Mainland China corporate income tax PE KRR FEMED
(Note (b)) (Ht 5z b)) (37,957) (29,525)
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K B 3R (E
(Note (c)) (Htit(c) (18,495) (14,280)
(56,452) (43,805)
Taxation (Note (d)) I8 (K 7E (d) 1,360,748 788,773
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March ARREREHMNBRENEB HEE_T
2035. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated ShHEZAL - ZEERESHERA
under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI DRBEEABRERHESEREERTE(R
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the RABREZBESEERTNE2004) © iR
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands, BRABEBLREBRLBEBRAERTE
and are not liable to any form of taxation in the British Virgin 20045 M A S - MBAXMERMER Z
Islands. REBRAFSHIE-
(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax @ EERE
No Hong Kong profits tax was provided for the year ended R AN &= B 37 4 {E fa] R R B 0& A
31st December 2012 as the Group did not have any MBE-_ZT——_F+-A=+—H
assessable profit. Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at LTFEREREMNESHERB - #E
the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the —E -+ A=+—RHIL#F
year ended 31st December 2011. B BEENFHZ Gt R A
1R16.5% ) T K -
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33 Taxation (Continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Mainland China Corporate Income Tax

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate
of 25% (2011: 25%) for the year ended 31st December 2012.

Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including costs of land and
development and construction expenditures.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group companies
as follows:

33 HIE %)

(b) HEIAREREREH

BHE-_T——F+=ZRA=1+—81
FE - RPRKRBERY REE 2
B AR JR25% (T ——%F 250/0>
HEBMPBRAREREMBEH -

(c) HEIARPFE L i EB

AR K B i 3B E AR BE 3 (E -
B i &5 5 Hh = BT 45 5K 18 H1 BR AT 008
HE (BRI RERMAS REERK
AR) IR BT E30% E 60%E UK -

(d) 7~ & B 5% B AT % F R 3% B
DN 15 i A OE R B R 51
SHEAERME=RE HBEWOT:

SERF
&
Ean

235

3 o

2012 2011
—2-=-F Z—FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Profit before taxation Ffﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁiﬂ 4,248,851 2,197,184
Less: Share of profit of associates AR R R A (3,003) (351)
Less: Share of loss of jointly controlled entities & : 2 1f & [R5 % & 22 /&5 18 154 3,284
4,246,002 2,200,117
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates B & Bl 2 % M@ B
applicable to profits in the ARG E 2 HIE
respective countries 932,012 550,572
Income not subject to tax R L ON (333,696) (23,794)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR % 13,961 2,387
Land appreciation tax deductible for AR R EREHR
calculation of income tax purposes PR3 2 + 118 E R (179,425) (72,278)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B ABERERNIE
tax losses &8 (3,852) (5,149)
Deferred tax asset not recognised RAERELEHIEEE 82,510 47,923
Withholding tax on dividend income from PNl N i 3SR N
PRC subsidiaries Z AN 131,537 —
643,047 499,661
Land appreciation tax I Hb 32 (E 717,701 289,112
Taxation IE 1,360,748 788,773

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22% (2011:
25%).
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36
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the 3 XARIRERFE AENLGF
Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt KRB EEEAEGGRN  EFE
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a #501,158,000/8 ;o ( = & — — F : &
loss of HK$501,158,000 (2011: profit of HK$368,402,000). 368,402,000 7T) ER AR AT B HRE R
f g e
Earnings Per Share 35 BREF
Basic B 9N
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREXRBHNIIREARAGRERAE A
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted R aEFBRAFRNE BT LB Z IR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. FHEEH -
2012 2011
=F-=F Z—FT——F
Profit attributable to equity holders of RNRRIRERE AR
the Company (HK$'000) w A (FET) 2,982,790 1,430,031
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B BT EBRZ INEF
in issue ("000) BHE(FI) 1,736,003 1,748,096
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FREXREF (BB IT) 1.72 0.82
Diluted s
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted SAEEBREESRANE  BHBETEINER
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume Rz mEFEBELRE  URZAEA
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Since there was BB TRREREER HRERE
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31st —E—ZFRZEBE——F+ZA=+—
December 2012 and 2011, diluted earnings per share is equal to BIESE WREAHFE N 2 BB
basic earnings per share. tER#SRNEGRERNRN —2-
Dividends 36 BRE
The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of any EEgTEEREBE_ZT—Z—-F+_A
interim and final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2012 =+ — B Ik FE IR E A 8RR B AR
(2011: nil). B(ZE——% 8-
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37 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(@) Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operations

37 RERERERMT
@ XRB/A(ARMREZRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

2012 2011
—E-—Z-F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Profit before taxation B B A s A 4,248,851 2,197,184
Adjustments for: a8 %
— Finance income — BBl A (35,807) (29,098)
— Finance costs — B RS Rk AR 215,829 238,539
— Dividend income — R B A (131,732) (68,843)
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sale —HEAHEENH
financial assets BEWR (1,770,414) —
— Share of loss of jointly controlled entities — DG HFEHE R
B8 154 3,284
— Share of profit of associates — D h B E R RDE A (3,003) (351)
— Depreciation of properties and equipment —ERKEITE 162,427 146,559
— Loss on disposal of properties —HEMERREER
and equipment 385 492
— Amortisation of land costs — b Bk AN B 13,532 6,522
— Provision for impairment of — YRR E R
accounts receivable 42,843 420
— Fair value gain on investment properties — R EENTERZ (214,622) (107,397)
— Impairment loss on other assets —HtEEREER 105,601 —
— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at —HAFEBBEZES
fair value through profit or loss ReMBEEZR
FE (=), EE (2,097) 272
— Net exchange gain — X W F A (26,910) (262,032)
Changes in working capital (excluding the LEESEH(CTEE
effects of acquisition, disposal of subsidiaries Wi - HEMBLRRK
and exchange differences on consolidation): R EBHEEAEREZ
T
— Properties under development for sale —AfEE s ERS
and completed properties for sale MERAEEE 2
[EE- 3% E3 (2,487,821) (6,011,102)
— Accounts receivable — B BR R (157,652) (51,604)
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — W 1 2 B RRIB (656) (640,809)
— Prepayments, deposits and other —ENRE EHek
current assets H fth i 8) & = (1,182,364) (100,457)
— Accounts payable — B ERR 18,876 (786,254)
— Land cost payable — B A AR 126,428 147,452
— Deferred revenue — B A 4,556,498 3,765,850
— Accruals and other payables — FEET AR N H A JE
X1 365,486 624,667
Cash generated from/(used in) operations RE/HARKEEZERS 3,843,832 (926,706)
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37 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group
completed the acquisition of the equity interests in Shanghai
Tongzhen Investment and Consultant Company Limited and
Shanghai Anxu Warehousing Company Limited, for a total
consideration of RMB209,780,000 (approximately
HK$258,716,000). The major assets of the subsidiaries are
land lots for property development in Mainland China, and
accordingly, the transactions have been accounted for as the

37 ZEBREFRERMEF &

(b) WEKERQF

HE_ZTZ——-—F#+=ZA=+—H
IEFE AEBEZRKELS
EREEZRAER 2R EER
BERARAA 2B AER " R
B4 % A5 A R ¥209,780,000 7T ( £
258,716,000/ L) - ZEMB AR 2
FEBEANT B RERNIEMHEE
RezZi@thil WEBIZUANEE

acquisition of assets. WS AR -
HK$’000
FTHET
Net assets acquired: gz & E -
Properties and equipment eSS B 179
Properties under development for sale AHEEZERTYE 254,597
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets BNR REREMRBEE 86
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBeEFED 5,036
Accruals and other payables J& BT R IA Jo H At FE 5 5K IR (1,182)
258,716
Satisfied by: AT HER -
Cash consideration HeRE 258,716
Analysis of the net cash outflow arising on acquisition: EXBREZFRSRE 2O :
Total cash consideration BRERE (258,716)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PElEZReERESEEY 5,036
Cash consideration paid in prior years BEFEEMNZBHEeRE 151,524
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition ELXBWREBZFRERH (102,156)
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38 MIEER

38 Financial Guarantees

Group Company
] A
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—=F —ET——fF —EB-=F B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET THBT TET
Financial guarantees not AR A Bt 1§ X /A
provided for in the 1 B 2 B 75
financial statements are BERUOT
as follows:
Guarantees given to banks ~ BB E AEE Y E
for mortgage facilities ZHETEREMR
granted to certain buyers R85 8 i m
of the Group’s properties RITHEH 2 R 9,616,308 10,315,065 — —
Guarantees given to banks ~ FLHI B A A Z
and financial institutions BEimmRIT
for borrowings of N TSR AR
subsidiaries ZER — — 27,624,106 17,131,925
Guarantees given to bank Bt — [ 2 B 4=
for bank borrowings of ERRITEER
a jointly controlled entity e 2 1R 878,572 878,734 878,572 878,734
10,494,880 11,193,799 28,502,678 18,010,659

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain
buyers of the Group’s properties represented the guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. Such guarantees were to be discharged
upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate
which are generally be available within three months after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties; or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty (see also Note 3.1(b)) and therefore no
provision has been made in the financial statements.
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39 Commitments 39 EiE
(@) Capital Commitments (@ BAREIE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet REEAWMAREECEARARIZOAT
incurred are as follows:
Group
£
2012 2011
—E—-—F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Contracted but not provided for BRI AERBE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests ~ — B E THH Hibz B
in certain land-holding entities (Note) 2 i R AR AR RE =S (MY aE) 8,326,854 11,335,438
— Property construction costs — W EE AN 3,725,770 2,752,993
— Capital contribution to an associate —— EBERARZHE 264,266 264,315
— Capital contribution to a jointly ——EHEZEHEE LA
controlled entity 2,364,925 —
14,681,815 14,352,746
Authorised but not contracted for EERERRFTY
— Acquisition of land and equity interests ~ — IR E THH tib 2 B
in certain land-holding entities 2 L R fg AN HE = 101,527 101,546
— Property construction costs — WK K 1,662,798 1,523,439
1,764,325 1,624,985
16,446,140 15,977,731
Note: BaE -
Included in the balance is an amount of RMB4,291,279,000 (approximately ZEBEE—F AR ®4,291,279,0007T (4
HK$5,292,322,000) (Note 40(g)) which is to be satisfied by the issuance of 5,292,322,0007% 7T ) &) 7K 38 (ft 7E40() - # 2
shares of the Company upon the completion of the acquisition. Wi eI 3B B AR X R B 1T R S AY -

SEAREEARARE « ZE——FFR
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39 Commitments (Continued) 39 &A@
(b) Operating Lease Commitments (b) KEHERIE
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of AEBREZHBEBEBEEME 2 TA
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease LS EREmMA LS HEE &
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments E-RETAZHLEHON AR
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows: ZREEMNGEHSEENT
Group
-3
2012 2011
—_E—-_F ===
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET
Amounts payable THIE AR 2 5RIA
— Within one year —— &R 33,403 34,798
— Within two to five years —MEERLFA 38,785 67,846
— After five years —hF’ 36,664 40,641
108,852 143,285
The Company has no operating lease commitment as at 31st ARBAR_-_TE——F+_-_HA=+—
December 2012 (2011: nil). AYEEERERE(CZT——F:
&) -
(c) Future Minimum Rental Receivable (0 KREREEKHES
The Group leased out certain properties under operating AEERERKEHELEETY
leases. The future minimum rental receivable under non- - KBEITAMEKLEHEHEZRK
cancellable operating leases is as follows: RERKMESNT :
Group
-3
2012 2011
= —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET
Within one year —FR 303,010 111,214
Within two to five years MEZERFRN 748,534 325,667
After five years T Fi& 702,536 139,373
1,754,080 576,254
The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st KRR _E——F+_A=+—
December 2012 (2011: nil). Y EEMARELRES(ZF——
Fr|E) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

40 Related Party Transactions

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 63.42% (2011: 62.83% to 63.42%) of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31st December 2012. The
remaining shares are widely held.

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited.

(@) The Following Significant Transactions were
Carried out with a Related Party:

Sales of Goods and Services (Note)

40 BFBEALXRSF

KARHRBKREELRT  ERBE-T
——F+-_A=+—BHILEEREEAH
63.42%(=F — — F : 62.83% £ 63.42%)
AARREMD - HTRMOAEMALEZR
ﬁ °

REERRRSHEEXZBRRAA

@ FIIRRE—-—BRAEALTET
EEXRSG:

HE & KRR (Kat)

2012 2011
—E—-CF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
Property management services to RHT-—RHBEERAFZ
a related company Y% E B IRK 9,127 2,672
Property design services to REF-—RBEERFZ
a related company &R RS 8,299 12,852
Shop lease services to RHT-—RHBEEQAFZ
a related company E A E RS 1,758 —
19,184 15,524

SEAREBARLE ¢« ZT——FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

40 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 40 BEATRF (2)
(@) The Following Significant Transactions were @ TFIRE-—RRAEATET
Carried out with a Related Party: (Continued) CEEXRS  (#)
Purchase of Goods and Services (Note) BEEm KRR (Kat)
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Property construction services from —HEEARRKTZ
a related company e 215,512 571,916
Property design services from —RBEERTRE
a related company W& R R 4,076 3,320
Decoration services from a related company —H@EEAF Rt
£ i R 15 — 48,357
Office lease services from a related company ~ — B E QR E 2
mAEHE RS 3,529 2,506
Property management services from —RBEERTRE
a related company MEE R RS — 945
Property construction supervision services —HEERATRE 2
from a related company MEREEERK 8,561 6,827
Electrical power, low voltage system and —HAERAREZ
intelligent building installation works, B PERLGNER
budgeting and cost control BFREIR -
consultation services from TE & N A 12 1l
a related company 71 AR 75 227,523 144,552
Consultancy services in respect of development — &8 # 2 a2t 2
planning and sales agency service for FAYMEXER 2 #ERXKE
commercial property projects from N RS 2 BE R
a related company 147 =
Informatization related services from —HEEATREZ
a related company = BAL A8 R T% 12,497 —
471,845 778,423
Note: Bt -

This related company is ultimately owned by the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu
Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company) and uncle of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Executive
Director of the Company).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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40 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Amounts Due from/to Related Parties were as

(0

Follows:

40 BEALTRZ B
(b) W NBEEALTZFREN
T :

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TET
Due from associates & W Bek & 1 B R T 31,884 31,890
Due from related companies (Note) FE U B 32 N R FRIE (M 7F) 6,361 6,188
Due to an associate & — BB & A &) 2 ;RIA 6,807 6,808
Due to related companies (Note) JE T B A B] 2 FRIE
(Hia) 265,210 81,704
Due to jointly controlled entities FE R B f8
2 5RIA 2,145,551 1,574,135
As at 31st December 2012, all outstanding balances with R-ZE—-——%+-_A=+—H &
related companies, associates and jointly controlled entities MERQR BEARRAREHE
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre- BroMERYERR B RY
determined repayment terms. BIEEERE -
As at 31st December 2012, the Group also had accounts RZE—=—F+=—A=+—H" ' &K

payable of approximately HK$623,119,000 (2011:
HK$2,516,006,000) due to certain related companies (Note)
in respect of property construction fees (Note 22).

Note:

These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company) and uncles of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Executive Director
of the Company).

Amount Due to Minority Shareholders of
Subsidiaries

The amount due to minority shareholders represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the minority
shareholders, which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms. The amount is
considered equity in nature.

(0

SENEREGETEERR (M)
W) 22 E E 47623,119,000/8 T (=
T — — 4 :2,516,006,00078 7T ) ( Fft
£+22) o

ff 7t

ZEMERRR/RAEREE(RRARERER
REFEIR)ZBPBEREREARERRZ L (K
RARTES) ZBRXRELHEEZAF -

EAHERRADBERRZK
15

F& 5 D BRAER FRIR 4R A BUR R @
BRAfBHZBRREN  BHENKEA
REERR 2R NREFEEERY-
ERSHIUEERE kR -

SEAREBARLE ¢« ZT——FFH
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40 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d

(e)

®

40 BEALITXRZ )

Key Management Compensation: d) TEEEEHRMH :
2012 2011
—EB-CF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Fees e 840 780
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 11,988 13,499
Pension costs RIKE KA 53 59
12,881 14,338

Undertaking Provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company, to the Group in
Relation to the Acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang
Real Estate Limited

In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu
Zhujiang”) from Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), a related company.

Panyu Zhujiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land
in Panyu District, Guangdong, China (the “Land”). Pursuant
to the Agreement, Hanjiang will perform and complete all
necessary demolition and preparation work to obtain the
land use right certificate of the Land, at its own expense,
within one year from the date of the agreement.

In relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, has undertaken to the Group to guarantee the
due and punctual performance by Hanjiang of its obligations
in relation to the Land (subject to a maximum amount of
RMB3,600 million). As at 31st December 2012, Hanjiang
was in the process to apply for the land use right of the Land.

Undertaking Provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company, to the Group in
Relation to Acquisition of Believe Best

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the
issued share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited
(“Believe Best”) from Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman of the
Company. Believe Best has, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary (the project company), acquired a piece of
land for development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, China
(known as the “Jing Run Project”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

B 5 ¥R R B 5E (4F)

40 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

®

Undertaking Provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Company, to the Group in
Relation to Acquisition of Believe Best (Continued)

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project
through its 80% interest in Believe Best, Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
has (i) fully guaranteed the bank loans which were used by
the project company for the demolition and relocation of the
extra public greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project
at the request of the local government; and (ii) undertaken to
the Group to be responsible for the excess amount, if any,
being the difference in the unit cost per square metre (including
the demolition and relocation fees for the extra public
greenfield site and the land transfer fees as compared with
the original agreed valuation price of Jing Run Project) for the
gross floor area to be developed, payable by the project
company in respect of any increase in plot ratio as the
government may approve. The demolition and relocation
work on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related
costs of approximately RMB1,460 million had been incurred
by the Group up to 31st December 2012 (2011: RMB1,460
million). Such additional costs may be compensated by an
increase in plot ratio for the Jing Run Project. However,
government approval for increase in plot ratio is pending.

40 BEALITXRZ &)

(M

RRBEFEREMEER Y
BEEQXAKREFEL 2&R
(&)

B EAEEEBE NS E0%E
mMmEBERBEECEZME ' &
EREEEONEHERAER ZE
BRAREEMRFZER  3tRHE
HEB AZ2BEIINABZAE L 2 FE
MAlge s Z < EMWIRITER: K
M) 2 & B 7 5 M 2 b BUAT Bt ST Ak 5B
INA BB AL £t 2 37 38 T 1 ANt
ZABE MBEFRZEE(E
EERBEEREHEE AR ZEIN
NEFE L Z2IFBER K LibE
ZE)ARRAZRECHE K&
KEERELNZIEE Ral 0] #E
mMEBL 228 BIDHLEL L
M IFBIEERETH  MASE
EREE—_ZT——F+=-_A=+—
HEEEH ARME1460,000,0007T
ZHBEAKRA(ZZE——F: ARK
1,460,000,0007T) ° B8 HMAK AN ok & 7
EMRBEECARBERBAME-
R R HABHIENAREERZ
HEE o
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40 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(g

(h)

Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments Limited

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a
related company, to acquire the entire interest in Sun Excel
Investments Limited (“Sun Excel”) for a consideration of
RMB6,605,066,000.

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its interests under the equity
transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire interests in
Beijing Chuang He Feng Wei Property Development
Company Limited (formerly known as Beijing Chuang He
Feng Wei Technology Investment and Management Co.
Limited) (“Project Co A”) and Beijing Sheng Chuang Heng Da
Property Development Company Limited (formerly known as
Beijing Sheng Chuang Heng Da Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co B”). Project Co A and
Project Co B hold the land use rights of a piece of land in
Tongzhou District, Beijing.

The consideration will be satisfied by (i) cash of
RMB2,313,787,000 and (ii) the issuance of shares of the
Company for the remaining balance of RMB4,291,279,000.
On 26th October 2012, the Group entered into a
supplementary agreement with Farrich to extend the deadline
of completion of the acquisition to 2nd November 2013. The
acquisition has not yet been completed as at the year end.

Disposals of Land Use Rights to Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Company

On 11th May 2012, the Group entered into agreements with
Mr. Chu Mang Yee to dispose of its land use rights of two
pieces of land in Panyu District, Guangdong, China and
Baodi District, Tianjin, China for considerations of
RMB29,258,305 and RMB2,500,000 respectively.

The transactions have not yet been completed as at 31st
December 2012. It is expected that the Group will recognise
gain on disposal, net of tax of approximately RMB9,834,000
upon completion of the transactions.
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(g

(h)
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6,605,066,000 7T 1E & X B W i B £
REARAT(TREDZ 28R -
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(Mt REAEENRREERER
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2012:

Place of

incorporation and

41 FEMBLAIFEE

FEMBAFALE

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

UTAR-_ZE——F+-_A=+—HZ

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
R iigo vy EBRTR SEEGRE
DR EHE EE R BERE Bk EX-$ 34
Directly Indirectly
HE =
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% — Investment holding
International Limited REBRLES 2,000%£7T REZER
BEARBEERERAA
Addup International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
KEEBAR QA B8 18T BREER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding
EEEXBRLQA REBRLES 23T BREER
Beijing Hopson Beifang Education Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 49%(ii)  Provision of training
and Technology Limited" B KB AE#1,000,0007T and consultancy
EREELTHERBRERAF" services
RS Y R
A A
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China US$220,580,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited” [ K pE 220,580,0003 ¢ MEZRE
IREEIEFEMEREFR DR’
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real Estate Mainland China RMB735,292,400 — 100% Property development
Development Limited® AR oK BE AR#735,292,4007T YEBRE
IREEEMNEMEREGR AR’
Beijing Hopson Wang Jing Real Estate Mainland China RMB364,990,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* GlEPN S AR#364,990,0007T YRR
tREEERFEMERBERRAE’
Beijing Hopson Xing Ye Real Estate Mainland China US$31,600,000 — 100% Property development

Development Limited*

EREEREEMERBEERAF

B K

31,600,0003 7T

SEAREEARD

FUE 453

Al e ZE-—FFH

247
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41 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DEERE

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AR 3L R

EE R

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully
paid capital
BBITK

BR R

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

the Group
SEEGRE
B
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Principal activities

EREY

Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate
Development Limited*

tReaEfsFEHEREER AR’

Beijing Long Jia Jincheng Property
Development Company Limited

IREEHEFHEREERAA

Beijing Long Jia Runhe Real Estate
Development Limited

IRERHERHEREERAA

Beijing Long Xiang Landmark
Property Development
Company Limited
IREFEHFEHEREFER QA

Beijing Long Yuan Shun Jing
Real Estate Development Limited

ERERIESEMHEFREERAQAF

Beijing Xingjingrun Property Co., Ltd.
IR R EEERR AR

Believe Best Investments Limited

EEREERAA

Chia Lung Group Company Limited
EEEBRERQF

Dalian Hopson Hotel Investment

Management Company Limited"

REREBEERAEEERRAR

Dalian Hopson Xing Ye Real Estate
Development Company Limited”

REGEREEMEREBR QA"

Mainland China
LlEpN

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
A B K e

Mainland China
A K e

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China

GlETPN

British Virgin Islands
REBRZES

Samoa

& PE 20 [
Mainland China

B K B

Mainland China
B K R
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US$165,760,000
165,760,0002 7T

RMB10,000,000
AER%10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AER#%10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AER%10,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007T

US$206,780,000

206,780,000 7%

US$200
20037T

US$6,500,000
6,500,000 7T,

RMB30,000,000

AER#30,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AER#50,000,0007T

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 80%

— 80%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Investment holding

BREEK

Investment holding

BB R
Hotel operations

B R

Property development

MEER
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & BRTR SEESRE

DNAEHE B BR R B TEEK

Directly Indirectly

HE e %

Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
BAMEERRAA 0 10,0007 7T REZER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary HK$3 — 100% Investment holding
B EXBRDA BE non-voting deferred and property

Funland Properties Limited

HFHEXERAA

Grand Avenue Limited

SEBRAR

Guangdong Esteem Property
Services Limited”

ERESWERBERQA’

Guangdong Hopson Dijing
Real Estate Co. Ltd.”
BRELEFTREHERRAR’

Guangdong Hopson Hong Jing
Real Estate Company Limited”
BREEMREHERRAR’

Guangdong Hopson Lejing
Real Estate Co. Limited”
BEREESLSEHMERRA A’

Guangdong Hopson Minghui
Real Estate Limited'
BREEAEFERRRA

Guangdong Hopson Yuehua
Real Estate Limited®
ERAEMERMEFRAR

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

Hong Kong
a8

Mainland China

B A B

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
B K R

Mainland China
K B

Mainland China
B K R

shares (i)
28T EBAR3ABTT
IR ERERIER ()

Us$2
25T

HK$22,500,000
22,500,000 7T

HK$5,000,000

5,000,0005% 7T,

US$37,500,000
37,500,000 7%

RMB200,280,000
AER#200,280,0007T

RMB44,500,000
AER#44,500,0007

RMB41,500,000
AER¥41,500,0007C

RMB41,500,000
AER#41,500,0007

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 90%

— 100%

SEAREEARD

investment

REZERRYERE

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REER

Property management

MEREE

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

e —B-—FFH
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & ERITR SEEGRE
DEERE EEMmE BR R EE EREY
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Guangdong Huajingxincheng

Real Estate Limited®

BRESHBPEHERRAR'

Guangdong Huanan New City
Real Estate Limited'

ERERFHEERR DA

Mainland China
LlEpN

Mainland China
B K e

RMB93,500,018
AR#%93,500,0187C

RMB464,750,000
AR#464,750,0007C

— 100%

— 100%

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Guangdong Huanan Real Mainland China RMB48,074,420 — 70% Property development
Estate Limited' B A B AR¥648,074,4207C MEEE

EREEEHAERR QA

Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited' Mainland China RMB65,084,340 — 90% Property development

EREEEHEERAA R A B ARH65,084,3407T MEER

Guangdong New Tai An Real Mainland China RMB19,100,000 — 100% Property development
Estate Limited” B K BE AE#19,100,0007T LI EX 3

ERFFRLEMERRQE"

Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100% Provision of
Company Limited" B K B AR#100,000,0007T construction

BMEBITREEABERAR" service

REEERS

Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development
Real Estate Limited' B K BE AR#53,550,0007T YRR

BMNEERIEMERRAR

Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China RMB42,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' B K BE AE#42,500,0007T YRR

BEMEERFEMERR DA

Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB221,619,440 — 95% Property development

Real Estate Limited'

B A R

AR#5221,619,4407C

MEER

BMNEEXSEHERRAR
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & BRTR SEESRE
DNEEHE B BR R B TEEK
Directly Indirectly
HE e %
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Mainland China RMB133,340,000 — 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited' R A B AR#5133,340,0007T MERR
EMEEMEEEMERR DA
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China RMB42,287,624 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' GlEPN S AR#42,287,6247C YRR
BMEEBEFHERRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Water supply
Water Supply Limited" B K B AR#3,000,0007C oK
BN & EBRFRERRDAF"
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of
Business Services Limited GlEPN S AR#500,0007T clubhouse and
BMEEESBEBARAR residential services
rftemREERS
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' SEN AR#131,420,0197T YRR
BEMEERERMERR QA
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China RMB82,040,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited' B K BE AR#82,040,0007T YRR
BEMEERREWERR A
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Mainland China RMB47,250,000 — 70% Property development
Real Estate Limited' GlETPN S AR#47,250,0007T V%2R
BEMEEMREHERR A
Guangzhou Jian Nan Property Mainland China US$12,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited® B K R 12,000,000 7T LU
BEMNEEEEERERAA’
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China RMB2,170,243 — 100% Property development

Construction and Development GlEPN S
Company Limited®

BEMNTRIBSERRMAEAR

AR#2,170,243 7T

SEAREEARD

MEER

Al e ZE-—FFH
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DEERE

Place of

incorporation and

operations
AR 3L R
EE R

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully
paid capital
BBITK

BR R

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Principal activities

EREY

Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Estate
Company Limited*
EMN=BMEFFERRQF"

Guangzhou Wanxiangying
Real Estate Company Limited®
BMNTEEENEERARAR

Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang
Development Limited"

BEMHFRTERAERFRAA"

Guangzhou Yi Sheng Real Estate
Development Limited

BT EREMERERRAA

Guangzhou Yi Hui Real Estate
Development Limited

BN EERMEREZERRAR

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and
Culture Company Limited"
BMEZERXLETERBERAR"

Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate
Development Company Limited®

EMERERERERR QA"

Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu
Real Estate Limited'

BMKIBEMEHERR AR

Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate
Company Limited*
BMERZELHEFEHERRAR'

Mainland China
LlEpN

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
A B K

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
A B K R

Mainland China
A K R

Mainland China
A B K e

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

RMB30,000,000
AER#%30,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AER#1,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000
AER#60,000,0007T

RMBS52,500,000
AR#52,500,0007T

RMB37,000,000
AR#37,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AE#500,0007T

RMB43,800,000
AER#43,800,0007T

RMB535,500,000
AR#535,500,0007C

US$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

the Group
SEEGRE
B
Directly Indirectly
HE e %
— 67%
— 100%
— 95.5%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 99.5%
— 100%

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Investment holding

BREEK

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEERR

Property development

MEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & ERTR SEESRE
DNAEHE B BR R B ETRER
Directly Indirectly
HE e %
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited EEBERES 2%TT design and
aERIR(BER) AR AT advisory services
Rt R R K
A AR 7
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
(Properties) Limited BB 10,0005 7T MERE
BEARERERAA
Hopson (Guangzhou) Mainland China US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development
Industries Limited* B A B 4,830,000%7T MEER
BEERMEXERAA
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding
SEEBEBERQA B HK$10,000 non-voting REZER
deferred shares (i)
2ETTEBK
10,0003 TLARIZ FRMHE
EFERAD (1)
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100% Investment holding
BEFEBHERRA A KBRS 17T BE R
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal City Mainland China RMB72,500,000 — 60% Property development
Development and Investment B B KB AR#72,500,0007T MEER
Co., Ltd."
BMKREBEMEFRRTERERE
BRAF"
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited" B KB AE#10,000,0007T MEER
BNTRAEEXRRERLQA"
Huizhou Hopson Xin Neng Mainland China HK$50,000,000 — 100% Property development

B R B

Properties Limited”

BMNTAEGEREXERAA’

50,000,000/ 7T

MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DEERE

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AR 3L R

EE R

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully
paid capital
BBITK

BR R

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Group
SEEARE
Bat
Directly Indirectly

HE i

Principal activities

EREY

Huizhou Yapai Real Estate
Company Limited*
BMTEREBESR QRS

Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate
Company Limited*
BEMTEHEHERR AR

Ji Run Property Investments Limited

EHEXRERRRAT

Karworld Holdings Limited
ZNEEERAR

Kun Shan Hopson Property
Development Company Limited

BUEEEMERERR QA

Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate
Development (Guang Zhou) Ltd.*
BEMNGEHIENBERAERDAS

Max Clear Investments Limited

EEREBRAA

Nambour Properties Limited

AEEXERAA

Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Sports
Company Limited"

BRALEERNABERRARAR

Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Estate
Company Limited"
BEREEBBEHEGRAR"

Mainland China
o B K R

Mainland China
o B K R

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China

B K B

Mainland China
B K R

Hong Kong

&

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

Mainland China

GlETPN

Mainland China
o B K R

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

RMB250,000,000
AR#250,000,0007C

RMB119,000,000
AR#119,000,0007¢

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000
10,0005 7T

RMB200,000,000

AR#200,000,0007T

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000 7T,

HK$1

147T

Us$2
27T

US$10,000,000
10,000,000 7%

RMB150,000,000
AR#150,000,0007T

— 100%

— 100%

— 80%

— 100%

— 100%

— 55%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Property development

(UE 453

Property development

(UE 453

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

A R
Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Investment holding

BREZRK

Investment holding

REERK

Property development

(UE 453

Property development

(UE 453



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & ERTR SEESRE
DNAEHE B BR R B ETRER
Directly Indirectly
HE e %
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited" B A BE AR#510,000,0007T V¥ %R
BERARERBEMERR A"
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China RMB220,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited" B A BE AR#220,000,0007T BREER
BERARLAREMWERRAA"
Outward Expanse Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding
BEXREEERAA KBRS 23575 REZR
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited B A BE AR#100,000,0007C V¥R
ERWRIFEHMEARRAA
Plaza Royale Water Palace Convention Mainland China RMB72,000,000 — 70% Hotel operation
Hotel Tianjin Co. Limited* B K R AR #72,000,0007T B E R
REFRBRBEARRAA
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding
BREXER DA KBRS 23T BREEK
Prestige Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
ERERERERAA BB 10,0007 7T RE R
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
FERERRERAR B 18T & 2R
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China RMB3,050,000,000 — 100% Property development
Management Company Limited" A K B A#3,050,000,0007T MERE
EBEREREEEEAR QA"
Shanghai Hechuang Lin Hai Property Mainland China RMB900,000,000 — 100% Property development

Development Company Limited

FERAREFRMERERERAA

B A R

AR #900,000,0007T

SEAREEARD

PUE 453

Al e ZE-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DEEE

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AR 3L R

EE R

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully
paid capital
BBITR

BR R

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Group
SEEARE
Bat
Directly Indirectly

HE i

Principal activities

EX-3 33

Shanghai Hopson Jin Ting Real Estate
Development Limited

LEaERERMEREERAR

Shanghai Hopson Property
Development Company Limited*

tEEERMERERRARS

Shanghai Hopson San Lin Real Estate
Development Limited

FEeE=BEHEREERAR

Shanghai Long Jia Properties Limited"
tEEZEERRAA"

Shanghai Lung Meng Real Estate
Development Company Limited*

tEEBEMERERR AR

Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties
Company Limited”
tELtEBEEXAR LA

Shanghai San Xiang Real Estate
Development Company Limited*

tE=8FEZERERAA’

Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate

Development Company Limited”

tEHREHEZERARAA"

Shanghai Ze Yu Properties Limited”
LBETFEXBRAAF

Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate
Development Company Limited”

LEBEEEMERGRAR"

Mainland China
A K R

Mainland China
o B K R

Mainland China
o B K R

Mainland China

ST

Mainland China

B A B

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
LEipN

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China

B A R

Mainland China
B K R
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RMB50,000,000
AR#50,000,0007T

US$59,900,000
59,900,000 7%

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AER#20,000,0007T
US$44,370,000

44,370,000 7T

RMB800,000,000
AR ¥800,000,0007T

US$8,000,000
8,000,0003 7T

RMB400,000,000
AR ¥400,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

A #50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Property development

(UE 453

Property development

(UE 453

Property development

(UE 453
Property development
(UE 453
Property development

FUE 453

Property development

FUE 453

Property development

FUE 453

Property development

FUE 453

Property development

FUE 453

Property development

MEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

incorporation and

Issued and fully

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & ERTR SEESRE
DNAEHE B BR R B ETRER
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China RMB185,000,000 — 100% Property development

Company Limited® B K B AR #185,000,0007T MEER
LAEEETRERERAFS
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100% Provision of
S EEMARRAF REBERES 17T consultancy

te fH A R 75

Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
EHREERR AR i 187 BE R
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding
REEXERAA KBRS YES & 2R
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 51% Property development

Development Corporation” B K B AE#10,000,0007T YRR
RYERIKREEXERARAF
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100% Investment holding
HERERR QT REBRLES 17T BEEK
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding
MBBEXEBROA RBERTES 25T REZER
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China RMB480,000,000 — 100% Property development
MR IREXER AT B K AR#480,000,0007T (UE 953
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 100% Property development

Company Limited* H B K BE AR #30,000,0007T Y ¥R
REMEBEEMEREARLA
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development

Development Company

REGHEBREBFEHEREERAA

B A B

AR#375,826,0007T

FUE 453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & BBITK SEEGRE
DEERE EEMmE BR R EE FTEEK
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Tianjin Hopson Environmental Mainland China US$500,000 — 75% Research and
Protection and Energy Saving EpN 7 500,0003 7T development of
Technology Development environmental
Company Limited™ technology and

REA IR R 88 Bl 5 3 product
BRARF" ot R ERR

il K 2

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development
Development Limited' AR B A P AR#280,000,0007T YR

REEHERLE U= &

BRAR

Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Museum Mainland China RMB200,000 — 100% Museum operation
Management Company Limited AR B K RE AR #200,00070 BYELEEER

REMELEREHEBYELEL
EEBR QA

Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100%  Architectural Design
Company Limited” A B oA B AR#E3,000,0007T B

REBEFEERFAERAAF"

Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China RMB115,000,000 — 90% Property development
Development Company Limited B K B AR#115,000,0007C MEER

REREREHERBE QA

Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 — 100% Investment holding

HREXARAR KBRS 23T REZR

Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding

ERBEERRAA R 5,000,000/7T RAZRK

Value-Added Guangzhou Limited" Mainland China RMB8,000,000 — 70% Property development

BT maEERAR" B A fE AE#8,000,0007T MEER

Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 95%  Property development

Company Limited”
AT R EE ST ESER AR

B A B

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

AE#10,000,0007T

FUE 453



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41

Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

41 FENBRAAFHEE @)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity

interest attributable to

Name of company operations paid capital the Group Principal activities
AR 3 & BRTR SEESRE
DNAEHE B BR R B TEEK
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Zhongshan Hopson Hao Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited" B A BE AR#510,000,0007T V¥ %R

RMLUTEERSFEHERRAR"

Zhongshan Hopson Hong Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited" B A BE AR#510,000,0007T ¥ %R

PUmAARSEHEARAR"

Zhongshan Hopson Xi Jing Real Estate Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited" B K AEK#10,000,0007C MEER

RLUTEERSFEHERRAR"

Zhongxian International Mainland China RMB2,250,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited" B K AR #2,250,000,0007C MR

MERBRZERBERAR"

Shanghai Fanmei Architecture Design Mainland China RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural Design
Company Limited GlEPN S A K #2,000,0007T BERET

R ERERIARAT

Shanxi Hopson Jiashi Investment Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property Investment
Company Limited GlEPN S AR #10,000,0007T L EX 3

LWASLEREREAR AT

Beijing Shengfengqi Architecture Design Mainland China RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural Design
Consultant Company Limited AR K BE AR #2,000,0007T et

ERREHBRERFHAERQA

Guangzhou Kengding Architecture Design ~ Mainland China RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural Design
Consultant Company Limited B K B AE#2,000,0007C BERET

BEMNBHEERTFEANERA A

Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant
Management Company Limited B K R AE#3,000,0007C Management

EREEREEREEEERAA BEEE

Guangzhou Chuangda Investment Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property Development

B A B

Development Company Limited

BEMaEREERBR AT

AER#100,000,0007C

SEAREEARD

MEER

Al e ZE-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

41 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DEERE

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AR 3L R

EE R

41 FENBRAAFHE @)

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

paid capital
BBITK
BR R

the Group
SEEGRE
B
Directly Indirectly
HE e %

Principal activities

EREY

Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and
Consultant Company Limited

EBRIRKERAER A

Shanghai Anxu Warehousing
Company Limited
LBZBERBERAF

Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate
Development Company Limited

ARERLEERFHEERAER QA

Mainland China
A K e

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
A B K e

These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland China.
These are cooperative joint ventures established in Mainland China.
These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland China.
These are foreign enterprises established in Mainland China.

RMB35,000,000
AER#5,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AE#500,0007T

US$16,047,000
16,047,000 75

These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland China.

(i) The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to (i)

any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the

non-voting deferred shares.

(ii) This is a subsidiary because the Group has the power to govern the financial (ii)

and operating policies of these companies through contractual arrangements,

notwithstanding that the Group’s equity interests in these companies are not

more than 50%.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012

— 100% Property Development
(UE 453

— 100% Warehouse
=11

— 100% Property Development
MEER

FZERNPRRERIZZERBIEDLE -
ZERNPERERIZAERERE -
ZERNPRERERZZAGERERE -
FZERNPRRERIZNERE -
FZERNPRRERILZIERE -

EMITERETERMIY R ERE EE KR
FABREREEREFRBEZADIK BIE
100,000,000,000,0007% JT E 7 ik T L@ FH
A BIEBEEZ —¥AHRTEREEET
&R #HB A o

BEAEERZERAZRAERL TEBB
50% ZARAHEBARVARAEESGREE

BERNZHREZSRAZH B RELEHR -

o Il



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B R MR ()

42 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

On 16th January 2013, the Company issued 9.875% senior notes
due 2018 with an aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,327,000,000) (the “2018
Notes”). The 2018 Notes mature on 16th January 2018 and are
repayable at the principal amount of US$300,000,000. The
Company may redeem some or all of the 2018 Notes on or after
16th January 2016 at the redemption prices, plus accrued and
unpaid interest up to the relevant redemption date.

42

HEBRER

RZE—=F—H+XB AQREM
K & #8 %8 /300,000,000 T (HZER L
2,327,000,000% 7T) 2 9.875E N =& — )\
FHH BEEBR(ZE—NFRE)) -
—E-NFEBER-_FT-—NF—A+~
H % 8§ - 78 3% 7/~ € §300,000,000 3 7T (&
BoARAARZZTE—RNF—A+ AKX
N EZERDELRESZRHBEERDRBR BT &
AAFE  BEEBOHHIEB - N\FE
ygo
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Summary of Financial Information

BBRENME

Consolidated Balance Sheets REEERAEBR

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—RENF ZTENF —TTF _T——F ZE-"F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FTAET FAET FTHx

ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs b N 749,663 329,440 622,193 714,967 1,528,998
Prepayments for acquisition of land Yo B + 3 FE A R 2,436,630 266,962 209,795 131,221 131,197
Properties and equipment s EY L 2,405,623 3,175,029 3,199,845 3,264,839 3,435,475
Investment properties REYE 2,856,094 8,378,105 15,405,498 16,637,473 16,535,733
Properties under development for RIERBRECER
long-term investment kY 125,856 — — — —
Intangible assets By EE 120,455 120,660 124,837 41,245 41,237
Investments in associates REEL NR 2 IRE 42,201 40,925 43,433 151,685 154,659
Investments in jointly controlled RIEREEFEE
entities ZERE 801,240 1,188,692 1,512,923 1,753,004 4,027,439
Available-for-sale financial assets HEENKERE 476,250 2,671,719 3,316,388 5,203,335 2,684,836
Deposit for proposed investment BRREZES = — 560,210 — —
Deferred tax assets BRETIEE E 173,378 191,287 167,541 220,240 299,334
10,187,390 16,362,819 25,162,663 28,118,009 28,838,908
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land Wo B + i 8 1 FRE 6,142,999 7,363,482 18,053,335 13,508,836 11,006,809
Properties under development AIEHEZERT
for sale L 30,544,173 30,556,607 31,967,756 49,064,535 54,314,252
Completed properties for sale A HEZEEK
S 7,336,763 7,835,600 10,487,033 11,640,241 14,407,957
Financial assets at fair value through XA FEFE BHER
profit or loss SR NS EE 11,655 11,083 11,693 11,456 13,552
Accounts receivable JE U BR 2K 72,577 146,895 171,953 232,940 347,695
Prepayments, deposits and other BRNFE EE R
current assets ﬁ’riﬂ,ﬁ@)ﬁéf? 1,528,568 1,620,126 2,565,026 3,634,376 2,924,163
Due from associates JE U Bt 8 A R N IE 26,538 29,365 30,382 31,890 31,884
Due from related companies JE U B 4 A T R IH 6,979 13,664 13,644 6,188 6,361
Pledged/charged bank deposits BEHER HERT
e\ 271,450 168,479 123,671 1,030,093 1,232,929
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESZEY 2,142,696 6,546,144 2,573,604 2,618,161 4,356,241

48,084,398 54,291,445 65,998,097 81,778,716 88,641,843
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

BBRENME(E)

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued) SEEEEEBER®E
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—TTNF ZTThF ZT-TF ZT——F ZE--F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$/000
FATT FHET FAT FAET FHERT
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable & ER 2,933,721 2,941,424 5,645,612 5,120,006 5,137,933
Land cost payable J 1 £ 3 AR AR 323,696 302,418 264,271 602,612 750,732
Borrowings fBE 4,262,798 6,232,260 3,671,919 13,629,307 15,520,648
Deferred revenue FEEWA 4,458,379 7,260,538 5,544,615 9,679,048 14,233,334
Accruals and other payables JEETFRIE & E
& 1 %R 2,249,864 1,728,752 2,196,200 2,962,465 2,762,720
Due to an associate FER—FRB & AR 2
218 6,258 6,269 6,486 6,808 6,807
Due to related companies FERTBAZE R Bl 2 FE 174,920 173,721 344,057 81,704 265,210
Due to jointly controlled entities R A5 £ 7] 42 4
TR HIB 759,380 1,842,289 1,709,345 1,574,135 2,145,551
Current tax liabilities AR IERE 4,162,230 4,357,337 4,643,003 4,117,827 4,228,820
19,331,246 24,845,008 24,025,508 37,773,912 45,051,755
Net current assets MBI EFE 28,753,152 29,446,437 41,972,589 44,004,804 43,590,088
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 38,940,542 45,809,256 67,135,252 72,122,813 72,428,996
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Land cost payable JEE < £ 3t AR 7R 106,173 271,028 111,178 81,481 59,651
Borrowings 3= 12,330,211 10,116,598 20,047,524 21,718,581 21,270,578
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE 3,890,102 4,502,743 5,551,128 5,816,801 5,548,087
Due to minority shareholders ML= NI
of subsidiaries B% 3R R IA 49,983 419,411 432,323 439,841 556,080
16,376,469 15,309,780 26,142,153 28,056,704 27,434,396
Net assets BEFE 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099 44,066,109 44,994,600
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable RAGIRERE A
to the Company’s equity holders JE A % 7R % (o
Share capital & 7% 147,237 159,237 175,237 173,600 173,600
Reserves i 20,032,657 28,034,506 38,011,918 40,910,852 42,014,189
20,179,894 28,193,743 38,187,155 41,084,452 42,187,789
Non-controlling interests JE 20 ) 1 RE 25 2,384,179 2,305,733 2,805,944 2,981,657 2,806,811
Total equity A 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099 44,066,109 44,994,600
BEAREEARAT « —B——HFFH
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

BRENMEE)

Consolidated Income Statements mEBERR
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—TEN\F _TTNF —T-FTF _T——F ZF-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FAT FAT FATT THER
Revenues &= 10,774,624 11,225,246 14,379,253 8,007,537 9,926,605
Cost of sales & AR (5,915,976) (6,557,985) (8,692,021) (4,329,161) (5,683,720)
Gross profit EA 4,858,648 4,667,261 5,687,232 3,678,376 4,242,885
Fair value gain on investment REWMERATERE
properties 34,076 4,700,097 3,795,624 107,397 214,622
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & 7] & {11 & Bf 75 & &
financial assets Uy 25 — — — — 1,770,414
Other income/gains, net Hi A Yz 558 537,659 733,591 1,206,665 361,764 58,957
Selling and marketing expenses HERTSHEER (389,348) (378,757) (410,225) (466,549) (503,766)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f% & 17 Bl & F (963,141) (994,599) (1,200,324) (1,271,430) (1,357,088)
Finance income B RS U A 12,376 13,551 17,039 29,098 35,807
Finance costs B 75 A 2R (226,765)  (333,639)  (253,307)  (238,539) (215,829)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates AEEE DR (BE),/
kil (33) (1,346) 1,071 351 3,003
Share of (loss)/profit of jointly DI EREHE
controlled entities (B18), %A (1,710) 385,759 (666) (3,284) (154)
Profit before taxation B %% A1 v Al 3,861,762 8,791,918 8,843,109 2,197,184 4,248,851
Taxation 1B (1,912,812) (2,699,383) (2,550,097) (788,773)  (1,360,748)
Profit for the year F & i 7 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103
Attributable to: FEfh
Equity holders of the Company AKATREFEE A 1,963,724 5,799,573 5,889,412 1,430,031 2,982,790
Non-conrolling interests FEFE IR (14,774) 292,962 403,600 (21,620) (94,687)
1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012 1,408,411 2,888,103
Dividends BB 294,621 146,498 300,531 — —
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Principal Office

Suites 3305-3309

33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
16th Floor, South Tower

Zhujiang Investment Building

421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office

3rd Floor, Zhujiang Development Centre
23 West Dawang Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office
19th Floor, Block 3

No. 695 Lingshi Road

Zhabei District

Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
17th Floor, NingTai Plaza

No. 1 Xiaguang Road

Weijin South Road

Nankai District

Tianjin
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